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Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)
Registration No. 333-1491!
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMEN

(To Prospectus dated May 5, 2004)

6,144,908 Shares
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.

Class A Common Stock

The selling stockholder identified in the accompagyprospectus is offering 6,144,908 shares ofGlass A common stock. We will not
receive any proceeds from the sale of shares byettiag stockholder.

Our Class A common stock is listed on The New Ystlick Exchange under the symbol “WWE.” The lasbregd sale price of our Class A
common stock on May 20, 2004 was $12.20 per share.

Before buying any of these shares of our Class Amenon stock, you should carefully consider the riskactors described in “Risk
Factors” beginning on page 3 of the accompanying pspectus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission n@ny state securities commission has approved or digproved of these securities ¢
determined if this prospectus supplement or the acenpanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any epresentation to the contrary is
a criminal offense.

Per Share Total
Public offering price $ 11.5( $70,666,44
Underwriting discounts and commissic $ 0.517¢ $ 3,179,99
Proceeds, before expenses, to the selling stocih $10.982! $67,486,45

The selling stockholder has granted the underveriaeB0-day option to purchase up to an additioBa) 86 shares of our Class A common
stock at the public offering price per share, l@sderwriting discounts and commissions, to covarallotments, if any, within 30 days from
the date of this prospectus supplement.

The underwriters are offering the shares of ous€kR common stock as described below in “Undergiti Delivery of shares will be made
or about May 26, 2004.

Sole Book-Running Manager
UBS Investment Bank

Natexis Bleichroeder Inc.

The date of this prospectus supplement is May Q042

You should rely only on the information containedr@orporated by reference in this prospectus kupent and the accompanying prospec
We and the underwriters have not authorized anyopeovide you with different or additional infortian. This prospectus supplement is not
an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer taybthese shares of common stock in any circumssameder which the offer or solicitation is
unlawful. This prospectus supplement is part ofl simould be read in conjunction with, the accompanprospectus and the information
incorporated by reference therein. The informati@npresent in this prospectus supplement may gutthte or change information included



incorporated by reference in the accompanying @atss. You should not assume that the informatierhave included in this prospectus
supplement or the accompanying prospectus is aecasaof any date other than the date of this gaisp supplement or the accompanying
prospectus or that any information we have incateat by reference is accurate as of any date titharthe date of the document incorporated
by reference. If information contained or incorgerhby reference in the accompanying prospectisdsistent with this prospectus
supplement, the information in this prospectus &mppnt will apply and will supersede the informatimontained or incorporated by reference
in the accompanying prospectus prior to the datlisfprospectus supplement.
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Prospectus supplement summary

This summary highlights selected information aheuénd this offering. This summary is not compdeie does not contain all of the
information that may be important to you. You sbaeld this entire prospectus supplement carefirgluding the information set forth in the
attached prospectus and information and documerisrporated herein and therein by reference, befoaking an investment decision.

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated media and entertainment coyrgragaged in the development, production and miakeff television and pay-per-view
programming and live events and the licensing abel &f branded consumer products. We have beetverdn the sports entertainment
business for approximately 25 years, and we haveldeed World Wrestling Entertainment into a widedgognized and enduring brand.

We develop unique and creative content centerashdrour talent and presented at our live and teéevevents. At the heart of our success are
the athletic and entertainment skills and appeauofWWE Superstars and our consistently innovedive multi-faceted storylines across our
two brandsRAWand SmackDown! Anchored by our successful brands, we are aleverage our content and talent across virtudlignadia
outlets. Our television programs, live events, pay-~view events and branded merchandise providefisignt cross-promotion and marketing
opportunities that reinforce our brands. This inégd model enables us to more effectively reactams, including the highly-coveted 12-

34 year old male demographic.

Vincent K. McMahon and Linda E. McMahon co-founded company in 1980, serve as Chairman and Chietive Officer, respectively,
and are our controlling stockholders, together agninore than 70% of our outstanding common stotek giving effect to the completion of
this offering.

CREATIVE PRODUCTION AND TALENT DEVELOPMENT

Headed by Vincent K. McMahon, our creative teamedigys compelling and complex characters and weidnegs into dynamic storylines that
combine physical and emotional elements. Storylaresusually played out in the wrestling ring andold on our weekly television shows, &
culminate or change direction in our monthly pay-piew events.

Our success is due primarily to the continuing payity of our Superstars. We currently have exslesiontracts with approximately

140 Superstars, ranging from developmental corgtacinulti-year guaranteed contracts with estabtisBuperstars. Our Superstars are highly
trained and motivated independent contractors whosgensation is tied to the revenue that they hglgenerate. Popular Superstars include
Triple H, Shawn Michaels, Randy Orton, Ric Flaindégrtaker, Kurt Angle, John Cena, Big Show, Karteiglericho, Chris Benoit and Eddie

Guerrero. We own the rights to substantially albof characters, and we exclusively license thetsigre do not own through agreements with
our Superstars. We continually seek to identifgrug and develop additional talent for our busges

LIVE AND TELEVISED EVENTS
Television programming

Relying on our in-house production capabilitiesat technologically advanced production facilitye wroduce seven television shows,
consisting of nine hours of original programming,veeeks per year. Live events provide the majaitthe content for our television and pay-
per-view programming and consequently result in llmgvemental television programming costs. We gateerevenue from our programming
through television rights fees and advertisingsale
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Our flagship television shows aRAWandSmackDown!. RAW a two-hour primetime program that is broadcastdn SpikeTV and has
consistently been among the top-rated regularlgdaled programs on cable televisi@mackDownis a taped two-hour program that airs on
UPN in primetime and is consistently one of thehlesgt rated programs on UPN. We supportRavWbrand withSunday Night Heatwhich

airs on SpikeTV, and our syndicated sh®&wttom Line. We support ouBmackDownbrand withVelocity, which airs on SpikeTV, and our
syndicated showAfter Burn. The WWE Experienceour new Sunday morning magazine style show,aairSpikeTV and features the
Superstars and storylines from both of our brahtfscal 2004, on a weekly basis, an average pf@pmately 3.3 million households viewed
RAWand 3.6 million households view&mackDown¥

The strong ratings of our television programs attealvertisers and sponsors from some of the lgabmpanies in the food and beverage,

apparel, video game, toy, telecommunications andieriadustries. These advertisers include Subwale NNintendo, Microsoft Xbox, AT&1
Nokia, Dreamworks and Universal Pictures. The paiityl of our television programming, our primanpprotional vehicle, drives the succt

of our other businesses. Increased viewershipdotelevision shows translates into increased payvew buys, live event attendance and
merchandise sales.

Internationally, our programming is distributedniore than 100 countries. Our distributors incluepng many others, Sky Sports in the UK,
J Sports in Japan and Taj TV in India.

Live events

In fiscal 2004, we held 297 live events throughdatth America, as well as 32 international eveeartggertaining over 1.6 million fans at an
estimated average ticket price of approximately.®@1We hold many of our live events at major aseiacluding Madison Square Garden in
New York City, the Staples Center in Los Angelég, Evening News Arena in Manchester, England, tipe@®ome in Sydney, Australia, a

the Super Arena in Saitama, Japan. In additiomrdwiging the content for our television and pay-p&w programming, these events provide
us with a real-time assessment of the popularistafylines and characters. Live events generaentes through ticket and merchandise sales.

Our two brandsRAWandSmackDown! tour independently, each typically producing éhoe four events per week. This allows us to play
numerous domestic markets, as well as to take sagarof the strong international demand for ounexdn fiscal 2004, we had a number of
successful international tours, including &urthless Aggressidour in Australia, ouPassport to Paitiour in the UK, Germany and Finland
and ourRoad to WrestleManitour in Japan.

Pay-per-view programming

We have been pioneers in both the production aomhgtion of pay-per-view events since our first ey-view eventWrestleMania |, in

1985. At each monthly pay-per-view event, our dines either culminate or change direction. Weristeely market and promote the
storylines that are associated with upcoming payvigw events through our television shows, Intésites and magazines. We produced 12
domestic pay-per-view programs in fiscal 2004, aedblan to add two more programs in fiscal 200% fum each brand. Our events
consistently rank among the highest selling evegtger-view programs.

In fiscal 2004, our premier eveMrestleMania XX achieved an estimated 860,000 payydew buys at a suggested retail price of $49.95.
other monthly pay-per-view events, includiRgyal Rumble Summer SlarandSurvivor Series averaged 350,000 buys at a suggested retalil
price of $34.95. Consistent with industry practjogs share the revenues with cable systems anliitegieoviders and pay service fees to
iNDEMAND and TVN.

* According to Nielsen Media Research (Galaxy Exetcb/1/03 to 4/30/04).
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BRANDED MERCHANDISE
Licensing

We have an established worldwide licensing proguamg our World Wrestling Entertainment marks amgbls, copyrighted works and
characters on a large variety of retail productsiuding toys, video games, apparel and booksll bf aur licensing agreements, we retain
creative approval over the design, packaging, ddugg and promotional material associated witkrised products to maintain the distinctive
style and quality of our intellectual property drénd. Currently, we maintain licenses with appmeediely 75 licensees worldwide. Video
games represent an important component of thiediog program, generating substantial revenuesigfirour license with THQ/ Jakks Paci
LLC, ajoint venture between THQ Inc. and Jakksifikaénc. Our video games cover current consobfpims, including PlayStation 2, Xbox
and GameCube. Some of our more recent titles iecmdackDown! Here Comes the Pairich sold approximately 1.8 million units in fidca
2004,RAW 2andWrestleMania XIX .

Under our publishing licensing agreement with Sirmod Schuster, we have our own book publishingiimipFhis agreement has provided us
the opportunity to broaden into literary genresdred/autobiographies, including historical anthoésgand trivia books. Fifteen of the first

21 titles we published have appeared on The Newk Yones Best Seller List. Recent titles inclutlee Stone Cold Truthan autobiographical
account of the life of Stone Cold Steve Austin, &mdcripted,a pictorial look into the personal lives of WWE ®ugtars.

Merchandise

Our direct merchandise operations consist of theggde sourcing, marketing and distribution of vasdVWE-branded products, such as T-
shirts, caps and other novelty items, all of wHiedture our Superstars and/or our logo. All of ghpoducts are designed by our in-house
creative staff and manufactured by third partide Terchandise is sold at our live events, thraughvweshopzone.com web site and through
our catalogs. During fiscal 2004, fans attendingammestic live events spent an average of apprateiy $8.90 each on WWE merchandise.

Publishing

Our publishing operations consist primarily of trmagazinesRAWandSmackDown! Our magazines help shape and complement stosyiline
our television programs and at our live events.ili¢tude a direct marketing catalog in our magazies quarterly basis. Our in-house
publishing and editorial departments prepare atbedl content, and we use outside contractorzritat and distribute the magazines, which are
sold both at newsstands and via subscription. Dhebined cumulative annual circulation of our twogazines was approximately 3.8 million
for fiscal 2004. Additionally, in fiscal 2004 we Iplished four special issues.

Home video

We own the world’s largest library dedicated to stlieg and sports entertainment. It contains foetiigm our historical televised events, as
well as the acquired libraries of World Champiopstirestling (“WCW”), Extreme Championship Wrestli(igeCW”), American Wrestling
Association (“AWA") and Smokey Mountain WrestlinS(MW?”). From this library, we have created suckestasThe Ultimate Ric Flair
Collection, which chronicles over three decades of Ric Haidlorful career, antihe Monday Night Waran account of the rivalry between
WWE and WCW in the late 1990s. We also produce haiaeo versions of each of our monthly pay-per-vexents. Outside the United
States, our home videos are distributed by a waoklicensees. In fiscal 2004, we sold approxinyate7 million units across all titles in our
catalog, including 27 new titles. Sony Music Videarkets and distributes our home videos to majailegs nationwide.
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Music

Music is an integral part of the entertainment eigree at our live events and on our televisiorgprmns. We compose and record most of our
music, including theme songs tailored to our chi@racin our recording studio. Sony Music markets distributes our music to major retailers
nationwide.

Digital media

We utilize the Internet to promote our brands,reate a community experience among our fans anthtéiet and distribute our products.
Through our Internet sites, our fans can purchagevaew our monthly pay-per-view events and purehas branded merchandise. We
promote many of our Internet sites on our televige@diramming, at our live events, in our magazemas in substantially all of our marketing
and promotional materials. According to comScoralidéetrix, in March 2004, our Internet sites gexted approximately 340 million page
views, and we had approximately 7.0 million unigisstors.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

We develop compelling storylines anchored by oyse3stars. This content drives television ratingsichy, in turn, drive pay-per-view buys,
live event attendance and branded merchandise Salestrategy is to capitalize on the significaperating leverage of our business model
through the distribution of this intellectual progeacross existing platforms as well as new andrging distribution platforms.

Our success in 2004 reflects a focused effort andbuilding, commencing with the strategic sepamnadf our brands and culminating in the
record-setting results &¥restleMania XXBuilding on this success, we intend to pursue diiewing initiatives:

Tt Continue to strengthen our brandn spring 2002, we made the strategic decisiorepagate our content into two branRawand
SmackDown! By having two brands, we are able to more effetiexpand our fan base and establish strongeddoyalty. The creation
of dual brands with distinct storylines, tours d@alként has allowed us to expand our touring scleedtiie evolution of two strong brands
has also supported greater international exparaidrprovides significant opportunity for the deyetent of new talen

t Continue to expand internationallynternational expansion represents an importarttqf our growth. The broad appeal of our conters
yielded high international demand for our televisprograms and live events. To further nurture deisyand, we plan to continue
expand our international television distributiomcieasing our television penetration around thddwwill likely increase the demand for
live events abroad, which, in turn, should incresales of our branded merchandise. Our dual branalsle us to execute this strategy by
freeing up schedules for talent to perform at newents in more countrie

t Effectively utilize our valuable library of wresty contentOver the past three years, we have expanded ganyiby strategicall
acquiring the libraries of WCW, ECW, AWA and SMWhé& result is an archive of more than 75,000 hofipagramming content,
25,000 hours of which was previously aired or redehas finished product. This library has been edrd to a digital format, and is being
catalogued to support future programming and athametization opportunities, such as video-on-demsambiscription video on demand
and digital channels. We currently plan to capitalbn this asset and new technologies in an dffattract new and recapture past view
In this regard, we recently announced the laundWWE 24/7, a subscription video-on-demand senie will feature the content of our
library.

S-4




Table of Contents

t Explore options in filmed entertainmeln 2002, we established WWE Films to explore ogionfilmed entertainment in order to prom
our Superstars and capitalize on our intellectuaperty and fan base. We have acted as executiiper on several films, including
Scorpion King, The RundovemdWalking Tall, all featuring WWE Superstar The Rock. We cursehtive several film projects in
development featuring other Superst

In summary, we seek to be a preeminent global geswf entertainment that evokes a uniquely paastoemotion from our fans. We will
continue to leverage our content and talent aathssedia platforms to drive revenue and strengtha@mbrand.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Based upon preliminary, unaudited information, wpegt fiscal full year revenue for 2004 to be $87@375 million, as compared to fiscal
2003 revenue of $374 million. We expect operatimgpime to be $68 to $73 million, as compared to 2ff3ating income of $27 million; su
amounts include depreciation and amortization & %1$13 million in 2004 and $11 million in 2008. &ddition, operating income for 2004
contains a $13 million net positive impact for legettiements and the impact of the reversal oftext commissions associated with litigation.
Operating income for 2003 contained a net negatiyact of $7 million for legal settlements. We egp2004 net income to be $44 to

$48 million and earnings per share on a dilutedsttasbe $0.64 to $0.70, as compared to a 200®sef $19 million and loss per share of
$0.28.

The estimates for the year ended April 30, 2004aetminary and subject to possible change asameptete our year-end procedures and the
audit of our financial statements.
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The offering

Class A common stock offered by the selling
stockholdel

Common stock to be outstanding after the offe
Class /
Class |

Dividend Policy

Voting Rights

6,144,908 shares

19,807,450 share
48,635,299 share

We have declared and paid cash dividends of $.04l@ee on both the Class A comn
stock and Class B common stock in each fiscal quanhce June 2003. Holders of Clas
common stock and Class B common stock are entitledjual per share dividends. On
April 27, 2004, our board of directors declaredhadind of $.06 per share on our Class A
and Class B common stock payable on July 8, 20@4ottkholders of record on June 28,
2004. Our quarterly dividend is based on a numbéators, including our liquidity and
historical and projected cash flows. The declaraind payment of dividends, and the
determination of the amount of any dividend, isjeabto the discretion of our board of
directors. Any determination as to the paymentiwifiénds, including the amount of
dividends, will depend on, among other things, galneconomic and business conditions,
our strategic plan, our financial results and ctadj contractual and legal restrictions on
the payment of dividends and such other factomuadoard of directors may consider to
be relevant

The holders of Class A Common stock generally higghgs identical to holders of Class
common stock, except that holders of Class A comstock are entitled to one vote per
share, and holders of Class B common stock ardeshto ten votes per share. Holders of
both classes of common stock generally will votgetber as a single class on all matters
presented to stockholders for their vote or apprasaept as otherwise required by
applicable Delaware law. Holders of Class A commatmtk and Class B common stock
are not entitled to cumulate votes in the electibBirectors. See “Description of Capital
Stock”
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Selling Stockholder The selling stockholder is Miecent K. McMahon Irrevocable Trust dated June 30,
1999, which was established as an estate planeihigle for the benefit of
Vincent K. McMahon and members of his family. Fallog the sale of all
6,144,908 shares in this offering by the sellirmckholder, Mr. McMahon and
Mrs. McMahon collectively will own more than 70% @fir outstanding common stock.
See" Selling Stockholde”

Use of Proceeds We will not receive any proceents ihe sale of the shares of common stock by the
selling stockholde!

NYSE symbol WWE

Upon a sale of shares by the selling stockholdesyant to this prospectus supplement, each shattae$ B common stock sold by the selling
stockholder will be converted automatically inteeashare of Class A common stock.

The number of shares of common stock outstanditey #fis offering is based upon the number of shatéstanding as of April 30, 2004. This
number does not include the following:

t 3,757,802 shares of Class A common stock issugiaa axercise of outstanding options and vestingsificted stock units; «
t 6,006,498 shares of Class A common stock resenreiture issuance under our 1999 L-Term Incentive Plar

Unless otherwise noted, the information is thisspexrtus supplement assumes that the over-allopion granted to the underwriters by the
selling stockholder has not been exercised.
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Capitalization
The following table sets forth our capitalizationaf January 23, 2004:

T on an actual basis; al

t as adjusted to give effect to the automatic coneersf the 6,144,908 shares of Class B common stéfeked hereby into the same num
of shares of Class A common sto

We will not receive any proceeds from, or pay ahthe expenses of, this offering.

As of January 23, 2004

Actual As adjusted

(unaudited, in thousands)

Cash and cash equivale $ 64,13¢ $ 64,13¢
Shor-term investment 202,55. 202,55:
Total $266,68! $266,68¢
| |

Total debt (including current portio $ 9,327 $ 9,327

Stockholder’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par val
Class A common stoc— 180,000,000 shares authorized; 19,759

shares issued and outstanding, as adjt 13€ 19¢

Class B common stock — 60,000,000 shares authod8:635,299
shares issued and outstanding, as adjt 54¢ 48€
Additional paid in capita 248,14: 248,14
Accumulated other comprehensive i (30 (30
Retained earning 89,87: 89,87:
Total stockholder equity 338,67( 338,67(
Total capitalizatior $347,99° $347,99°
| |
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Selected consolidated financial data

The following table sets forth our selected histakiconsolidated financial data for each of the figcal years in the period ended April 30,
2003. The selected historical consolidated findrdaga as of April 30, 2003 and 2002 and for tisedl years ended April 30, 2003, 2002 and
2001 have been derived from the audited consolidi@tancial statements included elsewhere in thispectus supplement. The selected
historical consolidated financial data as of Jan@&;, 2004 and for the nine months ended Januar2@®! and January 24, 2003 have been
derived from the unaudited consolidated finandialesnents included elsewhere in this prospectugleoyent. We have restated our
consolidated financial statements as of and foy#daes ended April 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and asdfor nine months ended January 23,
2004 and January 24, 2003. Refer to Notes to Cinlegetl Financial Statements for further discussegarding the impact of this restatement.
The selected historical consolidated financial detaf January 24, 2003 have been derived fronuoaundited consolidated financial
statements, which are not included in this prospestipplement. The selected historical consolidiatedicial data as of April 30, 2001, 2000
and 1999 and for the fiscal years ended April 3Q®and 1999 have been derived from our auditedatimfated financial statements, which
not included in this prospectus supplement. Yowkheead the selected historical consolidated fiferdata in conjunction with our historical
consolidated financial statements and related rastdghe information set forth under “Managemebiscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” containedvels®e in this prospectus supplement.

Nine months
ended
Fiscal year ended April 30, January 23/24,
Operations data: 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 2004 2003
—(as restated{® — (as restated)®
(dollars in millions, except per share data (unaudited)
Net revenue $374.5  $409.€ $438.1 $377.¢ $250.. $248.: $268.:
Cost of revenue®) 237.2 2511 2491 219.6 145¢  145¢ 175.5
Selling general and administrative experides 99.2  103. 98.1 711  45F 51.€ 70.€
Income from continuing operations before income$&& 26.€ 59.7 101.( 74.¢ 58.C 45.7 15.¢
Income from continuing operatiof@ 16.1 37.7 63.t 59.¢ 56.C 28.¢ 9.¢
Net (loss) incom{® $(19.5) $38¢ $14¢ $58¢ $56C $28°F $(15.9
| | | | | | |
Earnings (loss) per sha- basic and dilutec
Income from continuing operatiol $022 $051 $08 $09 $09¢ $041 $ 0.1¢
Net (loss) incom: $(0.26) $05: $021 $094 $09¢ $0.41 (0.22)
Nine months
ended
Fiscal year ended April 30, January 23/24,
Cash flows data: 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 2004 2003
—(as restated{® — (as restated)®
(dollars in millions) (unaudited)
Net (loss) incom: $(19.5) $38¢ $14¢ $58¢ $56.C $28¢ $(15.9)
Depreciation and amortizatic 11.C 10.€ 4.8 2.t 1.6 8.9 7.C
Changes in working capit (3.9 28.€ (10.€) 3.2 (29 17.1 6.1
Capital expenditures and other investing activjtie(®) (13.6) 04 (12.9) (150 (1460 (25.2) (8.9
Financing activities from continuing operationst (29.7) 2.3 61.1 110.t (6.2) (27.9 (29.5)

(footnotes on following pag
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Selected consolidated financial data

Fiscal year ended April 30, January 23/24,
Balance sheets data (as of peric
end): 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 2004 2003
—(as restated{®) — (as restated)®
(dollars in millions) (unaudited)
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments $271.1 $293.¢ $239.1 $209.( $ 45.7 $266.7 $269.¢
Property and equipment, r 59.5 59.2 54.¢ 41.F 28.4 74.€ 63.2
Total asset 432.7 491.( 464.1 337.C 130.2 434.¢ 428.1
Total debi 9.¢ 9.¢ 10. 11.4 12.¢ 9.3 9.t
Total stockholder equity 337.¢ 385.1 346.¢ 258.t 72.5 338.7 340.¢
Nine months ended
Fiscal year ended April 30, January 23/24,
Other non-financial data: 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 2004 2003
Average weekly television ratings
RAW:
USA Network — — 6.1 6.2 5.1 — —
SpikeTV 3.7 4.€ 5.C — — 3.7 3.7
SmackDown 34 4.C 4.6 4.7 — 3.3 34
Number of live event 327 237 212 20€ 19¢ 24z 253
Total attendanc 1,815,100 2,032,75. 2,449,801 2,485,100 2,273,70. 1,168,861 1,323,19I
Number of buys from our p-per-view
events 5,378,100  7,135,46. 8,010,400 6,884,601 5,365,10! 3,202,101  3,559,30I

* Source: Nielsen Media Research (Galaxy Explordr98— 4/30/04)

@

@)

®)

(4)

®)

(6)

Fiscal 2001 included a $7.0 million ($4.3 nuilli net of taxes) payment for the settlement afwesuit. Fiscal 2003 included a $5.9 million
charge related to the settlement of a lawsuit, lnttv $3.5 million was included in cost of revenaes $2.4 million was included in sellir
general and administrative expenses. Fiscal 205i8iatluded the receipt of $3.5 million which wasluded in selling, general and
administrative expenses for the favorable settléroa lawsuit. Nine months ended January 23, 200Mided the receipt of $5.9 million
which was included in selling, general and admiatste expenses for the favorable settlement afsuit.

Fiscal 2001 and 2000 included I-cash stock option charges of approximately $0.8ani($0.5 million, net of taxes) and approximat
$6.0 million ($3.7 million, net taxes), respectialelating to the granting of stock options totaer performers who are independent
contractors. In addition, fiscal 2000 included a+wash charge of $9.3 million ($5.7 million, nettaxes). In April 2000, we entered into a
non-forfeitable agreement with Viacom whereby Viacacquired approximately 2.3 million newly issuédes of our Class A common
stock at $13 per shar

Concurrent with the issuance of shares in oitial public offering in October 1999, we termiadtour election to be subject to the
provisions of Subchapter S and became subjecetpritvisions of Subchapter C of the United Statésrihal Revenue Code. The provis
for income taxes reflected in our historical coigatied financial statements through the date ofitial public offering relates only to
foreign and certain state income taxes for thostestthat did not recognize Subchapter S st

Our net (loss) income included the operatirsytts of our discontinued operatioif$ie Worldand the XFL, and their respective estimated
shutdown costs

Capital expenditures and other investing activjtiest are purchases of property and equipmentt asgaisitions and the net proceeds f
the sale of investment

We have restated our consolidated financial stat¢srees of and for the fiscal years ended AprilZm3, 2002 and 2001 and as of and
the nine months ended January 23, 2004 and JaB4aR003. Refer to Note 2 of the Notes to Constdiddinancial Statements regarding
the impact of this restateme
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Management’s discussion and analysis of finan@ab@ion and results of operations

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read togetfierthe consolidated financial statements
and the related notes included in this prospeaipplement. This discussion contains forward-loolstajements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results may differ matgrifrom those anticipated in those forward-loakstatements as a result of a number of
factors, including those set forth in “Risk Factbi/e have restated our consolidated financial statésrfer the nine months ended Januar
2004 and January 24, 2003 and for the periods eAgat30, 2003, 2002 and 2001. The accompanyingddgement Discussion and Analy:
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsegieffect to this restatement. Refer to Notesdos@lidated Financial Statements for furt
discussion regarding the impact of this restatement

BACKGROUND

We are an integrated media and entertainment coyrramcipally engaged in the development, produttod marketing of television
programming and live events and the licensing abel &f branded consumer products featuring ourlhigiccessful brands.

Our operations are organized around two principaviies:

Tt Live and televised entertainment, which congi§is/e event and television programming. Reventmssist principally of attendance at
live events, sale of television advertising time aponsorships, domestic and international telenisights fees and p-pel-view buys.

t Branded merchandise, which consists of licensirydirect sale of merchandise. Revenues includendrieting and sale of merchandi
magazines and home videos, and revenues from cemguoducts sold through third party license

Nine Months Ended January 23, 2004 compared to Ninglonths Ended January 24, 2003

January 23, January 24, better
Net Revenues 2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Live and Televise: $195.1 $209.4 ()%

Branded Merchandis 53.1 58.¢ (10)%

Total $248.2 $268.¢ (N)%
| |
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The following chart reflects comparative revenued key drivers for each of the businesses withinlive and televised segment:

January 23, January 24, better
Live and televised revenues 2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Live Events $ 47.4 $ 53.Z (11)%
Number of Event: 242 258 (4%
Average Attendanc 4,83( 5,23( (8)%
Average Ticket Price (dollar: $ 39.8i $ 39.3¢ 1%

Pay-Per-View $ 51.7 $ 59.2 (13)%
Number of buys from domestic g-per-view events 3,202,101 3,559,30! (10)%

Advertising $ 45.¢ $ 53.¢ (15)%
Average weekly household ratings RAW 3.7 3.7 —
Average weekly household ratings SmackDown 3.3 34 3%
Sponsorship revenus $ 4.8 $ 6.6 27)%

Television Rights Fee
Domestic $ 33.2 $ 28.¢ 15%
Internationa $ 16.¢ $ 14.C 20%

Of the $7.6 million decrease in pay-pgew revenues, approximately $6.8 million of thei@ace was due to the fact that the nine monthed
January 23, 2004 reflects eight pay-per-view evaastsompared to nine pay-per-view events in ther gear period. Revenues for our
January 25, 2004 pay-per-view eveRoyal Rumblewill be recorded in our fiscal fourth quarter. \M@duced 12 pay-per-view events in
fiscal 2004, consistent with recent years.

The decline in advertising revenues was due toeur agreement with UPN which began in October 2@08that date, UPN began to sell all
advertising inventory and pay us a rights fee.

The increase in domestic television rights fees pramarily due to rights fees received in connattigth our new agreement with UPN. This
increase was offset partially by $1.0 million faghts fees related to our form&ough Enouglseries that aired on MTV during the prior year
period and by $1.0 million related to two additibspecials that aired in the prior year period.
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The following chart reflects comparative revenued eertain drivers for each of the businesses wibhir branded merchandise segment:

January 23, January 24, better
Branded merchandise revenues 2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Licensing $ 18.1 $ 16.€ 8%

Merchandise $ 12.¢ $ 16.€ (23)%

Per capita spending (dollai $ 8.317 $ 8.52 (2%

Publishing $ 7.6 $  10.¢ (30)%

Net units solc 3,194,50! 4,827,20I (34)%

Home videc $ 10.2 $ 10.7 (4)%

Net units sold

DVD 831,70( 765,00( 9%

VHS 159,10( 400,30( (60)%

Total 990,80( 1,165,30! (15)%

] ]

Internet Advertising $ 3.8 $ 34 12%

Other $ 0.5 $ 0.5 —

Of the $3.8 million decrease in merchandise reven$&.7 million was due to the change that occundiscal 2004 from the direct sale of
merchandise to a licensing arrangement for merdbarsld at our Canadian and international liveneszen addition, $1.3 million was due to
lower domestic event sales resulting from lowerage attendance at our live events and the lowabeu of events held during the period.

Of the $3.3 million decrease in publishing reven$ds3 million was due to a decrease in the nurobspecial magazines published in the
current year as compared to the prior year pefitd, million was from a decrease in newsstand woikd and $0.8 million was from a decre
in subscription units sold for oRAWandSmackDownbranded magazines.

Although the total units sold of our home videos Hacreased from the prior year primarily due ¢to@t ordered injunction prohibiting the
sale of such titles containing our former logo, tbsulting revenue decrease was partially offsghbycontinued shift in platform from VHS to
DVD, which sells for a higher price per unit, asives the success of a recent three DVD set tifleel Ultimate Ric Flair Collectionwhich
sold approximately 89,000 units during the thitél quarter.

January 23, January 24, better
Cost of revenues 2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Live and televise $117.¢ $139.F 16%

Branded merchandis 28.1 36.C 22%

Total $145.¢ $175.F 17%
[ ] |

Profit contribution margit 41% 35%
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The following chart reflects comparative cost ofereues for each of the businesses within our Incttalevised segment:

January 23, January 24, better
Cost of revenues — Live and televised 2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Live events $36.7 $42.¢ 14%
Pay-pel-view $18.¢ $23.4 20%
Advertising $17.¢ $27.4 35%
Television production cos $36.4 $36.¢ 1%
Other $ 7€ $ 8.¢ 15%

Profit contribution margin was approximately 40% floe nine months ended January 23, 2004 as cothpaB3% for the nine months ended
January 23, 2003. The profit margin for the curgeriod was favorably impacted by the change indieN agreement, which was renewed in
October 2003 with modified terms. Under the prawisi of this new contract, we do not sell the adsieg inventory, but rather receive a fixed
rights fee for the program and a share of all atisiag revenue sold by UPN in excess of a certaimtractual amount. Under our former
agreement with UPN, we sold almost the entire athieg inventory related to oBmackDownprogramming. UPN participated in this reve
to the extent of the greater of a contractual pgege or a minimum guaranteed amount. The impattti®thange on our consolidated finan
statements is a reduction in advertising revenugshwas offset by an increase in television rigaes and the elimination of the participation
costs to UPN. Although there should be no mateffaict on our net income relative to this changgeims, it should result in a favorable
impact to our profit margins in future periods.Ilred in the prior year advertising cost of revenwas a $3.5 million charge related to the
William Morris Agency, Inc. settlement. Absent t§i8.5 million charge, the prior year margin was 35%

The following chart reflects comparative cost ofereues for certain of the businesses within oundied merchandise segment:

January 23, January 24, better
Cost of revenues— Branded merchandise 2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Licensing $ 4. $ 5.6 13%
Merchandise $10.< $15.2 33%
Publishing $ 5.2 $ 6.8 22%
Home videc $4.¢ $ 5k 11%
Digital media $ 223 $ 25 8%
Other $ 04 $ 0.3 (33)%
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Profit contribution margin was approximately 47% floe nine months ended January 23, 2004 as cothpaB9% for the nine months ended
January 23, 2003, the increase due to higher licgmeargins. The increase in our licensing margas wue to the mix of products sold during
the quarter that resulted in a higher percentagmpiroyalty bearing revenues in the current peaisdompared to the prior year period. In
addition, licensing revenues have high margingixeddo our other branded merchandise and duriagthirent quarter accounted for a higher
percentage of branded merchandise revenues as rhtpahe prior year period.

January 23, January 24, better
2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)
Selling, general and administrative exper $51.€ $70.¢ 27%
The following chart reflects the amounts and petrcbange of certain significant overhead items:

January 23, January 24, better
2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Staff relatec $31.€ $26.€ 7%
Legal and other professior 11.7 18.¢ 38%
Settlement of litigation, ne (5.9 (1.2 43€%
Advertising and promotio 2.8 7.1 61%
Bad debt (2.0) 14 24%%
All other 13.¢ 17.7 24%
Total SG&A $51.€ $70.€ 27%
| |
SG&A as a percentage of net reven 21% 26%

The increase in staff related expenses primarflgets an accrual related to incentive compensatiimaccrual was made in the prior year as
the incentive compensation is tied to the Compsipgrformance as compared to the budget. The ¢yreeiod reflects a $5.9 million favorat
settlement of litigation and the prior year perieflects the net impact of a $3.5 million favorabéstlement of litigation offset partially by a
$2.4 million unfavorable settlement of litigatiofhe decrease in advertising and promotion expemasgrimarily a result of costs incurred in
the prior year period related to our advertisingipaign associated with our new company name aral lbge decrease in bad debt expense
was a result of a payment received from a pay-pes-gervice in the current year that was fully reed for in the prior year.

January 23, January 24,
Stock compensation costs 2004 2003

(dollars in millions)

Option exchange progra $0.¢ $ —
Amortization of costs for restricted stock unitsugted June 20C 0.4 —
Total stock compensation co: $1.3 $ —

| |
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Stock compensation costs were $1.3 million forfitet nine months of fiscal 2004. During the thgdarter, we completed an exchange offer
that gave all active employees and independentaciors who held options with a grant price of $t higher the ability to exchange options,
at a 6 to 1 ratio, for restricted stock units,for,holders with fewer than 25,000 options, fortcas 75% of the average price during the offer
period of $13.28 per share. Overall, 4.2 milliotiops were eligible for the offer, of which 4.1 tiwh were exchanged for either cash or
restricted stock units. In exchange for the optiemslered, we granted an aggregate of 591,416ctestistock units and made cash paymen
the aggregate amount of approximately $0.9 milliwhich will result in a total compensation chargepproximately $6.7 million, of which
the cash payment of $0.8 million to employees veasnmded in our third fiscal quarter ended Janu&ry2R04, and the portion related to the
grant of the restricted stock units to employedkhvei recorded over the 24 month vesting periodaAssult, the compensation charge relat
the grant of restricted stock units will be recat@e follows: $0.1 million was recorded in the dhjuarter ended January 23, 2004,
approximately $1.9 million in our fourth quarterfifcal 2004, approximately $3.6 million in fis@005, and approximately $1.1 million in
fiscal 2006.

In June 2003, we granted 792,500 options at arceseeprice of $9.60 per share and granted 178@8ficted stock units at an average price
per share of $9.60. Such issuances were grant&tiders and employees under our 1999 Long-Terretitice Plan (the “Plan”). Total
compensation costs related to the grant of resttistock units, based on the estimated value afriite on the grant date, is $1.7 million and
will be amortized over the vesting period, whiclséven years, unless EBITDA of $65.0 million is fieetany fiscal year during the vesting
period. In that event, the unvested restrictedkstmits immediately vest and, accordingly, the uogired balance at that date would be
expensed. EBITDA is a measure of our operatingoperénce, and is defined in the Plan as earnings émntinuing operations before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization.

January 23, January 24, better
2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)
Depreciation and amortizatic $8.¢ $7.C 27%

The increase reflects amortization related to eaently acquired film libraries and depreciatioaagsated with our neWwWWEshopzone.com
commerce engine. In January 2004, we paid $20liomib pay off a lease on our corporate aircradtrf cash on hand. The purchase price of
the aircraft, net of a $9.5 million estimated resitvalue, will be depreciated on a straight-liasib over a 10 year period. As a result of this
purchase, annual depreciation expense will incrbgskl .1 million. This transaction should resulgimeduction in our net financing costs.

January 23, January 24, better
2004 2003 (worse)

(dollars in millions)
Interest incom $4.5 $1.3 24€%

S-16




Table of Contents

Management'’s discussion and analysis of financiabadition and results of operations

The increase reflects a higher overall rate ofrretun our investments in the current quarter amé, lesser extent, a $0.4 million unrealized
holding gain resulting from the revaluation of vearts received from two of our licensees using tlaelB Scholes model, taking into account
then current market assumptions.

January 23, January 24,
2004 2003
(dollars in millions)
Other income (loss), ni $1.C $ —

Included in the nine months ended January 23, 2@3a $0.4 million unrealized holding gain resgjtirom the revaluation of warrants
received from two of our licensees using the Bl&ckoles model taking into account then current etaaiksumptions.

January 23, January 24,
2004 2003

(dollars in millions)
Provision for income taxe $17.2 $5.7
Effective tax rate 38% 37%

Discontinued operation— The WorldIn fiscal 2003, we closed the operations of ouegatnment complexihe World. As a result, the
operations offhe Worldhave been reflected in discontinued operationarefrom discontinued operationsTdie World, net of taxes, was
approximately $0.1 million for the nine months esd@anuary 23, 2004, as compared to a loss fronomulisied operations, net of taxes, of
$25.2 million for the nine months ended January2®93. Included in income from discontinued operaifor the nine months ended
January 23, 2004 was $0.7 million of expense reteselncluded in the loss from discontinued operet for the nine months ended

January 24, 2003 was an impairment charge of $&20.4 million, net of tax). The shutdown charges8f9 million recorded in our fiscal year
ended April 30, 2003 in accordance with SFAS N& &d4sumed no sub-let income for fiscal 2004 andrasd 75% sub-rental income for
fiscal years 2005 through the end of the lease,tetmch is October 31, 2017. Although we are adyiseeking to sultet the property, we ha
not found a tenant. Our assumptions relating tostherental income and the related rent accrudloaiitinue to be monitored and adjusted
accordingly. Rental payments for fiscal 2005, aseagmo sub-let rental income, would be approxima$2.5 million.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2003 compared to Fiscatear Ended April 30, 2002

better
Net revenues 2003 2002 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Live and Televisel $295.¢ $323.t (9)%

Branded Merchandis 78.¢ 86.1 (8)%

Total $374.2 $409.¢ (9)%
| |
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The following chart reflects comparative revenued key drivers for each of the businesses withinlive and televised segment:

better
Live and televised revenues 2003 2002 (worse)
(dollars in millions)

Live Events $ 72.2 $ 74.1 (3)%
Number of Event: 327 237 38%
Average Attendanc 5,551 8,56z (35)%
Average Ticket Price (dollar: $ 38.8C $ 35.6¢ 9%

Pay-Pe-View $ 91.1 $ 112« (19%
Number of buys from domestic g-per-view events 5,378,10! 7,135,46 (25)%
Retail Price, excludinWrestleManie $ 29.9¢ $ 249 20%

Advertising $ 72.€ $ 83.€ (13)%
Average weekly household ratings RAW 3.7 4.€ (20)%
Average weekly household ratings SmackDown 34 4.C (15)%
Sponsorship revenu: $ 8.7 $ 13.2 (34)%

Television Rights Fee
Domestic $ 38.¢ $ 35.C 11%
Internationa $ 19.7 $ 18.2 8%

Of the $3.8 million increase in domestic televisights fees revenues, $1.6 million was due toxateative producer fee received related to a

feature film and approximately $1.1 million was daehe production of two additional television sjads in the period.

The following chart reflects comparative revenued eertain drivers for selected business withintmanded merchandise segment:

Branded merchandise revenues

2003

better
2002 (worse)

Licensing
Merchandise
Per capita spending (dolla
Publishing
Net units solc
Home Videa
Net units solc
DVD
VHS

Total

Internet Advertising

The decrease in licensing revenues was due toraaterof $3.3 million in toy royalties and $0.7lioil in apparel royalties offset partially br

$1.6 million increase in video game royalties.

$
$
$
$
$

(dollars in millions)

21.¢
22.4
9.1¢f
15.2

6,427,50!

13.€

916,20(
466,80(

1,383,001

4.8

$ 24.4 (11)%
$ 26.2 (14%
$ 8.4¢ 8%
$ 16.c (N%
6,867,70! (6)%
$ 13.€ 1%
625,90( 46%
1,041,201 (59%
1,667,101 17%
I
$ 4.4 11%
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Of the $3.8 million decrease in merchandise reven$2.9 million was due to a reduction in our wehand catalog sales. In addition,
$0.8 million was due to a decrease in sales aliveievents resulting primarily from lower attendarin the current year as compared to the

prior year.

Cost of revenues

2003

2002

better
(worse)

Live and Televise!
Branded Merchandis

Total

Profit Contribution Margir

Cost of revenues — Live and televised

(dollars in millions)

$190.€
46.7

$237.%

37%

2003

$194.-
56.¢

$251.1

39%

2002

2%
18%

6%

better
(worse)

Live Events
Pay-PerView
Advertising
Television
Other
Profit Contribution Margir

(dollars in millions)

$56.1
$36.7
$35.2
$50.2
$12.4
35%

$52.2
$42.5
$36.¢
$49.€
$13.C
40%

"%

14%
5%

L)%
5%

The decrease in the profit contribution margin was primarily to the $3.5 million impact of the \lam Morris Agency, Inc. settlement,
which was included in advertising cost of reventesluding the impact of this charge, the profihttdoution margin for fiscal 2003 was

approximately 37%.

Cost of revenues— Branded merchandise

2003

2002

better
(worse)

Licensing
Merchandise
Publishing
Home Videa
Digital Media
Profit Contribution Margir

(dollars in millions)

$ 6.6
$20.4
$94
$ 6.5
$ 3.3
41%

$ 9.8
$22.€
$10.C
$ 94
$ 5.C

34%

33%
10%

6%
31%
34%

The increase in the profit contribution margin wda in part to the absence of promotional costisdal 2003 related to a motor racing team
sponsorship. Such costs totaled approximately $@lén in fiscal 2002 and were included in licemgicost of revenues. The profit
contribution margin increase also was favorablyanipd by a decrease of $1.7 million in digital raecbsts primarily associated with

maintaining our website and by a $0.6 million deseein home video inventory write-offs.
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The following chart reflects the amounts and petrckange of certain significant overhead items:

better
Selling, general & administrative expenses 2003 2002 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Staff relatec $36.€ $ 37.4 2%
Legal and litigatior 18.4 14.€ (26)%
Consulting and accountir 8.9 8.9 —
Advertising and promotio 8.6 9.4 9%
Bad debt 3.8 1.C (280)%
License and contract terminati — 4.9 10C%
All other 23.C 27.C 15%
Total SG&A $99.2 $103.2 4%
| |
SG&A as a percentage of net reven 27% 25%

The increase in bad debt expense was relateditgdeht pay-per-view payments from a service prewahd from a cable system operating
under the bankruptcy code. Included in legal atigifion in fiscal 2003 was a $3.8 million offergettle a legal dispute partially offset by
$1.0 million of net favorable settlements. Liceasel contract termination costs arose from the taation of certain WCW license and related
agreements assumed in the WCW asset acquisition.

better
2003 2002 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Depreciation and amortizatic $11.C $10.€ (4)%

better
2003 2002 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Interest incom $2.C $10.€ (81)%

better
2003 2002 (worse)

(dollars in millions)
Interest expens $0.8 $0.8 —

The decrease in interest income is due to lowera@eeinterest rates earned on our investments lhasva loss of approximately $1.6 million
from an investment in mortgage-backed securities.

2003 2002

(dollars in millions)

Other (loss) income, ni $(0.9) $5.2
During fiscal 2003, we recorded a $0.6 million writown of investments deemed other-than-temporanipaired.

During fiscal 2002, we exercised certain warramis sold the related common stock resulting in & $dillion gain. In addition, prior to the
sale of this common stock, we recorded an incref$&.4 million from the revaluation of the warranbased upon our valuation using the
Black-Scholes model, using then current marketrapsions.
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Also in fiscal 2002, we wrote-down $2.9 million a&dd to certain warrants that we previously reakivem a television programming
distribution partner. As a result of the continaatline in the market value of this company’s comratwck coupled with our shortened
window to exercise, management determined thatsst was other-than-temporarily impaired.

Provision for income taxes 2003 2002

(dollars in millions)
Provision $10.€ $22.C
Effective Tax Ratt 40% 37%

The increase in the effective tax rate was duafmtal losses generated in the current year, wimia not be deductible for tax purposes. We
have determined that it is more likely than not thase losses will not be fully utilized and astsuve have recorded a valuation allowance
against these benefits.

Discontinued Operation— XFL. Income from discontinued operations was $4.6ionilfor the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002. Tkeults
from fiscal 2002 reflected the reversal of shutdoeserves that were no longer required and thegrétion of certain tax benefits.

Discontinued Operation— The WorldDuring fiscal 2003, as a result of continued losgesclosed the restaurant and retail operatiofhef
World. As a result, we recorded a charge of approxim&&®.1 million ($8.9 million, net of income taxe#f)e majority of which represented
the present value of our obligations under thdifga lease, less estimated sub-lease rental ircower the lease term. As of April 30, 2003,
we had a remaining accrual balance of approxim&&;3 million relating to the shut-down. Includedhe $10.3 million accrual was
approximately $9.9 million of accrued rent and otteated costs and approximately $0.4 milliondeverance related costs. The accrual for
rent and other related costs assumed no sub-iaotahe for fiscal 2004 and assumed 75% sub-remtalme for fiscal years 2005 through the
end of the lease term, which is October 31, 2017.

Loss from discontinued operationsTdie Worldwas $26.7 million, net of income taxes, for thedisyear ended April 30, 2003 as compared to
a loss from discontinued operations of $4.9 millinet of income taxes, for the fiscal year ended!A&0, 2002. Included in fiscal 2003 was an
impairment charge of $32.9 million ($20.4 milliamet of income taxes) as a result of impairmensteshducted on goodwill and other long-
lived assets related the World.

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2002 compared to Fiscatear Ended April 30, 2001

better

Revenues 2002 2001 (worse)
(dollars in millions)
Live and Televise: $323.5 $335.7 (4)%
Branded Merchandis 86.1 102.t (16)%
Total $409.¢ $438.: ()%
| |
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The following chart reflects comparative revenued key drivers for each of the businesses withinlive and televised segment:

better

Live and televised revenues 2002 2001 (worse)
(dollars in millions)

Live Events $ 74.1 $ 81.¢ (10)%
Number of Event: 237 212 12%
Average Attendanc 8,56: 11,55¢ (26)%
Average Ticket Price (dollar: $ 35.6¢ $ 32.6: 9%

Pay-Pe-View $ 112« $ 128. (13)%
Number of buys for our domestic [-pel-view events 7,135,46. 8,010,401 (11)%

Advertising $ 83.€ $ 90.2 (%
Average weekly household ratings RAW — Spike TV 4.6 5.C (8)%
Average weekly household ratings RAW — USA — 6.1 —
Average weekly household ratings SmackDown 4.0 4.€ (13)%
Sponsorship revenu: $ 13.2 $ 12.t 6%

Television Rights Fee:

Domestic $ 35.C $ 20.¢ 68%
Internationa $ 18.c $ 14.% 28%

Of the $14.1 million increase in our domestic téden rights fees, approximately $10.0 million whse to a domestic television distribution
agreement, which commenced in September 2000.

The following chart reflects comparative revenued eertain drivers for selected businesses withinboanded merchandise segment:

better

Branded merchandise revenues 2002 2001 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Licensing $ 24.4 $ 35.€ B1)%
Merchandise $ 26.2 $ 28.¢ (9)%
Per capita spending (dollai $ 8.4¢ $ 8.2¢ 2%
Publishing $ 162 $ 17 (4%
Net units solc 6,867,70! 7,594,40I (10)%
Home Videa $ 13.€ $ 12.2 11%
Net units sold
DVD 625,90( 167,90( 273%
VHS 1,041,201 1,285,70! (19)%
Total 1,667,101 1,453,601 15%
] ]
Internet Advertising $ 4.4 $ 5.6 )%
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Cost of revenues

better
2002 2001 (worse)

Live and Televise!
Branded Merchandis

Total

Profit Contribution Margir

(dollars in millions)

$194.. $188. (3)%
56.¢ 60.€ 6%
$251.1 $249.2 L)%
| |
39% 43%

The following chart represents comparative cosewénues for each of the businesses within ourdiattelevised segment:

Cost of revenue-live and televisec

better
2002 2001 (worse)

Live Events
Pay-Per-View
Advertising
Television
Other
Profit Contribution Margir

(dollars in millions)

$52. $60.¢ 14%

$42. $41.€ 2)%

$36.¢ $39.7 7%

$49.€ $38.€ (28)%

$13. $ 7.7 (69)%
40% 44%

The decrease in pay-per-view revenues substansietdgunted for the margin decline in this segment.

The following chart reflects comparative cost ofeues for selected businesses within our brandegdhrandise segment:

Cost of revenues-branded merchandise

better
2002 2001 (worse)

Licensing
Merchandise
Publishing
Home Videa
Digital Media
Profit Contribution Margir

(dollars in millions)

$ 9.8 $13.¢ 29%

$22.€ $23.¢ 5%

$10.C $ 9.7 (3)%

$ 9.4 $ 6.2 (52)%

$ 5.0 $ 4.8 )%
34% 41%

The decrease in profit contribution margin was ttuthe change in the mix of our revenues, couplid &n increase of $1.0 million in home

video inventory reserves and a $0.8 million incesiasour website costs.

The following chart reflects the amounts and petrclange of certain significant overhead items:
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better
Selling, general & administrative expense 2002 2001 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Staff relatec $ 37.4 $37.¢ 1%
Legal and litigatior 14.€ 16.1 9%
Consulting and accountir 8.9 9.1 2%
Advertising and promotio 9.4 5.4 (74)%
License and contract terminati 4.9 1.7 (188)%
All other 28.C 28.C —
Total SG&A $103.Z $98.1 (5)%
| |
SG&A as a percentage of net reven 25% 22%

The increase in advertising and promotion expensassdue primarily to our contractual agreementueipase $7.0 million of advertising time
during the year from a media company. This agreémen entered into in connection with our acquisitdf certain assets of WCW in

March 2001 and is in effect through June 2004. h$eeand contract termination costs arose fromettmination of certain WCW license and
related agreements assumed in the WCW asset g@puiSuch amounts totaled $4.9 million in fisc@D2 and $1.7 million in fiscal 2001.

better
2002 2001 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Depreciation and amortizatic $10.€ $4.8 (121)%

The increase in depreciation and amortization weesid part to the accelerated write-off of approadiety $2.1 million of architectural costs in
2002 related to our cancelled project in Las Vegasyell as higher depreciation and amortizatideted to increased capital spending in fiscal
2002 and 2001.

better
2002 2001 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Interest incom $10.€ $15.2 (B31)%

better
2002 2001 (worse)

(dollars in millions)

Interest expens $0.8 $0.9 11%

The decrease in interest income was a result ofl@verage interest rates in fiscal 2002.

2002 2001

(dollars in millions)

Other income (loss), ni $5.2 $(0.€)

During fiscal 2002, we exercised certain warramis sold the related common stock resulting in 8 $@llion gain. In addition, prior to the
sale of this common stock, we recorded an incre&$é.4 million from the revaluation of the warranbased upon our valuation using the
Black-Scholes model, using then current marketrapsions.
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Also in fiscal 2002, we wrote down $2.9 millionatdd to certain warrants that we previously reakivem a television programming
distribution partner. As a result of the continaatline in the market value of this company’s comratwck coupled with our shortened
window to exercise, management determined thatsst was other-than-temporarily impaired.

Provision for income taxes 2002 2001

(dollars in millions)

Provision $22.C $37.F
Effective Tax Ratt 37% 37%

Discontinued Operation— XFL.Income from discontinued operations of the XFL, afetninority interest and income taxes, was $4.gioni

for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002 as comgdoea loss from discontinued operations of $46ilian for the fiscal year ended April 30,
2001. The results from fiscal 2002 reflected thesreal of shutdown reserves that were no longerired and the recognition of certain tax
benefits. Included in the net loss for fiscal 20@ds a loss from operations of $31.3 million andsslon the shutdown of $15.6 million. The
estimated shutdown costs consisted primarily df,dease and labor obligations, write-offs of eéntfixed assets and accounts receivable and
inventory write downs.

On June 12, 2000, we sold approximately 2.3 milhiewly-issued shares of our Class A common sto@d atper share to NBC, for a total
investment of $30.0 million. As a result of thisat sale, which was at a below-market price, wended a deferred cost of $10.7 million,
which was being amortized over the 30-month terhefXFL broadcast agreement. Amortization of $8ilfion during fiscal 2001 was
reflected in discontinued operations. As a resutius decision to discontinue operations of the X#ke wrote off the remaining deferred cost
of $7.0 million in fiscal 2001. In May 2002, we gphased 2.3 million shares of our Class A comntooksfrom NBC for $27.7 million, whic
was a discount to the then market value of our comstock. We made this repurchase because we edlibat it was an appropriate use of
excess cash and was beneficial to our companytankih®lders.

Discontinued Operation— The WorldLoss from discontinued operationsTife World, net of income taxes, was $4.9 million for thedis
year ended April 30, 2002 as compared to $1.6anilfor the fiscal year ended April 30, 20t

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flows from operating activities for the ninenths ended January 23, 2004 and January 24, 26@8%49.3 million and $16.2 million,
respectively. Cash flows provided by operating\diidis from continuing operations were $51.7 mitliand $24.0 million for the nine months
ended January 23, 2004 and January 24, 2003, tasgecThe increase was due primarily to increaspdrating results in the current period,
as well as higher interest income earned. Workapgjtal, consisting of current assets less curiabtlities, was $259.5 million as of

January 23, 2004 and $275.1 million as of April 3003.
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Cash flows used for investing activities were $8%illion and cash flows provided by investing aittas were $81.9 million for the nine
months ended January 23, 2004 and January 24, g&j#ctively. Capital expenditures for the ninenthe ended January 23, 2004 were
$3.5 million, as compared to $8.9 million for theenmonths ended January 24, 2003. For fiscal 2084 stimate capital expenditures to be
approximately $6.0 million, which includes a corsien of our critical business and financial systetelevision equipment and building
improvements. During the nine months ended Jar2@&r2004, we acquired film libraries and certainestassets for approximately

$1.6 million. In January 2004, we paid $20.1 millim pay off a lease on our corporate aircraft ficaah on hand. The jet was acquired under
an operating lease in 2000. The transaction wikd@unted for as a capital acquisition in theentrperiod. As of April 30, 2004, we had
approximately $174.5 million invested in fixed-imoe mutual funds, which primarily held AAA and AAlterated instruments and

$46.4 million in United States Treasury notes. @uestment policy is designed to assume a minimtioredit, interest rate and market risk.

Cash flows used in financing activities for theenmonths ended January 23, 2004 were $27.9 madocompared to $29.2 million for the nine
months ended January 24, 2003. In June 2003, vehased, using our available cash on hand, appréeiyn2.0 million shares of our comm
stock from Viacom, Inc. for approximately $19.2 lioih, which was a slight discount to the then markaue of our common stock. This
transaction did not affect other aspects of ouir®ss relationship with Viacom. We made this repase as we believed that it was an
appropriate use of excess cash and was beneficalrtcompany and our stockholders. In additionpagan paying quarterly dividends of $
per share during fiscal 2004, which totaled $10iian through fiscal 2004. On April 27, 2004, doioard of directors declared a dividend of
$.06 per share on our Class A and Class B comnoohk giayable on July 8, 2004.

We have entered into various contracts under wivielare required to make guaranteed payments, iimgjud

t Performer contracts providing for future minimumaganteed payment

t Television distribution agreement with Viacom a#fie Spike TV through September 2005 that providethe payment of the greater o
fixed percentage of the revenues from the salelefision advertising time or an annual minimumrgnéeed amoun

t Various operating lease

t Employment contract with Vincent K. McMahon, whins through October 2006, with annual renewadsgafter if not terminated by us
or Mr. McMahon, as well as a talent contract with McMahon that is coterminous with his employmeontract.

t Employment contract with Linda E. McMahon, whicmsuthrough October 2005, with annual renewals #fegeif not terminated by us
Mrs. McMahon.

T Employment contracts with certain of cemployees, which are generally for -to thre«-year terms

T Service contracts with certain of our independemti@ctors, which are generally for «to four-year terms
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Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undesdfwntracts as of January 23, 2004 were as fallows

Payments Due by Period

May 1, 2004 May 1, 2006 May 1, 2008
January 23, 2004 to April 30, to April 30, to April 30,
to April 30, 2004 2006 2008 2009 Thereafter Total

(dollars in millions)

Long-term debt $ 0.2 $1.7 $1¢ $0.¢ $ 4.€ $ 9.3
Operating lease 0.6 1.8 1.3 0.1 — 3.8
Television programming agreeme 1.4 8.2 — — — 9.€
Other commitment 7.3 18.¢ 34 — — 29.€

Total commitments from continuir
operations 9.5 30.€ 6.€ 1.C 4.€ 52.Z
Operating lease —Fhe World @ 0.6 5.4 5.7 3.C 29.€ 44.c
Total $10.1 $36.C $12.: $4.C $34.2 $96.€
| | L] | L] L]

(1) Excludes any estimated <rental income

We believe that cash generated from operationsrandexisting cash and short-term investments béllsufficient to meet our cash needs over
the next twelve months including working capitalagerly dividends and capital expenditures.

SEASONALITY

Our operating results are not materially affectgédéasonal factors; however, because we operadiscal calendar, the number of pay-per-
view events recorded in a given quarter may varnaddition, revenues from our licensing and disaté of consumer products, including
through our catalogs, magazines and Internet sitag,vary from period to period depending on thkiwe and extent of licensing agreements
and marketing and promotion programs entered intong any particular period of time, as well as toenmercial success of the media
exposure of our characters and brand. The timirthexfe events as well as the continued introductiorew product offerings and revenue
generating outlets can and will cause fluctuatioquarterly revenues and earnings.

INFLATION
During the past three fiscal years, inflation hashrad a material effect on our business.
APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We believe the following are the critical accougtjpolicies used in the preparation of our finanstatements, as well as the significant
judgments and estimates affecting the applicatichese policies
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Revenue recognition

Pay-per-view programmingRkevenues from our pay-per-view programming arerdembwhen the event is aired and are based upoimitat
estimate of the number of buys achieved. Thisahéstimate is based on preliminary buy informatieceived from our pay-per-view
distributors. Final reconciliation of the pay-péew buys occurs within one year and any subsecadjnstments to the buys are recognized on
a cash basis. As of January 23, 2004, our pay-eer-&ccounts Receivable was $9.8 million. If ouitiad estimate is incorrect, it can result in
significant adjustments to revenues in subsequestsy

Television advertisingRevenues from the sale of television advertisirgracorded when the commercial airs within our progning and are
based upon contractual amounts previously estaulighth our advertisers. These contractual amoangsypically based on the advertisement
reaching a desired number of viewers. If an ad do¢seach the desired number of viewers, we reanordstimated reserve to reflect rebates or
future free advertising due to advertisers, basethe difference between the intended deliveryctadracted) and actual delivery of audiences.
As of January 23, 2004, our estimated reserve wakillion. If our estimated reserves are incarreevenues in subsequent periods would
have to be adjusted.

Home videoRevenues from the sales of VHS and DVD titles aperded when shipped by our distributor to wholersélretailers, net of an
allowance for estimated returns. The allowancesftimated returns is based on historical inforrma#iod current industry trends. As of
January 23, 2004, our home video returns allowarae$3.5 million. If we do not accurately predieturns, we may have to adjust revenue
future periods.

Magazine publishincPublishing newsstand revenues are recorded whppesthby our distributor to wholesalers/retaileet, of an allowance
for estimated returns. We estimate the allowanca@déwsstand returns based upon our review of dstioreturn rates and the expected
performance of our current titles in relation t@pissue return rates. As of January 23, 2004 pewsstand returns allowance was $4.2 mil
If we do not accurately predict returns, we mayehtvadjust revenues in future periods.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Our receivables represent a significant portionwfcurrent assets. We are required to estimatedtectibility of our receivables and to
establish allowances for the amount of receivatilaswe estimate to be uncollectible. We base th#ls@ances on our historical collection
experience, the length of time our receivablesoatstanding and the financial condition of indivadlgustomers. As of January 23, 2004, our
allowance for doubtful accounts was $2.9 millioma@ges in the financial condition of significanstamers, either adverse or positive, could
impact the amount and timing of any additional\almces that may be required.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance wittptogisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Incoaxes.” As such, we recognize the
future impact of the difference between the finahstatement and tax basis of assets and liabilifis of January 23, 2004, we had

$16.1 million of net deferred tax assets on ouahed sheet. In addition, as of January 23, 200hade$14.4 million of deferred tax assets
included in assets of discontinued operationsedlatimarily to the tangible and intangible assdtsur discontinued operations. We record
valuation allowances against deferred tax assatsthnagement does not believe the future tax he@eé more likely than not to be realized.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Amounts included in our consolidated balance sheetscounts that we have identified as being subgesignificant judgments and estimates
were as follows:

As of

January 23, April 30,
2004 2003

(dollars in millions)

Pay-per-view accounts receivab $9.8 $24.c
Advertising reserve for underdelive $5.C $ 6.9
Home video reserve for retur $3.5 $ 15
Publishing newsstand reserve for rett $4.2 $ 5.C
Allowance for doubtful accoun $2.9 $ 5.3

Accrued commissions that may be reversed pendmgukcome of litigatiol
— see Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financiakgtants for the periods
ended January 23, 2004 and January 24, $7.8 $64

The decrease in our pay-per-view accounts recevadlance was due to the timing of certain of @ay-per-view events. As of April 30, 2003,
the accounts receivable balance included approeisn&10.0 million related to our premier eveWrestleMania XIX which took place in
March 2003. In addition, the accounts receivablarizze included approximately $5.0 million relatecbur April 2003 pay-per-view event. As
of January 23, 2004, our January pay-per-view egliehhot air during this period and our most rearént as of January 23, 2004 was our
December 2003 pay-per-view event.

The decrease in our allowance for doubtful accoreftscts the payment of a previously fully reserbalance from a pay-per-view service
during fiscal 2004.

IMPACT OF RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standddard (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Acctig Standard (“SFAS”) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lohgred Assets.” During 2003, the economic conditisnsrounding our entertainment
complex in New York City and its continued weak @ig results indicated potential impairment. Ti@airment test prescribed by SFAS
No. 144 was performed and ultimately resulted imoe-cash pre-tax impairment charge of $30.4 millioat tivas recorded in fiscal 2003. In
conjunction with the impairment test above, it wasermined that goodwill related to the purchas€hef Worldwas also impaired and as a
result, we recorded an additional non-cash prestexge of $2.5 million in accordance with SFAS 842, “Goodwill and other Intangible
Assets”.
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In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Actiogrfor Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal iittes”. In February 2003, we closed
the restaurant operationsTdte Worldand in April 2003, we closed the retail operatiahthe facility. Total costs related to the shuwvdaf
these operations are estimated to be $8.9 milliehpf applicable tax benefits of $3.3 million amere recorded as discontinued operations in
our consolidated financial statements in fiscal200 accordance with SFAS No. 146.

RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14Rgscission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64edment of FASB Statement No. 13,
Technical Corrections.” This Statement amends iegstuthoritative pronouncements to make varioakrigal corrections, clarify meanings,
or describe their applicability under changed ctads. This statement became effective for us oy 22003 and does not have a material
impact on our operating results or financial positi

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretablo. (“FIN”) 45, “Guarantor’'s Accounting and Diesure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Inetiiss of Others.” The disclosure requirementddis were effective for financial
statements of interim or annual periods ending &ecember 15, 2002 and did not have a materiahdhpn our consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “Constilisieof Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 requsras to consolidate a variable interest
entity if we are subjected to a majority of the&krif loss from the variable interest entity’s aittes or entitled to receive a majority of the
entity’s residual returns, or both. We do not caotlehave any interests in variable interest eggitind, accordingly do not expect the adoption
of FIN 46 to have a material impact on our consbd financial statements.

In November 2001, the EITF reached a consensussue INo. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Gilsgra Vendor to a Customer
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products)hisTconsensus addresses income statement chazatiterissues and recognition and
measurement issues relating to consideration diyemvendor to a customer. As a result of this pumtement, we reclassified $1.7 million in
fiscal 2003 and $1.3 million in fiscal 2002 and 208F discounts previously classified as expensébea@rescribed accounting as a reduction of
revenue.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task FofeEl ") reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21,¢Rewx Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables.” EITF Issue No. (@t provides guidance on how to account for arrarggegsnthat involve the delivery or performance oftiple
products, services and/or rights to use assetspiichasions of EITF Issue No. 00-21 will apply venue arrangements entered into in fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adomtidhis consensus is not expected to have a matempact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accaumfor Certain Financial Instruments with Charaistics of both Liabilities and
Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for havissuer classifies and measures in its baldreet sertain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equityisleffective for us in the second quarter of 2064, because we have no instruments falling u
the provisions of SFAS No. 150, it will not haveimmpact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Management
DIRECTORS

The following sets forth, as of May 11, 2004, tlzenes, ages and positions of our directors witlif @syy.

Current position

Director Age with company Director since
Vincent K. McMahor 58 Chairman of the Boar 1980
Linda E. McMahor 55 Chief Executive Office 1980
Philip B. Livingston 47 Chief Financial Office 2003
Lowell P. Weicker, Jr. 72 — 1999
David Kenin 62 — 1999
Joseph Perkin 68 Consultar 1999
Michael B. Solomor 56 — 2001
Robert A. Bowmar 49 — 2003

Vincent K. McMahothas been Chairman of the Board of Directors sir®&9nd is Chairman of the Executive Committee. MtMahon is a
third generation sports entertainment promoterargtognized television personality. In 1972, McNahon joined his father’'s company,
Capitol Wrestling Corporation, where he assistethengrowth of the company’s television programmsggdication business. In 1979,

Mr. McMahon and his wife co-founded our predecesadive event promotion business called Titan &dn 1982, Mr. McMahon led Titan
Sports in its purchase of Capitol Wrestling frora father and its transformation of what had beegg@nal wrestling operation into an
international entertainment venture by expandimggbographic scope of our television syndicatiohaacing our national and international
production capabilities and leveraging pay-per-vaw close-circuit television technologies. In &iddito serving as Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. McMahon also continues to lead theative team that develops story lines and chaiséte our televised programming and |
events and is an important member of our cast dbpeers in our productions.

Linda E. McMabhor, our co-founder, has served as our Chief Exec@ifficer since 1997 and was our President from 1®&&3ugh June 2000.
Additionally, Mrs. McMahon has served on our Boafdirectors since our founding in 1980 and curseist a member of the Executive
Committee. As our Chief Executive Officer, Mrs. Malbn guides our global strategic direction and sses our day-to-day business
operations and the development of our technicaleamiinistrative functions. Mrs. McMahon also playiarge role in our community and
charitable programs, such as our Get R.E.A.L. natieducation and literacy programs and our Smagkddour Vote! initiative to encourage
voter registration and participation.

Philip B. Livingstorjoined the company as Chief Financial Officer ariceEtor in March 2003. He is a member of the Exe@eu€ommittee.
From 1999 to 2003 he was President and Chief ExecQfficer of Financial Executives Internationalprofessional association for senior
financial executives. He is a director and audihouattee chairman of Cott Corporation and Insurafiet Auctions Inc.

Lowell P. Weicker, Jiis Chairman of the Compensation Committee. Mr. \W&iserved as Governor of the State of Connedtiont 1991 to
1995. He served as a United States Senator repireséme State of Connecticut from 1970 to 1988. Weicker also serves as a director of
Compuware Corporation, HPSC, Inc., Phoenix Mutuadds and UST Inc.

S-31




Table of Contents

Management

David Keninis a member of the Audit and Compensation Comnstt8ace January 2002, Mr. Kenin has been ExecWMiiee President of
Programming, Hallmark Channel. Mr. Kenin is thenfier President of CBS Sports. Until 1994, he waschtree Vice President of USA
Networks and, after that, he was the general padiéenin Partners, a consulting firi

Joseph Perkinwas a pioneer in the television syndication of Wieg matches starting more than forty years agoidresident of
Communications Consultants, Inc., a consultanutocompany that provides us with television syngicansulting services.

Michael B. Solomois a member of the Audit and Compensation Comngttek. Solomon is Managing Principal of GladwynetRers, LLC,
a private equity fund manager. Prior to foundingdyne Partners in July 1998, Mr. Solomon wasiafét with Lazard Freres & Co. LLC.
Mr. Solomon joined Lazard Freres in 1981 and becarRartner in 1983.

Robert A. Bowmahas been a Director since 2003 and is ChairmalmeoAtdit Committee. Mr. Bowman is currently the €ttxecutive

Officer of Major League Baseball Advanced Mediagnehhe manages the interactive and Internet rightsll 30 clubs and the league. Prior to
joining Major League Baseball, he was President@nief Operations Officer of ITT Corporation, whdre previously served as Ch

Financial Officer. Mr. Bowman served as the Treastor the State of Michigan for eight years, oeeing its tax policy and collection and the
state’s pension fund. Mr. Bowman is a director ai&co, Inc. and serves on its audit and compe@msatimmittees.

OTHER EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Current position With company
Name Age with company since
Edward S. Cohe 48 EVP, Event Booking & Live Event 1982
Kevin Dunn 44 EVP, Television Produce 1986
Donna Goldsmitt 44 SVP, Consumer Produc 2000
Edward L. Kaufmar 45 EVP, General Counsel & Secret: 1997
Shane B. McMaho 34 EVP, Global Medi: 1994
James W. Ros 52 EVP, Business Strategi 1993
James A. Rothschil 43 SVP, North American Sale 1994
Kurt Schneide 38 EVP, Marketing 2003
Frank G. Serp 59 SVP, Finance & Chief Accounting Offic 1986

Edward S. Cohehas served as our EVP, Event Booking & Live Eveaitise October 2003, and for nine years before Heated as our SVP,
Event Booking & Live Events.

Kevin Dunnhas served as our EVP, Television Producer, sinlge2D03, and before that, served as our Execioglucer for 11 years.

Donna Goldsmitthas served as our SVP, Consumer Products, sing@Q00. Before that, Ms. Goldsmith was VP, Categdanagement, for
the National Basketball Association for 10 years.

Edward L. Kaufmaihas served as our EVP, General Counsel and Secsitae July 2003. Before that, he served as ol 8wl General
Counsel from March 1998 to July 2003, and as ouaN® General Counsel from January 1997 to Marci8.198 became our company’s
Secretary in May 2001.
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Shane B. McMahohas served as our EVP, Global Media, since July280d before that, served as our President, Digialia, since 1998.
Prior to that, Mr. McMahon worked in our New Yor&lss office and our television production studia. McMahon is the son of Vincent and
Linda McMahon.

James W. Roshas served as our EVP, Business Strategies, sipge2Q04. From July 2003 to April 2004, Mr. Rosaswour EVP, Talent
Relations. Before that, Mr. Ross served as our S\é@kent Relations, since 1997.

James A. Rothschihas served as SVP, North American Sales, since. M@ Rothschild has held senior positions with oampany since
1994.

Kurt Schneidehas served as our EVP, Marketing, since Februadg.2Before that, Mr. Schneider served as CEO ofisi, Inc. for two
years, and for three years before that, he serv&tPaMarketing, at Fox Sports N

Frank G. Serpthas served as our SVP, Finance & Chief Accountiffig€, since 1998. Mr. Serpe has held senior pmsstwith our company
since 1986.
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The selling stockholder is offering the sharesuf@lass A common stock described in this prospgestipplement and the accompanying
prospectus through the underwriters named belows SBcurities LLC and Natexis Bleichroeder Inc.thserepresentatives of the
underwriters. We and the selling stockholder havtered into an underwriting agreement with the @spntatives. Subject to the terms and
conditions of the underwriting agreement, eacthefunderwriters has severally agreed to purch&seumber of shares of common stock li
next to its name in the following table:

Number

Underwriters of shares
UBS Securities LLC 5,545,78|
Natexis Bleichroeder Int 291,88
Blaylock & Partners, L.F 61,44¢
First Albany Capital Inc 61,44¢
Janco Partners, In 61,44¢
MAXIM GROUP LLC 61,44¢
Stanford Group Compar 61,44¢
Total 6,144,90:
|

The underwriting agreement provides that the undag must buy all of the shares if they buy ahthem. However, the underwriters are not
required to take or pay for the shares coveredhbynhderwriters’ over-allotment option describetbine

Our common stock is offered subject to a numbeoofitions, including:

T Receipt and acceptance of our common stock byrterwriters; an

t The underwriter right to reject orders in whole or in pe

In connection with this offering, certain of thedemwriters or securities dealers may distributespeatuses electronically.
OVER-ALLOTMENT OPTION

The selling stockholder has granted the underverai@roption to buy up to an aggregate of 921,78#iadal shares of our Class A common
stock. The underwriters may exercise this optidalgdor the purpose of covering over-allotmentsgrny, made in connection with this
offering. The underwriters have 30 days from thie ad this prospectus supplement to exercise thti®o. If the underwriters exercise this
option, they will each purchase additional shaprgeximately in proportion to the amounts specifiethe table above.
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COMMISSIONS AND DISCOUNTS

Shares sold by the underwriters to the public initially be offered at the initial offering pricget forth on the cover of this prospectus
supplement. Any shares sold by the underwritesetmurities dealers may be sold at a discount 6 $0.31 per share from the initial public
offering price. Any of these securities dealers mesell any shares purchased from the underwtibensher brokers or dealers at a discount of
up to $0.10 per share from the initial public oiffigrprice. If all the shares are not sold at theahpublic offering price, the representativesy
change the offering price and the other sellingigerSales of shares made outside of the Uniteé<Staay be made by affiliates of the
underwriters. Upon execution of the underwritingesgnent, the underwriters will be obligated to pase the shares at the prices and upon the
terms stated therein, and, as a result, will tHegehear any risk associated with changing theraff price to the public or other selling terms.

The following table shows the per share and tatdlenwriting discounts and commissions that theérggBtockholder will pay to the
underwriters assuming both no exercise and fulte@se of the underwriters’ option to purchase upricadditional 921,736 shares.

No exercise Full exercise
Per Shart $ 0.517¢ $ 0.517¢
Total $3,179,99 $3,656,98!

We will not pay any of the expenses of this offgridiVe estimate that the total expenses of thigiaffepayable by the selling stockholder, not
including underwriting discounts and commission#|, lve approximately $250,000.

NO SALES OF SIMILAR SECURITIES

We, our executive officers, directors, the sellstgckholder and certain members of the McMahon lfathat hold our Class B common stock
have entered into lock-up agreements with the wndters. Under these agreements, we, the sellimgkbblder and each of these persons may
not, without the prior written approval of UBS Sdtias LLC, subject to certain permitted exceptiooffer, sell, contact to sell or otherwise
dispose of or hedge our common stock or secucdtiesertible into or exercisable or exchangeableforcommon stock. These restrictions
will be in effect for a period of 90 days after tiete of this prospectus supplement. At any tintevaithout public notice, UBS Securities LLC
may in its sole discretion, release all or somthefsecurities from these lock-up agreements. Dhaa§ lock up period may be extended for

to 37 additional days under certain circumstandesra/we release, or pre-announce a release ofaonings or material news or a material
event shortly before or after the termination & #9-day period.

We and the selling stockholder have agreed to imifgrthe underwriters against certain liabiliti@sgluding liabilities under the Securities A
and to contribute to payments the underwriters beayequired to make in respect of those liabilities

NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange under the symbol “WWE.”
PRICE STABILIZATION, SHORT POSITIONS

In connection with this offering, the underwritensly engage in activities that stabilize, maintaintherwise affect the price of our common
stock including:

T Stabilizing transaction:
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Underwriting

Tt Short sales

t Purchases to cover positions created by short;s
t Imposition of penalty bids; ar

t Syndicate covering transactiol

Stabilizing transactions consist of bids or purelsamade for the purpose of preventing or retardidgcline in the market price of our comn
stock while this offering is in progress. Thesesactions may also include making short sales ofodass A common stock, which involves
sale by the underwriters of a greater number ofeshaf Class A common stock than they are requogulirchase in this offering, and
purchasing shares of Class A common stock on tka aparket to cover positions created by short s&8lesrt sales may be “covered” shorts,
which are short positions in an amount not gretdi@n the underwriters’ over-allotment option reéerto above, or may be “naked” shorts,
which are short positions in excess of that amount.

The underwriters may close out any covered shaitipa by either exercising their over-allotmentiop, in whole or in part, or by purchasing
shares in the open market. In making this deteridinathe underwriters will consider, among oth@ngs, the price of shares available for
purchase in the open market as compared to the ariwhich they may purchase shares through theallment option.

Naked short sales are in excess of the-allotment option. The underwriters must closeauy naked short position, by purchasing shares in
the open market. A naked short position is morelyikko be created if the underwriters are concethatlthere may be downward pressure on
the price of the common stock in the open markat ¢buld adversely affect investors who purchaeetiis offering.

The underwriters also may impose a penalty bids Decurs when a particular underwriter repays ¢outiderwriters a portion of the
underwriting discount received by it because tipeasentatives have repurchased shares sold by threfaccount of that underwriter in
stabilizing or short covering transactions.

As a result of these activities, the price of ommeon stock may be higher than the price that atisermight exist in the open market. If these
activities are commenced, they may be discontirnyetthe underwriters at any time. The underwriteeywarry out these transactions on the
New York Stock Exchange or otherwi

The underwriters and their affiliates have provided may provide certain commercial banking, finalradvisory and investment banking
services for us for which they receive customagsfe

The underwriters and their affiliates may from titodime in the future engage in transactions witand perform services for us in the
ordinary course of their business.

Legal matters

Kirkpatrick & Lockhart LLP, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvaniepresented us and the selling stockholder ioffieeing. Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP,
New York, New York represented the underwriterthia offering.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inge tCompany”) as of April 30, 2003
and 2002 and the related consolidated statemeisesations, stockholderstjuity and comprehensive income (loss) and of flagrs for eacl
of the three years in the period ended April 3M2 @ hese financial statements are the resporngibilithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audgiagdards generally accepted in the United StdtAsnerica. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonatdeirance about whether the financial statemeat$es of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstaiements. An audit also includes asse:
the accounting principles used and significantnesties made by management, as well as evaluatirayérall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonablis fasour opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteg@resent fairly, in all material respects, timarficial position of World Wrestling
Entertainment, Inc. as of April 30, 2003 and 2004 the results of its operations and its cash flflawgach of the three years in the period
ended April 30, 2003 in conformity with accountipgnciples generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted Statieoié€inancial Accounting Standards No. 133 dutimg year ended April 30, 2002.
As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying conselitifihancial statements have been restated.
/s/ Deloitte and Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
June 13, 2003 (April 23, 2004 as to Note 2)
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(dollars and shares in thousands, except per shadata)

Fiscal year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
(as restated, (as restated, (as restated,
see Note 2 see Note 2 see Note 2
Net revenue $374,26« $409,62: $438,13¢
Cost of revenue 237,34 251,12 249,30¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 99,34¢ 103,19: 98,14:
Gain on sale of proper — — (1,249
Depreciation and amortizatic 10,96¢ 10,59¢ 4,771
Operating incomi 26,60 44,71 87,16¢
Interest incomt 2,011 10,59 15,30¢
Interest expens 783 784 85€
Other (loss) income, ni (897) 5,21: (63€)
Income from continuing operations before income=& 26,93¢ 59,73 100,97¢
Provision for income taxe 10,83¢ 22,02( 37,50
Income from continuing operatiol 16,10: 37,71 63,47¢
Discontinued operation
Loss from XFL operations, net of taxes of $17,6/@ minority interes — — (31,299
Estimated income (loss) on shutdown of the XFL,afd¢txes of $2,917
and $5,265 for fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectivaly minority interes — 4,63¢ (15,61
Income (loss) from discontinued operati—XFL — 4,63¢ (46,910
Loss fromThe Worldoperations, net of taxes of $16,359, $3,006 an®
for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectiv (26,69)) (4,909 (1,629
Estimated loss on shutdownThe Worldnet of taxes of $3,25 (8,86€) — —
Loss from discontinued operati— The World (35,559) (4,907) (1,629
Loss from discontinued operatio (35,559) (265) (48,539
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principlet of taxes of $91. — 1,48 —
Net (loss) incom: $(19,45%) $ 38,93¢ $ 14,93¢
| | |
Earnings (loss) per common st—basic and dilutec
Continuing operation $ 0.2Z $ 0.51 $ 0.8¢
Discontinued operatior (0.50 — (0.67)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ — 0.0z —
Net (loss) incomt $ (0.2¢) $ 0.5¢ $ 0.21
I I I
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic 70,62: 72,86 72,02t
Diluted 70,62: 72,86¢ 72,217

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

As of April 30,
2003 2002
(as restated, (as restated,
see Note 2 see Note 2
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $128,47: $ 86,39¢
Shor-term investment 142,64 207,40’
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtfaoamts of $5,284

and $2,840 as of April 30, 2003 and 2002, respelst 49,72¢ 63,76:
Inventory, ne 83¢ 1,451
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 18,44: 15,76(
Assets of discontinued operatic 21,12¢ 44,25¢

Total current asse 361,25¢ 419,03:

Property and equipment, r 59,32t 59,21¢
Intangible assets, n 4,62¢ 2,04t
Other asset 7,44 10,71t
Total asset $432,65: $491,00¢
| |
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt $ 777 $ 601
Accounts payabl 14,18¢ 19,49(
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 34,99 45,96:
Deferred incomt 24,66 23,19(
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol 11,55« 7,36¢
Total current liabilities 86,17: 96,61:
Long-term debt 9,12¢ 9,30z
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Class A common stock: ($.01 par value; 180,000G0e:

authorized; 18,215,427 shares and 18,184,177 stsateed as of

April 30, 2003 and 2002, respective 182 181
Class B common stock: ($.01 par value; 60,000, 0@0es

authorized; 54,780,207 shares issued as of Apyi2B03 and 200:. 54¢ 54¢
Treasury stock (2,578,769 shares and 100,000 sharefsApril 30,

2003 and 2002, respectivel (30,569 (1,139
Additional paic-in capital 297,31! 296,93t
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i 243 (525
Retained earning 69,63 89,08¢

Total stockholder equity 337,35: 385,09:

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $432,65: $491,00¢
I I

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars and shares in thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Other
Paid-in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) &nings Total
Balance, May 1, 200 68,167  $682 — 3 — $222,53! $ 10E $ 35,21t $258,53
Comprehensive incom
Net income (as restate — — — — — — 14,93¢ 14,93¢
Translation adjustmel — — — — — (175) — (17%)
Unrealized holding loss net of ti — — — — — (527) — (527)
Total comprehensive incon
(as restatec 14,23
Issuance of common sto 4,61¢ 46 — — 59,95¢ — — 60,00(
Stock issuance cos — — — — (5349 — — (5349)
Non-cash stock issuance chai — — — — 10,67: — — 10,67:
Stock option charg — — — — 1,09z — — 1,092
Exercise of stock optior 15C 1 — — 2,54¢ — — 2,55(C
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options — — — — 25¢€ — — 25€
Balance, April 30, 2001 (as restatt 72,93: 72¢ — — 296,52! (597) 50,15« 346,81
Comprehensive incom:
Net income (as restate — — — — — — 38,93t 38,93¢
Translation adjustmel — — — — — 37 37
Unrealized holding gain, net of ti — — — — — 35 — 35
Total comprehensive income
(as restatec 39,00
Purchase of treasury sto — — 10C (1,139 — — — (1,139
Exercise of stock optior 32 — — — 41% — — 413
Balance, April 30, 2002 (as restatt 72,964 72¢ 10C (1,139 296,93¢ (52%) 89,08¢ 385,09:.
Comprehensive los:
Net loss (as restate — — — — — — (29,459 (29,459
Translation adjustmel — — — — — 32z 322
Unrealized holding gain, net of ti — — — — — 44¢€ — 44¢€
Total comprehensive loss (as resta (18,68")
Purchase of treasury sto — — 2,48¢ (29,559 — — — (29,559
Proceeds from sale of treasury st — (17) 124 47 — — 77
Exercise of stock optior 32 1 — — 404 — — 40&
Tax benefit from exercise of sto
options — — — — 20 — — 20
Balance, April 30, 2003
(as restatec 72,99¢  $73C 2,57¢ $(30,569) $297,31! $ 243 $ 69,63 $337,35!
| L] | I I | I I

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
(as restated, (as restated, (as restated,
see Note 2 see Note 2 see Note 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) incomt $(19,45% $ 38,93t $ 14,93¢
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rshcprovided by (used i
operating activities
Loss from discontinued operations, net of 35,557 26& 48,53¢
Gain on sale of proper — — (1,249
Gain on sale of stock and revaluation of warrames — (5,287)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principlet of tax — (1,487) —
Depreciation and amortizatic 10,96¢ 10,59« 4,771
Amortization of deferred incorr (1,26%) (1,270 (407)
Provision for doubtful accoun 3,691 90C 1,23¢
Provision for inventory obsolescen 797 3,78( 803
Stock option charge — — 76C
Provision (benefit) for deferred income ta: 1,49(C (3,455 1,59:
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl 10,33« 7,38¢ (12,93¢)
Inventory (185) (2,086 (2,196
Prepaid expenses and other as (614) 5,68¢ (3,90¢6)
Accounts payabl (5,3072) 25 2,08¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit (10,729 6,40: 6,812
Deferred incomt 2,74( 10,17¢ (454)
Net cash provided by continuing operatis 28,03: 71,57 60,39/
Net cash used in discontinued operati (6,899 (18,58 (85,409
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 21,13¢ 52,98¢ (25,009
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipm (10,599 (12,499 (21,559
Asset acquisition (3,000 — (2,500
Sale (purchase) of sh-term investments, ni 65,41¢ (13,070 (87,799
Net proceeds from the sale of investme — 12,91« 11,30¢
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operat 51,82 (12,65 (100,549
Net cash used in discontinued operati (2,139 (5,179 (39,279
Net cash provided by (used in) investing operat 49,68¢ (17,839 (139,81¢)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of lor-term debi (601) (55€) (959)
Proceeds from capital lease agreen 601 — —
Common stock issued, including treasury stock veidsnet of stoc
issuance cos! 77 — 59,46¢
Repurchase of Class A common st (29,559 (1,139 —
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 40E 41% 2,55(
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing operat (29,072) (1,282) 61,05:
Net cash provided by discontinued operati 322 8,10( 46,41°*
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (28,750 6,81¢ 107,47.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 42,077 41,97( (57,359
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 86,39¢ 44,42¢ 101,77¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $128,47: $ 86,39¢ $ 44,42¢



SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period for income taxes, hetfonds
Cash paid during the period for inter

SUPPLEMENTAL NOMCASH INFORMATION:
Receipt of warrant

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$ 6,39¢

$

782

$ 7,741

$

782

$ 33,64¢
$ 85¢
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

1. Basis of presentation and business descripti

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiastade the accounts of World Wrestling Entertaimtyénc., and our wholly owned
subsidiaries. In 2003, we closed the operatiormuofentertainment compleXhe World. We recorded the results from operations of this
business and the estimated shutdown cost as disgedtoperations. In early May 2001, we discontthaperations of the XFL and
accordingly, reported XFL operating results anihestted shutdown costs as discontinued operations.

All significant intercompany balances have beemiglated. Certain prior year amounts have beengsifiad to conform with the current year
presentation.

We are an integrated media and entertainment coynpaincipally engaged in the development, produttind marketing of television
programming and live events and the licensing atel &f branded consumer products featuring our Wftestling Entertainment brand of
entertainment. Our continuing operations are omgharound two principal activities:

« Live and televised entertainment, which consistévefevent and television programming. Revenuessist principally of attendance at live
events, sale of television advertising time andispeships, domestic and international televisights fees and p-per-view buys.

» Branded merchandise, which consists of licensirhdirect sale of merchandise. Revenues include sdleonsumer products through th
party licensees and direct marketing and saleses€inandise, magazines and home vid

Our discontinued operations consisted primariljoold and beverage and retail revenues generatedduw entertainment complex and
revenues from attendance at live events, saldafision advertising time and sales of consumedpcts from the XFL.

2. Restatement

Subsequent to the issuance of our financial statesvier the year ended April 30, 2003, we determhitat certain changes should be made to
the accounting related to the March 2001 acquisitibcertain assets of World Championship Wrestling. (“WCW”) and that our financial
statements should be restated to reflect such esaSpecifically, $1,655 capitalized as intangdssets during fiscal 2001 and $4,900
capitalized as intangible assets in fiscal 200Zhawv been accounted for as selling, general anmdnéstrative expense during those periods.
These costs arose from the termination of certa@WWMicense and related agreements assumed inathgatrtion. In addition, the $2,500
purchase price, which had been classified as afimite lived intangible asset and thus not amerdijzs now being amortized over an
estimated useful life of six years resulting in ididdal amortization expense of $35, $420 and $4tscal 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

There were no changes to revenues or cost of regaamia result of this restatement.

We have also changed the presentation of certher atformation in our financial statements asdat: (1) a $1,249 gain on sale of property
during fiscal 2001 previously included in “interéstome and other, net” has been reclassifieda@srgponent of operating income, (2) the
cumulative effect of the change in accounting pplecof $2,398 included in “interest income andestmet”in fiscal 2002 has been reclassil
as a separate line, after “loss from discontinyselations” and before “net (loss) income” and pnése net of tax, and (3) interest income and
other, net has been reclassified as separatedims ifor each period presented, instead of beinghated as a single line item as previously
reported.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

Additionally, certain disclosures previously omitteave been included in the Notes herein. Theviafig is a summary of the information
restated and included in the Notes that have beganeled and revised:

Note 3, “Summary of Significant Accountinglieies— Derivatives” and Note 6, “Investments” inde disclosure of revenue recorded
related to warrants received and subsequent asalpsi impairment of such warrants.

Note 8, “Accrued Expenses and Other Liakt#itincludes additional disclosure related to the congmis of accrued expenses and liabil
previously included in “Accrued other”.

Note 12, “Stockholders’ Equity”, includes ditlthal disclosure related to the Company’s cofitiglstockholder.

Note 18, “Discontinued Operations” includesligéional disclosure related to the major compose@rfithe shut-down costs in connection
with closing our operations dhe Worldand the XFL.

The effect of this restatement on previously regamounts is summarized as follows:

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

For the YeaEnded

April 30, 2003 April 30, 2002 April 30, 2001
As As As
Previously As Previously As Previously As
Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated
Consolidated Statements of Operatic
Selling, general and administrative
expense: $ 99,34¢ $ 99,34¢ $98,29: $103,19: $ 96,48¢ $ 98,14:
Gain on sale of proper — — — — — (1,249
Depreciation and amortizatic 10,54¢ 10,96¢ 10,17« 10,59« 4,73€ 4,771
Operating incomi 27,021 26,60 50,03: 44,715 87,60¢ 87,16¢
Interest income and other, r 1,11¢ — 18,20: 15,91¢ —
Interest incomt — 2,011 — 10,591 — 15,30¢
Other (loss) income, ni — (897) — 5,21: — (63€)
Income from continuing operations
before income taxe 27,35¢ 26,93¢ 67,45 59,73 102,66 100,97¢
Provision for income taxe 10,99¢ 10,83¢ 24,95: 22,02( 38,14: 37,50:
Income from continuing operatiol 16,36: 16,10: 42,49¢ 37,71 64,52¢ 63,47¢
Cumulative effect of change
accounting principle, n¢ — — — 1,487 — —
Net (loss) incoms $(19,19%) $(19,45%) $42,23: $ 38,93t $ 15,987 $ 14,93¢
Earnings (loss) per she— basic anc
diluted:
Continuing operation $ 0.2% $ 0.22 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.51 $ 0.9C $ 0.8¢
Cumulative effect of change
accounting principli $ — $ — $ — $ 0.0z $ — $ —
Net (loss) incomt $ (0.29) $ (0.29) $ 0.5¢ $ 0.52 $ 0.22 $ 0.21
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

As of April 30, 2003 As of April 30, 2002
As As
Previously As Previously As
Reported Restated Reported Restated
Consolidated Balance Shee
Intangible assets, n $ 12,05t $ 4,62¢ $ 9,05t $ 2,04f
Other asset 4,62: 7,447 8,051 10,71¢
Total asset 437,25 432,65 495,35 491,00¢
Retained earning 74,24( 69,63 93,43t 89,08¢
Total stockholder equity 341,95¢ 337,35¢ 389,43t 385,09:.
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $437,25' $432,65: $495,35: $491,00¢

3.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in comity with generally accepted accounting principleguires our
management to make estimates and assumptiondfinztttae reported amounts of assets and lialslisied disclosures of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of revenue and expensieg dhe reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Fiscal Period — Our fiscal year ends on April 30 of each year. Wsletherwise noted, all references to years reddiscal years, not calend
years and refer to the fiscal period by using tharyn which the fiscal period ends. Our fiscalrtgrs are thirtee-week periods that end on the
thirteenth Friday in the quarter, with the exceptid our fourth quarter, which always ends on AB€l

Cash and Cash Equivalents- Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depasiernight deposit accounts and investmentadney
market accounts.

Short-term Investments— We classify all of our short-term investmentsagailable-for-sale securities. Such short-ternegtnents consist
primarily of United States government and fedegarecies securities, corporate commercial papepotate bonds, mutual funds and
mortgage-backed securities, all of which are statadarket value, with unrealized gains and lossesuch securities reflected, net of tax, as
other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholdegsity. Realized gains and losses on short-terrasimvents are included in earnings and are
derived using the specific identification method determining the cost of securities sold. As ofiARO, 2003, the fair value of our short-term
investments were approximately $148 greater thahad as of April 30, 2002, the fair value was&&iwver than cost. We recorded
unrealized income (losses) of $446, net of taxed,${163), net of taxes, for 2003 and 2002, resgagt which was included in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss). It is our interrhaintain a liquid portfolio to take advantageénvestment opportunities; therefore, all
securities are considered to be available-for-gatbare classified as current assets.

Accounts Receivab — Accounts receivable relate principally to amautitie to us from pay-per-view providers and telexisietworks for
pay-per-view presentations and television programgmiespectively and balances due from the salel®fision advertising, home video and
magazines. Our receivables represent a signifjpariton of our current assets. We are requiredstionate the collectibility of our receivables
and to establish allowances for the amount of vatBés that we estimate to be uncollectible. We hhase allowances on our historical
collection experience, the length of time our reables are outstanding and the financial conditibimdividual customers.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

Inventory — Inventory consists of merchandise sold on actiiseles basis, and videotapes and DVDs, whickadethrough wholesale
distributors and retailers. Substantially all of owentory is comprised of finished goods. Inventis stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-
out basis) or market. The valuation of our inveig®requires management to make market estimatessisg the quantities and the prices at
which we believe the inventory can be sold.

Property and Equipmer — Property and equipment are stated at histocigst less accumulated depreciation and amortizaflepreciation
and amortization is computed on a straight-linésager the estimated useful lives of the asseta/loen applicable, the life of the lease,
whichever is shorter. Vehicles and equipment appatgated based on estimated useful lives varyio three to five years. Buildings and
related improvements are amortized over the lesfsiie remaining useful life of the buildings oetanticipated life of improvements.

Leased Property Under Capital Leas — Property under capital leases is amortized thweshorter of the lives of the respective leaséhe
estimated useful lives of the assets.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets- In May 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accougfior the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets”. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we pécalty evaluate the carrying value of long-livedets when events and circumstances
warrant such a review. During 2003, the economit@@ns surrounding our entertainment complex @awNyork City, The Worldand its
continued weak operating results indicated poteimipairment. In accordance with the prescribedaating, an impairment test was
performed which ultimately resulted in a non-casfttax impairment charge of $30,392 that was remid fiscal 2003 and reflected in
discontinued operations.

Income Taxe — We account for income taxes in accordance whighprovisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Inte Taxes.” Our
deferred provision was determined under the asgktiability method. Under this method, deferrededs and liabilities are recognized based
on differences between financial statement andnrectax basis of assets and liabilities using prsenacted tax rates. Valuation allowances
are established to reduce deferred tax assets ivisemore likely than not that some portion ord@ithe deferred tax assets will not be realized.
We consider estimated future taxable income andioggax planning strategies in assessing the faradhluation allowances.

Revenue Recognitic — Revenues are generally recognized when productsh@sped or as services are performed. Howevertalthes natur
of several of our business lines, there are additisteps in the revenue recognition process, sitted below.

« Pay-per-view programming:

Revenues from our pay-per-view programming arercezbwhen the event is aired and are based upoimitial estimate of the number of
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based @limpinary buy information received from our pay—wew distributors. Final reconciliation of
the pay-per-view buys generally occurs within oraryand any subsequent adjustments to the buysargnized on a cash basis.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

* Television advertising:

Revenues from the sale of television advertisimgracorded when the commercial airs within our progning and are based upon contractual
amounts previously established with our advertisEngse contractual amounts are typically basetth@advertisement reaching a desired
number of viewers. If an ad does not reach thereld@siumber of viewers, we record an estimated vederreflect rebates or future free
advertising due to advertisers, based on the difisg between the intended delivery (as contraetedactual delivery of audiences.

* Licensing:

Licensing revenues are recognized upon receipbtiéen by the individual licensees as to license fge. If we receive licensing advances,
such payments are deferred and recognized as incnrae as earned basis.

* Home Video:

Revenues from the sales of home video titles ar@rded when shipped by our distributor to wholesaleetailers, net of an allowance for
estimated returns. The allowance for estimatedmstis based on historical information and curiedustry trends.

* Magazine publishing:

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whppesthby our distributor to wholesalers/retaileet, af an allowance for estimated returns.
We estimate the allowance for newsstand returnsdoagon our review of historical returns rates tredexpected performance of our current
titles in relation to prior issue return rates.

Advertising Expens — Advertising costs are expensed as incurred,@xoe costs related to the development of a megonmercial or media
campaign which are expensed in the period in witielcommercial or campaign is first presented.

Foreign Currency Translatio — For translation of the financial statements wf Ganadian and United Kingdom subsidiaries, weshav
determined that the Canadian Dollar and the U.Kinelcare the functional currencies. Assets andliieglsi are translated at the year-end
exchange rate, and income statement accountsaasdated at average exchange rates for the yeaneBhlting translation adjustments are
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive incammemponent of stockholders’ equity. Foreign aueyetransactions are recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date.

Stock-Based Compensatier We account for stock-based compensation usiagntiinsic value method as prescribed under Actingn
Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No 25, “Accountirfgr Stock Issued to Employees,” and related imgtions. Under this method, no
compensation expense is recognized when the nuofilséiares granted is known and the exercise pfitleecstock option is equal to or greater
than the market price of our stock on the grant date follow the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation— Transition and Disclosure”, and SRS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensati@FAS Nos. 148 and 123
encourage, but do not require, companies to adfgit galue based method for determining expenkae to stock-based compensation (See
Note 12).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

The fair value of options granted to employeesciig amortized to expense over the option vegigrgpd in determining the pro forma
impact, is estimated on the date of the grant uia@Black-Scholes option-pricing model with thédwing assumptions:

April 30,
2003 2002 2001
Expected life of optiol 3 year: 3 year: 3 year:
Risk-free interest rat 2.5% 3.4% 4.5%
Expected volatility of our common sto 38% 67% 71%
2003 2002 2001

Weighted average fair value per share of each ogianted tc
employee: $ 37: $648 % 7.21
Total number of options granted to employ 1,219,001 5,00(¢ 1,481,201
Total fair value of all options granted to employ $ 454 $ 32 $ 10,67%

Had compensation expense for our stock options beEmrgnized based on the fair value on the graet utader the methodology prescribed by
SFAS No. 123, our income from continuing operatiand basic and diluted earnings from continuing-af@ns per common share for 2003,
2002 and 2001 would have been impacted as shote ifollowing table:

Year Ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Reported income from continuing operatic $16,10: $37,71¢  $63,47¢
Pro forma income from continuing operatic $12,50( $32,32(  $55,39(
Reported basic and diluted earnings from continojpgrations per commc

share $ 0.22 $ 051 $ 0.8¢
Pro forma basic and diluted earnings from contiguiperations pe

common shar $ 0.1¢ $ 044 $ 077

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, the weighted ayesfair value of stock options granted to employeas based on a theoretical statistical
model using assumptions. In actuality, becausestmak options are not traded on any exchange, gretocan receive no value nor derive any
benefit from holding stock options under these phaithout an increase in market price of our commstmek. Such an increase in stock price
would benefit all stockholders commensurately.

Derivative Instrument — We hold warrants received from certain publithded companies with whom we have licensing dridigion
agreements. Warrants received from our licensegs delevision programming distributor were inifalecorded at their estimated fair value
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes ogtiicing model. That corresponding amount is reedrds deferred revenue and is amortized
into operating income over the life of the relatgpieements using straiglite amortization. For the fiscal years ended A6 2003, 2002 ar
2001, we recorded revenues of $1,268, $1,270 a@d, $dspectively, related to the amortization deded revenue resulting from the receipt
of such warrants. We do not utilize derivative instents for speculative purposes or to hedge quo®xe to interest rate or foreign currency
risks. Upon adoption of SFAS 133 “Accounting forrDative Instruments and Hedging Activities” we ogoized $1,487, net of tax, as a
cumulative effect of change in accounting principléiscal 2002, as a result of adjusting warrdattheir estimated fair value.
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Goodwill & Other Intangible Assets— In July 2001, SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinaticend SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” were released. We elected tly @alopt SFAS No. 142 as of May 1, 2001. As requlvg SFAS No. 142, we performed an
impairment test on intangible assets as of the tamtogate and on goodwill within six months fronettiate of adoption. We completed this
transitional impairment test and deemed that naimpent loss existed. During 2003, the economiddams surroundind@he World and its
continued weak operating results indicated potemtipairment of the site’s long-lived assets anddwill. As a result of the indicated
impairment, a valuation was performed on the sik @timately resulted in the recording of a writewn of the long-lived assets and our
goodwill related to the purchase of the site. Thi#geadown of the goodwill resulted in a non-cashk-pax impairment charge of $2,533 during
the third quarter of fiscal 2003. Upon shut-dowrTbé Worldin the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, this amourtsweclassified to loss from
discontinued operations. As of April 30, 2003 a2 we had finite lived intangible assets withealmook value of $4,625 and $2,045,
respectively. Of our $4,625 of intangible asse8s0@0 relates to an acquired film library whiclamortized over three years and $1,625 relates
to trademarks and trade names which are amortivedsix years. Our intangible assets are being tiedrover their estimated useful lives
based on the period the assets are expected tabeatto our cash flows. We perform impairmentsesinually and whenever events or
circumstances indicate that intangible assets nighinpaired.

Discontinued Operation — In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, tdeting for Costs Associated with Exit or DispoAativities”.
This statement requires companies to recognize essiciated with exit or disposal activities wtirexy are incurred rather than at the date
commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS Nd& 4o be applied prospectively to exit or dispa@sdivities initiated after December 31,
2002. In February 2003, we closed the restauraerabions affhe Worldand in April 2003, we closed the retail operatiahthe facility. Total
costs related to the shut down of these operatiomgstimated to be $8,866, net of applicable &mefits of $3,257 and were recorded as
discontinued operations in fiscal 2003, in accooganith SFAS No. 146.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 146, we accoufieeeur discontinued XFL operations in accordawith Accounting Principles Board
Opinion (“APB”) No. 30, “Reporting the Results opérations— Reporting the Effects of Disposal okgi8ent of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurringets and Transactions”. Total income or loss eelab our discontinued XFL operations
net of taxes were $4,638 and ($46,910) for thesyeaded April 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme — In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, 8Rission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of SFAS No. 13, and Technical Correctionkis Statement amends existing authoritativenptmcements to make various
technical corrections, clarify meanings, or desetiieir applicability under changed conditions.sT$tatement became effective for us on
May 1, 2003 and does not have a material impaciuroperating results or financial position.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretablo. (“FIN”) 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Diesure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Irethietss of Others.” The disclosure requirementddfdb were effective for financial
statements of interim or annual periods ending &@fecember 15, 2002 and did not have a materiaaghpn our consolidated financial
statements.
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In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “Constilisieof Variable Interest Entities.” FIN 46 requsras to consolidate a variable interest
entity if we are subjected to a majority of thekrig loss from the variable interest entity’s aittes or entitled to receive a majority of the
entity’s residual returns, or both. We currentlgde a corporate jet, which is not held in a vagidhierest entity, and accordingly, is accounted
for as an operating lease. We do not currently lzyeinterests in variable interest entities ardpadingly do not expect the adoption of

FIN 46 to have a material impact on our consoliddigancial statements.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task FofeEl ") reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21,¢Rewx Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables.” EITF Issue No. (@t provides guidance on how to account for arrarggegsnthat involve the delivery or performance oftiple
products, services and/or rights to use assetspiidwsions of EITF Issue No. 00-21 will apply ®venue arrangements entered into in fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adomtidhis consensus is not expected to have a matempact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In November 2001, the EITF reached a consensussue INo. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Givra Vendor to a Customer
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products)iisTconsensus addresses income statement chazatiteriissues and recognition and
measurement issues relating to consideration diyemvendor to a customer. As a result of this pumtement, we reclassified $1,697, $1,303
and $1,347 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respelgtiof discounts previously classified as expengeke prescribed accounting as a redur

of revenue.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accingnfor Certain Financial Instruments with Charaistiics of both Liabilities and
Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for havissuer classifies and measures in its baldrext sertain financial instruments with
characteristics of both liabilities and equityisleffective for us in the second quarter of 2004, because we have no instruments falling u
the provisions of SFAS No. 150, it will not haveiempact on our consolidated financial statements.

4. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and diluted egper share, we used the following weighted gec@mmon shares outstanding:

Year Ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Weighted average common shares outstant

Basic 70,621,89 72,861,79 72,025,22
Diluted 70,623,12 72,865,62 72,216,87
Dilutive effect of outstanding optior 1,231 3,82 191,64¢
Anti-dilutive outstanding option 6,869,45! 5,306,75! 5,454,50!

5. Intangible Assets

In March 2003, we acquired a film library and certather assets for $3,000 from an unaffiliatedf@ssional wrestling organization. We have
classified these costs as intangible assets ahamdrtize them over the expected period of, angr@portion to, the expected revenues to be
derived from this film library. In March 2001, weguired substantially all of the intellectual prayeand certain other assets of WCW,
including trademarks, trade names, their film Ifgrand other intangible assets for $2,500. Thelmse price of these assets was assigned to
the trademarks and trade names.
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As of April 30, 2003

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film library $3,00( $ — $3,00(
Trademarks and trade narn 2,50( (875) 1,62¢
$5,50( $(875) $4,62¢
| | |
As of April 30, 2002
Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Trademarks and trade nar $2,50( $(45E) $2,04¢
| | |
Amortization expense recorded for the years endaul 20, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $420, $420 and &3pectively.
The following table represents the estimated ammaitin expense:
For the year ended April 30, 20 $1,42(
For the year ended April 30, 20 1,42(
For the year ended April 30, 20 1,42(
For the year ended April 30, 20 36E
Total $4,62¢
|
6. Investments
Short-term investments consisted of the following:
April 30, 2003
Unrealized
Cost Holding Gain Fair Value
Government obligation $ 63,75¢ $— $ 63,75¢
Mutual funds 40,023 14¢ 40,17
Corporate obligations and ott 38,71 — 38,71
Total $142,49: $14¢ $142,64:
| | |
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April 30, 2002
Unrealized

Cost Holding Loss Fair Value
Government obligation $ 26,72 $ — $ 26,72t
Corporate obligations and other 129,76: (51¢) 129,24!
Mortgage backed securiti 51,43: — 51,43:
Total $207,92! $(51¢) $207,40°
I | I

(2) Infiscal 2003, we recorded to other income, andimpent charge of approximately $613 related totaier stock we helc

In addition to the short-term investments includédve, we received warrants from three publiclgethcompanies with whom we had
licensing agreements. The estimated fair valub@fitarrants on the date of receipt aggregated ajppately $2,353, and was included in ot
assets in fiscal 2001. In connection with the aidopdf SFAS No. 133 in fiscal 2002, we recordedumalative effect adjustment of $1,487, net
of taxes, as a result of adjusting these warrantiseir fair values. Subsequent to the adoptioBFAS No. 133, during fiscal 2002 we recorded
a $1,414 increase to other (loss) income baseberevaluation of these warrants. The warrantswveddrom two of these publicly traded
companies were then exercised and the related staslsold in fiscal 2002, generating a net gaifigg757. The carrying amount of the
outstanding warrants for the third publicly tradenpany was $7 as of both April 30, 2003 and 2@03, was included in other assets.

We also received warrants during fiscal 2001 fropublicly traded company with whom we had a televigprogramming distribution
agreement. The estimated fair value of these wer@mthe date of receipt was approximately $2,88d,was included in other assets. These
warrants were treated in a different manner dubeosolume of stock that we could acquire undemtberants, if exercised, as compared to the
total shares of common stock outstanding of thimmany. This prevented us from being able to reaxdilyvert the warrant to cash and
accordingly the warrants were not considered dévies. Therefore, any fair value adjustments weoarded through equity as a component of
other comprehensive income. By the third quartdisofl 2002, it became clear that the continuiaglide in the market value of the common
stock of this company would not reverse. This, ¢edipvith the shortened window to exercise, causadagement to make a determination
these warrants were other-thmporarily impaired and, accordingly, we wrote fiadance down to zero, resulting in a charge 08&2, whict
was included in other (loss) income. These warrexpsred unexercised in February, 2003.
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7.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

April 30,

2003 2002

Land, buildings and improvemer
Equipment

Vehicles

Property under capital lea

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize

Total

$51,05: $51,90¢
40,33: 37,40¢
63¢ 76¢
1,51¢ —

93,531 90,08:
34,21: 30,86¢

$59,32¢ $59,21¢

In fiscal 2001 we sold a facility and received peiceeds of $11,305 and recognized a gain of $1,249

8.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisteth@following:

9.

Debt

April 30,

2003 2002

Accrued pa-per-view event cost

Accrued settlement offe

Accrued income taxe

Accrued talent royaltie

Accrued payroll related cos

Accrued television cos

Accrued legal & professional fe:

Accrued home video production and distribut
Accrued publishing print and distributic
Accrued othe

Total

Debt as of April 30, 2003 and 2002 consisted offtlewing:

$ 5,58( $ 6,047
3,75C —
5,17¢ 6,22¢

75¢ 2,09¢
2,35¢ 2,11¢
3,36/ 13,07¢
2,43( 1,88¢
1,462 2,55¢
1,14(C 1,40

8,97/ 10,56(

$34,99: $45,96

I |
April 30
2003 2002

Mortgage loan agreeme
Obligation under capital lea:

Less current portio

Long-term debi

$9,30z $9,90¢
601 —

9,90¢ 9,90¢
777 601

$9,12¢ $9,30:
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In 1997, we entered into a mortgage loan agreemmaer which we borrowed $12,000 at an annual isteege of 7.6%. Principal and interest
are to be paid in 180 monthly installments of agpmately $112. The loan is collateralized by oue@xtive offices and television studio in
Stamford, Connecticut.

Interest expense for this loan was $783, $784 856 $or 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In July 2002, we entered into a capital lease gearent related to certain computer equipment. Baearrying amount of our capitalized le
equipment is $822 as of April 30, 2003. The leasard an effective interest rate of 6.5% and expirdsine, 2007.

As of April 30, 2003, the scheduled principal repeynts under our debt obligations were as follows:

For the year ended April 30, 20 $ 777
For the year ended April 30, 20 83¢
For the year ended April 30, 20 904
For the year ended April 30, 20 974
For the year ended April 30, 20 90¢
Thereaftel 5,501
Total $9,90¢

|

10. Income Taxes

For 2003, 2002 and 2001, we were taxed on our iecivam continuing operations at an effective tabe 1t 40.2%, 36.9% and 37.1%,
respectively. Our income tax provision related to imcome from continuing operations for fiscal 302002 and 2001 was $10,836, $22,020,
and $37,501, respectively, and included federatesind foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision from continuapgrations were as follows:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Current:
Federal $ 5,99( $21,45¢ $32,44¢
State and loce 1,057 3,12¢ 3,062
Foreign 2,29¢ 1,801 40C
Deferred:
Federal 1,29( (3,802 1,397
State and loce 182 (580) 19¢
Foreign 18 16 3
Total $10,83¢ $22,02( $37,50:
| | |
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The income tax provision allocated to continuingm@ions, discontinued operations and cumulatifecebf change in accounting principle

were as follows:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Provision for income tax-continuing operation $ 10,83¢ $22,02( $ 37,50!
Benefit for income taxe«discontinued operatior (19,61¢) (5,927 (23,949
Provision for income taxes- cumulative effect odisge in accounting
principle — 911 —
Total allocated (benefit) provision for income ta: $ (8,780 $17,00¢ $ 13,55¢
I | I

The following sets forth the difference between phevision for income taxes from continuing opeya computed at the U.S. federal statu

income tax rate of 35% and that reported for finarngtatement purposes:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 3¢ $ 9,42¢ $20,90" $35,34¢
State and local taxes, net of federal ber (545) 1,792 3,02¢
Foreign 112 13€ 14C
Valuation allowanct 2,02t — —
Other (184 (815) (1,019
Provision for income taxe $10,83¢ $22,02( $37,50:

I | |

The state tax benefit for 2003 is comprised ofestattd local taxes, net of federal benefits, redlgetthe reversal of a tax reserve established in

prior years. The tax reserve is no longer neceshaayto the conclusion of various state examination
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities of continuing
operations consisted of the following:

April 30,
2003 2002
Deferred tax asset
Accounts receivabl $ 2,75¢ $ 1,11C
Inventories 464 1,09¢
Prepaid royaltie 3,47¢ 3,215
Stock options 4,28¢ 4,99:
Investments 3,73¢ 2,62¢
Intangible assei 3,60¢ 3,521
Accrued liabilities and reservi 4.51¢ 2,99
Foreign 47 65

22,89¢ 19,61¢
Valuation allowanct (2,437) (412)

20,45¢ 19,20¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets and depreciat 4,46t 1,307
Prepaid royaltie — 49C
4,46t 1,797

Total, net $15,99/ $17,40¢
I I

The temporary differences described above reprafffiatences between the tax basis of assetsllfiias and their reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements that will reguliaxable or deductible amounts in future yeargmvtie reported amounts of the assets or
liabilities are recovered or settled. As of Api@l,2003 and 2002, $11,194 and $9,543, respectioéipe net deferred tax assets are include
prepaid expenses and other current assets andrtfzning $4,800 and $7,866, respectively, are degiun other non-current assets in our
consolidated balance sheets.

As of April 30, 2003, and April 30, 2002 we haduwation allowances of $2,437 and $412, respectiietgduce our deferred tax assets to an
amount more likely than not to be recovered. THaat&on allowances primarily relate to the defertaxl assets arising from losses on
investments which are capital in nature for whioh tealization is uncertain. A majority of theseital loss carry forwards expire in 2008.

U.S. Federal income taxes have not been providechoemitted earnings of our foreign subsidiary,ase our intent is to keep such earnings
indefinitely reinvested in the foreign subsidiargiserations.
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11. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including various naneelable operating leases, performance contnditts/arious performers, employment
agreements with certain executive officers, adsingi commitments and agreements with Viacom andedritaramount Network (“UPN”)
which guarantee a minimum payment for advertisingng) their terms. Our current agreement with URNis in September 2003 at which
time we will no longer sell advertising time on tieéevision shows aired on UPN. Commencing in Oetd®03, under the terms of our new
agreement with UPN, we will receive a rights feedar programming. The impact of this change onammsolidated financial statements will
be a reduction in advertising revenues which welldffset by an increase in domestic televisiontadbes and the elimination of the
participation costs to UPN.

In addition, we have a lease agreement for a 138®@air Challenger 604 airplane. The term of thiigat lease is for twelve years ending on
October 30, 2012. The monthly lease payment ferdhicraft lease is determined by a floating redsich is based upon 30-day commercial
paper rate as stated by the Federal Reserve @5%olTotal principal payments under this leaseb@2500. As of April 30, 2003, our
outstanding principal balance was $20,369.

Future minimum payments as of April 30, 2003 urttieragreements described above were as follows:

Operating
Lease Other
Commitments Commitments Total

For the year ended April 30, 20 $ 2,96: $47,241 $ 50,20¢
For the year ended April 30, 20 2,33¢ 24,36: 26,70(
For the year ended April 30, 20 2,26¢ 10,27¢ 12,54%
For the year ended April 30, 20 2,14(C 2,54¢ 4,68¢
For the year ended April 30, 20 2,07t 16¢ 2,24¢
Thereaftel 6,60¢ — 6,60¢
Total $18,39: $84,59¢ $102,98°

| | I

Rent expense under operating leases from contimpegations was approximately $2,402, $2,228 angd®ifor 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

In addition, we have an operating lease for spadéeiw York City that is currently unoccupied whisas related to our former entertainment
complex,The World. We are currently seeking a stdnant. The total payments remaining on the leaapproximately $46,000 as of April &
2003. However, in accordance with SFAS No. 146hesxe reduced this accrual by our current estimateub-tenant rental income of
approximately 75% of the remaining payments onlehse (see Note 18).
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Legal Proceedings
World Wide Fund for Nature

In April 2000, the World Wide Fund for Nature ansl American affiliate, the World Wildlife Fund (dettively, the “Fund”) instituted legal
proceedings against us in the English High Cowekisgy injunctive relief and unspecified damagesditeged breaches of a 1994 agreement
between the Fund and us regarding the use of iti@sri'wwf” including: (i) the wwf.com and wwfshopzone.com it domain names and
the contents of various of our websites, and (i) ‘®cratch” letter logo. On August 10, 2001, tHeltjudge granted the Fund’s motion for
summary judgment, holding that we breached thegzadgreement by using the “wwf” website addresses scratch logo. That ruling
subsequently was upheld by the English Court ofefg Since November 10, 2002, we have been subjactinjunction barring us, either
our own or through our officers, servants, agesubsidiaries, licensees or sub licensees, ourisgevor other affiliates or otherwise, of most
uses of the initials “wwf,” including in connectiamith the “wwf” website addresses and the use efdtratch logo.

In compliance with the injunction, we have takee tbllowing significant steps, many of which go bag the literal requirements of the
injunction: (1) changed our name to “World Wresiliantertainment, Inc.”; (2) switched our initiats WWE?”; (3) revised our logo to be a
scratch “WW?; (4) incorporated these changes iatopng other things, our television and pay-per-\vséaws, promotional materials,
advertising campaigns, statutory filings with femleand state agencies, and corporate stationerg@pdrate facilities; (5) advised our
licensees and business partners of the terms afjtnection; and (6) directed our licensees andrimss partners to refrain from using the
initials “wwf” in any manner which, if done by ugould be a breach of any of the prohibitions ofitijanction. However, the elimination of
certain historical uses of the scratch logo, inclgdspecifically, WWE's archival video footage ¢aiming the scratch logo during the period
1998-May 2002 and the scratch logo embedded inrpnoigiing code of WWE-licensed video games createihglthe period 1999-2001 is, as
a practical matter, not possible. On an applicatiomelief by our videogame licensee, THQ/ Jakksific LLC (“THQ/ Jakks”), the English
Court of Appeals ruled that THQ/ Jakks’ marketimgl 3ale of games with embedded references to itiedsiwwf{” is not a breach of the
injunction and would not constitute a contemptadirt by either THQ/ Jakks or us.

The Fund also has pending before the trial coderaages claim associated with the Company’s uieedhitials “wwf.” Although the Fund
has never submitted a formal claim of damagesaaturt, the Fund has claimed in correspondendathaast $360 million would be requir
to fund a multi-year media advertising campaigretmedy the Fund’s alleged loss of recognition/esiwity as a result of our use of the initials
“wwf.” In that correspondence, the Fund, throughlLiegal Advisor, demanded a payment of $90 milhdor to the injunction compliance date
to settle its alleged damages claims and resolverahining issues. We vigorously rejected the Faidémand and contend that the Fund’s
tactics were a bad faith attempt to coerce usantonwarranted cash payment of $90 million. Indeledpite repeated inquiries by us, the Fund
has never provided us with any documentation opstigor any alleged damage claims, nor has thelfeeme forward with any evidence
throughout the entire litigation that it sufferesyaactual injury to its fundraising and/or envirommal conservation activities as a result of our
conduct. We strongly dispute that the Fund hasesedf any such damages. We cannot quantify the tatenpact that an unfavorable outco
of the Fund’s damage claim could have on our firreondition, results of operations or liquiditfysuch a claim ever were to be presented,
but based solely on the Fund’s unsubstantiatedrirdbassertions, it could be material.
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Shenker & Associates

On November 14, 2000, Stanley Shenker & Associdtesfiled a complaint against us in Superior Gpdudicial District of Stamford/
Norwalk, Connecticut, relating to the terminatidraa Agency Agreement between us and Plaintiffiffifiseeks compensatory damages
punitive damages in an unspecified amount, att@nfegs, an accounting and a declaratory judgn@mtDecember 15, 2000, we filed a
motion to strike all the claims against us, with #xception of one count for breach of contrace ftotion was granted as to two claims. On
March 27, 2001, the Plaintiff filed a substitutesinplaint reasserting all counts against us. OnlAgri 2001, we answered the substitute
complaint. On February 27, 2002, we filed amendachterclaims and on June 19, 2002, we filed seaomehded counterclaims alleging
tortuous interference with business relations, eosion, fraud and conspiracy in connection withRlentiff's solicitation and receipt of
improper payments from various of our licenseesF@pruary 14, 2003, we filed a complaint againg ohour former officers, and certain
entities related to him, claiming such officer papated with Shenker in an alleged scheme to atlvaertain licenses in exchange for
payments to the officer. That suit has been codatdd with the suit pending against us. Discovemhé consolidated cases has been extended
through September 2003. We have denied liability iatend to defend the action vigorously. An unfalate outcome of this suit may have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditimnmesults of operations.

Marvel Enterprise:

On October 19, 2001, we were served with a complgirMarvel Enterprises, Inc. in the Superior CafrFulton County, Georgia alleging tl
we breached the terms of a license agreement liegatt rights to manufacture and distribute toyosxcfigures of various wrestling
characters. The plaintiff seeks damages and ard¢iola that the agreement is in force and effea.fiéd our Answer on November 19, 2001.
The Complaint also named as a defendant Universastlihg Corp. (“Universal, Inc.”), formerly knowas World Championship Wrestling,
Inc. Due to a conflict between Universal, Inc. gtaintiff’ s counsel, by agreement of the parties Universal,was dismissed from the suit.
December 28, 2001, the plaintiff commenced a sépaction against Universal, Inc., filed in the sarourt as a related action to the suit
pending against us. We are defending Universal,iinconnection with these claims. The two suitgehbbeen consolidated for discovery and
trial. On December 14, 2001, we filed a motion igmidss all claims against us. That motion was d&oie March 14, 2002. On May 15, 2003
we filed a motion for summary judgment on all clairyniversal similarly filed a motion for summandpment on all claims against us. Oral
argument in respect of both motions for summargijoent have been scheduled for July 25, 2003. We Hdawied liability and intend to
defend the action vigorously. An unfavorable outearfithis suit may have a material adverse effaatur financial condition or results of
operations.
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IPO Class Actior

On December 5, 2001, a purported class action Caintphas filed against us asserting claims forgateviolations of the federal securities
laws. Also named as defendants in this suit wemr B&tearns & Co. Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fen& Smith, Incorporated, Credit Suisse
First Boston Corporation, WIT Capital Corporati@gnaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporatiéhase H&Q (Hambrecht & Quist
LLC) (collectively, the “Underwriter Defendants’Yincent K. McMahon, Linda E. McMahon and Augustifjuori (collectively, the
“Individual Defendants”). The complaint allegegteinalia, (i) claims under Section 11 of the Se@sgiAct against all defendants, (ii) claims
under Section 12(2) of the Securities Act againstWnderwriter Defendants, (iii) claims under Sarctl5 of the Securities Act against us and
the Individual Defendants, (iv) claims under Setti®(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10(b)(5) asfaafi defendants, and (v) claims under
Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act against the idda Defendants. According to the allegationshef Complaint, the Underwriter Defenda
allegedly engaged in manipulative practices byeriatia, pre-selling allotments of shares of oocktin return for undisclosed, excessive
commissions from the purchasers and/or enterimgdfter-market tie-in arrangements which allegedtificially inflated our stock price. The
plaintiff further alleges that we knew or should/b&nown of such unlawful practices. As relief, emplaint seeks (i) a ruling that the suit is
properly maintainable as a class action, (ii) un#jeel class damages and statutory compensatiansigdl defendants, jointly and severally,
(iii) an award of attorneygees and costs, and (iv) such other relief as tlietaeems proper. We deny all allegations agaissbelieve that w
have meritorious defenses on plaintiffs’ claimg] &tend to defend this action vigorously. We umstiend that nearly 1,000 suits with similar
claims and/or allegations have been filed ovempth& couple of years against companies which hawme gublic in that general time period.
of these claims have been consolidated beforeaiime gudge in the United States District Court far Southern District of New York. We w«
part of a motion to dismiss filed on behalf ofiauers on July 15, 2002. On February 19, 2003¢dlet issued its ruling granting in part and
denying in part the issuers’ motion. Specificathe court granted the motion dismissing the Sectig(b) claims against us and denied the
motion as to Section 11 claims against us. A sattlg between the class plaintiffs and the issutamdiants, including WWE and the Individ
Defendants, currently is being contemplated. Alftowe cannot predict the likelihood of such settatrbeing reached on the terms currently
being contemplated, if it were, we anticipate thatould not have a material adverse effect on us.

We are not currently a party to any other matdeighl proceedings. However, we are involved in egwv@ther suits and claims in the ordinary
course of business, and we may from time to tineoire a party to other legal proceedings. The utémoatcome of these other matters is not
expected to have a material adverse effect onioandial condition or results of operations.
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12.  Stockholders’ Equity

On October 15, 1999, we filed an amended and ezbstartificate of incorporation which, among ottténgs, authorized 60,000,000 shares of
new Class B common stock, par value $.01 per sheekssified each outstanding share of World ViingsEntertainment, Inc. common stock
into 566,670 shares of Class B common stock, aizad180,000,000 shares of new Class A common spackvalue $.01 per share, and
authorized 20,000,000 shares of preferred stockygdae $.01 per share. Class B common stock ig éainvertible into Class A common
stock, on a one for one basis, at any time at fitier of the holder. The two classes are entitteddual per share dividends and distributions
and vote together as a class with each share e ®antitled to ten votes and each share of Glasgtitled to one vote, except when separate
class voting is required by applicable law. Ifaal time, any shares of Class B common stock arefloéally owned by any person other than
Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahon, any descendantithfez of them, any entity which is wholly owned asdcontrolled by any combination
of such persons or any trust, all the beneficiasfeshich are any combination of such persons, @it¢hose shares will automatically convert
into shares of Class A common stock. Through hiebeial ownership of a substantial majority of @iass B common stock, our controlling
stockholder, Mr. Vincent McMahon, can effectivekeecise control over our affairs, and his interestsld conflict with the holders of our
Class A common stock.

In July 2002, our Board of Directors approved amlayee stock purchase plan, the World WrestlingeEatnment 2002 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). Under the plan, anylaedull-time employee may contribute up to 10%twdir base compensation (subject to
certain income limits) to the semi-annual purchafsghares of our common stock. The purchase ®i8&% of the fair market value at certain
plan-defined dates. At April 30, 2003, approximat&h employees were participants in the plan.dodi 2003, employee participants
purchased approximately 11,600 shares of our constamk under the plan at a price of $7.07 per share

In July 1999, we adopted the 1999 Long-Term Ineenfllan (“LTIP”). The LTIP provides for grants gbtions as incentives and rewards to
encourage employees, directors, consultants arfidrpesrs in our longerm success. The LTIP provides for grants of oystito purchase shau
at a purchase price equal to the fair market vatuthe date of the grant. The options expire 10syatier the date of the grant and are gene
exercisable in installments beginning one year ftbendate of the grant. The LTIP also provideghergrant of other forms of equity-based
incentive awards as determined by the Compens@ionmittee of the Board of Directors. Of our totptions outstanding, 1,172,000 were

granted to independent contractors consisting piiynaf our performers. With respect to the optiganted to independent contractors, we
recorded a charge of $1,092 (of which, $332 wakided in discontinued operations) for 2001. Theays granted to employees have been
accounted for using the intrinsic value methoddocadance with Accounting Principles Board Opinidm 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
Employees.”

Presented below is a summary of the LTIP’s actifotythe three years ended April 30, 2003.
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Weighted
Average
Options Exercise Price
Options outstanding at May 1, 20 5,348,50! $17.0C
Options grante 1,666,201 $14.4:
Options cancele (194,001) $17.0C
Options exercise (150,000 $17.0C
Options outstanding at April 30, 20 6,670,70! $16.3¢
Options grante 5,00( $13.82
Options cancele (390,101) $16.2(
Options exercise (32,000 $12.9¢
Options outstanding at April 30, 20 6,253,60! $16.4(
Options grante 1,219,001 $13.02
Options cancele (476,900 $15.4¢
Options exercise (31,250 $12.9¢
Options outstanding at April 30, 20 6,964,45 $15.8¢
Options available for future grants at April 3002 2,822,35!
|

The number of options exercisable as of April 32 2002 and 2001 was 5,021,600, 3,618,735 ard? 77,83, respectively. The following
table summarizes information for options outstagdind exercisable as of April 30, 2003:

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number of Average Average Number of Average

Range of Exercise Options Remaining Exercise Optian Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$7.66- $21.00 6,964,45! 7.1 year $15.8¢ 5,021,60! $16.7¢

13. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan cmgesubstantially all employees. Under this plaartipgipants are allowed to make
contributions based on a percentage of their gsasubject to a statutorily prescribed annuatlikvie make matching contributions of

50 percent of each participant’s contributionstap% of eligible compensation (maximum 3% matchingtribution). We may also make
additional discretionary contributions to the 4Q1glan. Our expense for matching contributions additional discretionary contributions to
the 401(k) plan was $840, $865, and $635 during322002 and 2001, respectively.

14. Related Party Transactions

A member of our Board of Directors also was an ra&ent contractor engaged by us to perform tétevs/ndication services during 2003,
2002 and 2001. In 2003 this director received $28in 2002 and 2001 this director received $6Miwservices as an independent contra

In June 2003, we purchased approximately 2.0 millilobares of our common stock from Viacom, Inc.dipproximately $19,246, which was a
slight discount to the then market value of our owmn stock. This transaction did not affect othgreass of our business relationship with
Viacom.
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15. Segment Information

Our continuing operations are conducted within tejportable segments, live and televised entertaih@red branded merchandise. Our live
and televised entertainment segment consists @elents and television programming. Our brandedtima@dise segment includes consumer
products sold through third party licensees andrheketing and sale of merchandise, magazines ame wideos. The results of operations
The Worldand for the XFL are not included in the segmenbriipg as they are classified separately as digwoed operations in our
consolidated financial statements (See Note 18)dd/eot allocate corporate overhead to each ofélgenents and as a result, corporate
overhead is a reconciling item in the table beldhere are no intersegment revenues. Revenues ddrore sales outside of North America
were approximately $51,840, $38,459 and $28,942008, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The table ptsseformation about the financial
results of each segment for 2003, 2002 and 200kssets as of April 30, 2003 and 2002. Unallocassets consist primarily of cash, short-
term investments and real property and other imvests.

April 30,
2003 2002 2001
Net revenues
Live and televised entertainme $295,43: $323,45¢ $335,66¢
Branded merchandis 78,83: 86,16¢ 102,47:
Total net revenue $374,26: $409,62: $438,13¢
| | |
Depreciation and amortizatio
Live and televised entertainme $ 3,70¢ $ 3,20¢ $ 2,83¢
Branded merchandis 2,062 — —
Corporate 5,19¢ 7,38¢ 1,932
Total depreciation and amortizati $ 10,96t $ 10,59« $ 4,771
| | |
Operating income (loss
Live and televised entertainme $ 88,26¢ $113,92- $130,62!
Branded merchandis 23,36: 20,82¢ 29,07(
Corporate (85,02 (90,040 (72,52
Total operating incom $ 26,607 $ 44,71: $ 87,16¢
| | |
Assets:
Live and televised entertainme $ 73,727 $ 78,79¢
Branded merchandis 17,39¢ 18,45:
Unallocated(1 341,52¢ 393,75¢
Total asset $432,65: $491,00¢
| |

(1) Includes assets of discontinued operations of $Bland $44,256 as of April 30, 2003 and 2002, retpely.
16. Financial Instruments and Off-Balance ShedRisk

Concentration of Credit Risk— Financial instruments which potentially subjestta concentrations of credit risk are principdink deposits,
short-term investments and accounts receivableh @ag cash equivalents are deposited with highitagedlity financial institutions. Short-
term investments primarily consist of AAA or AA eat instruments. Except for receivables from cablaganies related to pay-per-view
events, concentrations of credit risk with resggedtade receivables are limited due to

F-27




Table of Contents

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

the large number of customers. A significant portdd trade receivables for pay-per-view eventgceived from our pay-per-view
administrator, who collects and remits paymentsstérom individual cable system operators. We parfongoing evaluations of our
customers’ financial condition, including our pagriew administrator, and we monitor our exposureciedit losses and maintain allowan
for anticipated losses.

Fair Value of Financial Instrument— The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalehtgt-g4erm investments, accounts receivable and
accounts payable approximate fair value becausigeaghort-term nature, and maturity of such insents. Our debt primarily consists of the
mortgage related to our corporate headquarterghatas an annual interest rate of 7.6%. Due togbent decreases in mortgage rates, this
debt is now at a rate in excess of market, howauerto the terms of our agreement we are prohilfited refinancing for several years.

17. Quarterly Financial Summaries (unaudited)

1st 1st 2nd 2nd 3rd 3rd 4th 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
As As As As
Previously As Previously As Previously As Previously As
Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated
2003
Net revenue $85,44¢ $85,44¢ $90,32: $90,32: $ 92,56t $ 92,56t $105,92° $105,92°
Gross profil $28,83: $28,83! $28,15( $28,15: $ 35,85¢ $ 35,85¢ $ 44,08¢ $ 44,08t

Income from continuing operatiol $ 3,85t $3,79C $ 25¢ $ 195 $ 5,98¢ $ 592 $ 6,26( $ 6,19«
Loss from discontinued operations

@) $(1,327) $(1,327) $(1,867) $(1,867) $(21,989  $(21,98¢) $(10,379 $(10,379
Net income (loss $ 2,62¢ $ 2,46 $(1,6049) $(1,66f $(16,000 $(16,06%) $ (4,119 $ (4,185
Earnings (loss) per common share

basic and dilutec

Continuing operation $ 0.0t $ 00t $ 00OC $ O0OC $ 00 $ 008 $ 0.0 $ 0.0¢

Discontinued operations(. $ (002) $ (002 $ (00 $(@©O)Y $ (03) $ (0317 $ (0.15 $ (0.1%)

Net income (loss $ 0.0< $ 00 $ (007) $ (002 $ (029 $ (027 $ (0.06 $ (0.0¢€)
2002

Net revenue $87,00¢ $87,00¢  $95,03: $95,03: $ 95,98¢ $95,98¢  $131,59¢ $131,59¢

Gross profil $30,98" $30,987  $34,17% $34,17° $ 35,25¢ $ 35,25« $ 58,08( $ 58,08(

Income from continuing operatiol $12,707 $11,158  $ 5,95: $588 $ 542 $ 2,317 $ 18,41¢ $ 18,35:
Loss from discontinued operations

) $ (715 $ (715 $(1,117) $(1,11) $ 4,0icC $ 4,01C $ (2,449 $ (2,44%)
Cumulative effect of change

accounting principle, ne — $ 1,487 — — — — — —
Net income $11,99: $11,927 $ 4,841 $477¢  $ 9,43« $ 6,327 $ 15,97( $ 15,90¢
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1st 1st 2nd 2nd 3rd 3rd 4th 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
As As As As
Previously As Previously As Previously As Previously As
Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated Reported Restated
Earnings (loss) per common st-
basic and dilutec
Continuing operation $0.17 $0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $0.07% $0.0< $0.2¢ $0.2F
Discontinued operations(; $(0.01) $(0.01) $(0.02) $(0.02) $0.0% $0.0E $(0.03) $(0.03)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, ne — $ 0.0z — — — — — —
Net income $0.1€ $0.1€ $ 0.07 $ 0.07 $0.13% $0.0¢ $0.22 $0.22

(1) Our discontinued operations include an aftex-tmpairment charge of $20,413 recorded in thedljuarter of 2003 and after-tax
charges related to the shut down of The World ¢g8@8recorded in the fourth quarter of 2003 (se¢eNIB).

(2) For the third quarter of 2002, our discontinued ogténs reflect the reversal of shutdown reserVed tvere no longer required and t
recognition of certain tax benefit

(3) For the third quarter of 2002, our income from dantng operations reflected $4,900 of license aadtact termination costs arisir
from the termination of certain WCW license andtall agreements assumed in the WCW asset acqui

18. Discontinued Operations
The World

In fiscal 2003, we recorded estimated shut-downscosapproximately $12,100, or $8,900 after taxzgonnection with the closing of our
operations ofrfhe World. The following is a listing of the major componeiricluded in the $12,100 charge:

Rent expense and other related ¢ $ 9,90(
Severance and other related c« 1,10(
Impairment of fixed asse 1,00(
Inventory reserve 10C
Total $12,10(

I

The costs associated with these disposal activitiee been classified in discontinued operatiormiinConsolidated Statements of Operations
for the year ended April 30, 2003.

Rent expense and other related cc— In determining the shut-down costs for the reqemse associated with the leas@loé Worldwe
followed the guidance established in paragraphfI8-&S 146. We closed the restaurant in Februa®g2hd the retail store in April 2003.
April 30, 2003, we had physically vacated the piagj with no intention to reoccupy, and began tovste space to potential sigase tenan

in early fiscal 2004. Accordingly, no future ecoriorbenefit will be received by us from this opeoati In calculating our accrual for the costs
that will continue to be incurred under this cootrarough its October, 2017 term, we assumed bdettincome in fiscal 2004 and assumed
sub-let income of 75% of the lease payments beggmi fiscal 2005. Based upon discussions with estdte brokers in New York City and a
real estate appraiser engaged by us, it was detedtd be probable that the property would notdoeed within fiscal 2004. Factors include
large space of the facility, its unique Times Seguacation, the remaining term of the lease (15s)eand the expected time needed to re-fit the
space by any potential new tenant.
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We analyzed broker fees incurred for similar typeperties with multi-year leases in New York Citydrder to quantify the expected broker
fee for the sublease @he Worldand subsequently recorded as of April 30, 2003r@pmately $900, which is included in the captioar®
expense and other related costs above.

Severance and other related costs The World’'semployees were involuntarily terminated. The teation payments made to them were not
contingent upon any future service. In accordanitle paragraphs 8 and 9 of SFAS No. 146, we expetieefi1,100 of estimated payments, of
which approximately $700 had been paid as of A3®jl2003.

Impairment of fixed asset— The $1,000 fixed assets impairment charge indudeshut-down costs represented the remaininpoei value
of the assets athe Worldwhich were deemed to have no value.

Inventory Reserve— We also recorded a $100 charge related to the-wffi of the remaining miscellaneous inventory usethie operation ¢
The World.

Included in the loss from discontinued operatians2003 was an impairment charge of $32,925 asuwdtref an impairment test conducted on
goodwill ($2,533) and other long-lived assets ($9@) atThe World. The charge arose from continued operating loastst facility and was
taken in accordance with SFAS No. 142 and SFASIMG, respectively. Estimates of the fair valuetheflong-lived assets @he Worldwere
determined by an independent, third party appraisesed on valuation methods, such as cost anthéaket value approaches, with the
valuation method used based upon the nature afrttlerlying assets.

In May 2000, we had acquired for $24,500 this ldemgertainment complex which was located in Tiggeare. The allocation of the purch
price included approximately $21,200 in fixed ass$1,300 in current assets and $900 in liabilit@sodwill arising as a result of this
transaction was approximately $2,900. In accordavite SFAS No. 142, we ceased amortization of gabés of May 1, 2002.

The results oThe Worldbusiness, which has been classified as discontiopethtions in the accompanying consolidated firsstatements,
are summarized as follows:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Discontinued Operation
Loss fromThe Worldoperations, net of taxes of $16,359, $3,006 an®:
for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectiv $(26,69)  $(4,907)  $(1,629
Estimated loss on sk-down of The World net of taxes of $3,25 (8,86¢€) — —
Loss from discontinued operatio $(35,557)  $(4,907)  $(1,629
| | ]
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Year ended April 30,

2003 2002
Assets:
Cash $ 58¢ $ 268
Accounts receivabl 5 74
Income tax receivabl 5,342 4,00¢
Prepaid expenst 94 69
Inventory 65 40C
Property and equipme — 32,54¢
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowanfc®19350. 14,43; 46C
Goodwill — 2,53¢
Total Asset $20,53( $40,34¢
[ | [ |
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 19 $ 622
Accrued expense 10,64¢ 2,00t
Deferred incomt — 224
Total Liabilities $10,667 $ 2,851
[ | [ |

XFL

In early May 2001, we formalized our decision teadintinue operations of the XFL, and accordingporéed XFL operating results and
estimated shut-down costs as Discontinued Operatiothe Consolidated Statements of Operationthiyear ended April 30, 2001.
Estimated shut-down costs of approximately $27 @fisisted of fixed asset and other asset impairctearges of approximately $9,600,
contractual labor costs of approximately $8,400rkets’ compensation and severance costs of apped&lyn$5,400, lease costs of
approximately $1,700 and other shut-down relatesiscof approximately $2,600.

During 2002, as a result of the reversal of shutsdceserves that were no longer required and thegrétion of certain tax benefits, we
recorded income from discontinued operations 0638, net of minority interest and taxes. The remairshut-down liabilities consist
primarily of XFL medical and other shut-down costapproximately $835.

The $4,638 reversal during fiscal 2002 was thelre$iwo factors: $1,067, net of tax and minoiityerest, related to the reversal of shut-down
accruals noted above as well as $3,571 of a tagfltealated to the reversal of a tax valuatiomathnce. During the third quarter of fiscal 2(
we performed a detailed analysis of the remainifd dccruals as we felt that sufficient time hadsgaisfrom the initial shut down to ascertain
whether other liabilities related to the shutdowaravstill outstanding. Based upon lower than exggkcosts related to professional and legal
fees, severance and health insurance among othgs1$3,442 was determined to be the excess shotdelated accrual. Since the XFL was a
50-50 partnership with NBC, we were entitled to 56Pthis $3,442 reversal, or $1,721 ($1,067, netg}.
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As a result of additional costs incurred in conimectvith the formation of the XFL joint venture, vilad an additional $10,700 of tax basis i
partnership investment. This additional basis teslih a deferred tax benefit of approximately $@,vhen the underlying costs were written
off for GAAP purposes. The deferred tax benefit \wathe form of a capital loss carryforward. Basedthe evidence available at April 30,
2001, we determined that it was more likely thanhthat $3,571 of the capital loss carryforward doubt be realized and accordingly, a
valuation allowance was recorded against this dedlelax asset in discontinued operations.

During the subsequent fiscal year, we entereddntagreement which provided for a liquidating dlsttion of certain assets of the partnership
to us. As a result of this distribution, we detared that the additional tax basis would be allat#tethe distributed assets and depreciated for
tax purposes, and accordingly, be fully deduct#igainst ordinary income. Because of this significdrange in facts, we determined that the
tax benefits resulting from this additional tax isazould be fully realized. Accordingly, the valioat allowance was reversed resulting in a tax
benefit recorded in discontinued operations.

On June 12, 2000, we sold approximately 2.3 milliewly-issued shares of our Class A common sto§d 8tper share to NBC, for a total
investment of $30,000. As a result of this stodk,sahich was at a below-market price, we recoralei@ferred cost of $10,673, which was
being amortized over 30 month term of the XFL brzsd agreement. Amortization of $3,699 during fi6®1 was reflected in discontinued
operations. As a result of our decision to discurgioperations of the XFL, we wrote off the remagnieferred cost of $6,974. In May 2002,
we repurchased 2.3 million shares of our Class iroon stock from NBC for $27,692, which was a distdo the then market value of our
common stock. These shares were included in Tre&tock in our Consolidated Balance Sheet as ofl 80y 2003.

The results of the XFL business, which has beessiflad as discontinued operations in the constitifinancial statements, are summarized
as follows:

Year ended April 30,

2003 2002 2001
Discontinued Operation
Loss from XFL operations, net of minority intere$t$42,940 and

applicable income tax benefits of $17,¢ $— $ — $(31,297)
Estimated income (loss) on shutdown of the XFL,afehinority interes

of $1,721 and 13,907 and applicable income taxfitsref $2,917 and

$5,265 for 2002 and 2001, respectiv — 4,63¢ (15,617
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic $— $4,63¢ $(46,910)

| | I
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As of April 30,
2003 2002
Assets:
Cash $59¢  $3,90%
Total Asset:s $59¢  $3,90%
| |
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ — $ 39
Accrued expense 913 4,97¢
Due to World Wrestling Entertainment, Ir 262 11%
Minority interest (28¢) (611)
Total Liabilities $887 $4,51%
| |

19. Subsequent Event

On June 13, 2003, our Board of Directors approtedoayment of a quarterly dividend of $0.04 peretun all Class A and Class B common
shares. The record date for the first such divideridine 27, 2003 and the payment date is on artalody 10, 2003.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data) (unaudited)

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

January 23,
2004

January 24,
2003

January 23,
2004

January 24,
2003

Net revenue

Cost of revenue

Selling, general and administrative exper
Stock compensation cos

Depreciation and amortizatic

Operating incom
Interest incomt
Interest expens

Other income (loss), ni

Income before income tax
Provision for income taxe

Income from continuing operatiol
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, netg

Net income (loss

Earnings (loss) per common sh— basic and dilutec
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Net income (loss

Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic
Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(as restated,
see Note 2

$79,07(
44,05¢
18,87«
1,011
3,047
12,08
1,581
192

722

14,19¢
5,332

8,86:

(76)

$ 8,781

$ 0.1%

$ 0.1%

68,39¢
68,76¢

(as restated,
see Note 2

$ 92,56
56,71:
24,40¢

2,74¢

8,69¢
83¢
19t
3C

9,367
3,441

5,92¢

(21,98%)

$(16,065)

$ 0.0¢
(0.31)

$ (0.29

70,401
70,401

(as restated,

see Note 2
$248,17¢
145,54:
51,63t
1,327
8,85:

40,81¢
4,46¢
584
1,01z

45,71¢
17,29

28,42¢

32

$ 28,45

$ 041

$ 041

68,60:
68,82:

(as restated,
see Note 2

$268,33
175,50:
70,83!

7,04¢

14,95¢
1,27¢
574
(20)

15,63¢
5,731

9,90¢

(25,179

$(15,270)

$ 0.4
(0.36)

$ (0.29)

70,63¢
70,63¢
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands) (unaudited)

As of As of
January 23, 2004 April 30, 2003
(as restated,
see Note 2
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 64,13¢ $128,47:
Shor-term investment 202,55 142,64:
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtfaoamts of $2,970 as o
January 23, 2004 and $5,284 as of April 30, 2( 39,04¢ 49,72¢
Inventory, ne 99¢ 83¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 19,06¢ 18,44:
Assets of discontinued operatic 20,84« 21,12¢
Total current asse 346,64« 361,25¢
Property and equipment, r 74,89¢ 59,32t
Intangible assets, n 4,99( 4,62¢
Other asset 7,83¢ 7,445
Total asset $434,36: $432,65:
I I
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt $ 821 $ 77
Accounts payabl 15,771 14,18¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 41,23: 34,99:
Deferred incoms 20,49¢ 24,66:
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol 8,861 11,55¢
Total current liabilities 87,18 86,17:
Long-term debt 8,50¢ 9,12¢
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Class A common stoc 13€ 182
Class B common stoc 54¢ b4¢
Treasury stocl — (30,569
Additional paic-in capital 248,14 297,31!
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incc (30 243
Retained earninc 89,87: 69,63
Total stockholder’ equity 338,67 337,35:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $434,36! $432,65:
| |

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousands) (unaudited)

Nine Months Ended

January 23, 2004 January 24, 2003
(as restated (as restated
see Note 2 see Note 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 28,45’ $(15,27()
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating
activities:
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, netg (32 25,17¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 8,85: 7,04¢
Amortization of warrant: (83¢€) (952)
Non-cash stock compensation ca 46¢ —
Unrealized gain on value of warrai (422) —
Provision for doubtful accoun (1,999 1,35¢
Provision for inventory obsolescen 19 61¢
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl 12,67¢ 10,80¢
Inventory (179 (314)
Prepaid expenses and other as 1,62¢ (2,68¢)
Accounts payabl 1,58: (4,567)
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 6,41( 80
Deferred incomt (4,969 2,732
Net cash provided by continuing operatis 51,66: 24,021
Net cash used in discontinued operati (2,370 (7,842)
Net cash provided by operating activit 49,29: 16,18t
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipm (3,48%) (8,88%)
Purchase of corporate aircr (20,129 —
Purchase of other ass:i (1,647 —
(Purchase) sale of sh-term investments, n (60,470 93,12«
Net cash used in continuing operatit (85,719 84,23¢
Net cash used in discontinued operati — (2,349
Net cash used in investing activiti (85,719 81,89t
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of lor-term debi (57€) (444)
Stock repurchase, n (29,189 (29,47°)
Dividends paic (8,21¢) —
Net proceeds from exercise of stock opti 65 40¢
Net cash used in continuing operatit (27,91) (29,516
Net cash provided by discontinued operati — 322
Net cash used in financing activiti (27,91) (29,199
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (64,33) 68,88¢
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 128,47 86,39¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 64,13¢ $155,28:
| |

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period for income taxes, he¢foinds $ 9,631 $ 3,36¢
Cash paid during the period for inter $ 58t $ 574



SUPPLEMENTAL NOMCASH INFORMATION:
Receipt of warrant $ 1,63¢ —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
(dollars and shares in thousands) (unaudited)

Accumulated
Common Stock Treasury Stock Additional Other
Paid-in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income &nings Total
Balance, May 1, 200 72,99¢ $73C 2,57¢  $(30,569) $297,31! $ 243 $69,63¢ $337,35!
Comprehensive incom
Translation adjustmel — — — 13C — 13C
Unrealized holding loss, net of
tax — — — (40%) — (40%)
Net income (as restate — — — — 28,45 28,45
Total comprehensive income (as
restated 28,18:
Dividends paic (8,21%) (8,219
Stock compensation cos — — 46¢ — — 46¢
Exercise of stock optior 6 — — 65 — — 65
Tax benefit of stock optior — — — 2 — 2
Stock repurchas — 2,02¢ (19,24¢) — — — (19,24¢)
Sale of stocl 22 — 9 10z (40 — — 63
Retirement of treasury sto (4,61€) (46) (4,616 49,71: (49,66¢) — — —
Balance, January 23, 2004 (as
restated 68,40¢ $684 — 3 — $248,14: $ (30) $89,87: $338,67(
| L] L] I I | I I

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data) (Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Descrimti

We are an integrated media and entertainment compaincipally engaged in the development, productind marketing of television
programming and live events and the licensing atel af branded consumer products featuring our Waftestling Entertainment brand of
entertainment. Our operations are organized arbwagrincipal activities:

* Live and televised entertainment, which consistwefevents and television programmiRevenues are derived principally from attendance
at live events, sale of television advertising tiamel sponsorships, domestic and internationaligtevrights fees and p-per-view buys.

» Branded merchandise, which consists of licensirgjdirect sale of merchandisRevenues are derived from sales of consumer pre
through third party licensees and direct marketind sales of merchandise, magazines and home v

The accompanying condensed consolidated finaneitdraents include the accounts of World WrestlingeBEainment, Inc., and our wholly
owned subsidiaries. In fiscal 2003, we closed ferations of our entertainment compl&ke World. We recorded the results from operations
of this business and the estimated shutdown cadisasntinued operations.

All significant intercompany balances have beemiglated. Certain prior year amounts have beenssifiad to conform with the current year
presentation. In the opinion of management, allstdjents (consisting of normal recurring adjustseadnsidered necessary for a fair
presentation of financial position, results of @giems and cash flows at the dates and for thegepresented have been included. The results
of operations of any interim period are not necelysiadicative of the results of operations foetfull year.

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America requires our
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenztttae reported amounts of assets and liakslisied disclosures of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of revenue and expensieg dhe reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Certain inforimaiand note disclosures normally included in ahfinancial statements have been
condensed or omitted from these interim finandialesnents; these financial statements should lkinezonjunction with the financial
statements and notes thereto included in our F@K for the year ended April 30, 2003.

Our fiscal year ends on April 30 of each year. daletherwise noted, all references to years reddiscal years, not calendar years and refi
the fiscal period by using the year in which tteedil period ends. Our fiscal quarters are thirteeak periods that end on the thirteenth Friday
in the quarter, with the exception of our fourttager, which always ends on April 30.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)
2. Restatement

Subsequent to the issuance of our financial statesxer the three and nine months ended JanuargB}, we determined that certain char
should be made to the accounting related to theeM2001 acquisition of certain assets of World Cpiamship Wrestling, Inc. (“WCW?") and
that our financial statements should be restatedftect such changes. Specifically, $1,655 caigtdl as intangible assets during fiscal 2001
and $4,900 capitalized as intangible assets ialf3802 have now been accounted for as sellinggrgéand administrative expense during
those periods. These costs arose from the terraimaficertain WCW license and related agreemeisisnasd in the transaction. In addition,
$2,500 purchase price, which had been classifiethasdefinite lived intangible asset and thusambrtized, is now being amortized over an
estimated useful life of six years resulting in iéiddal amortization expense of $105 for both theeé months ended January 23, 2004 and
January 24, 2003 and $315 for both the nine masrtded January 23, 2004 and January 24, 2003.

There were no changes to revenues or cost of regesmia result of this restatement.
The significant effects of this restatement on mesly reported amounts are summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Three months ended Three months ended
January 23, 2004 January 24, 2003
As As
previously As previously As
reported restated reported restated
Consolidated Statements of Operatic
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,94: $ 3,047 $ 2,641 $ 2,74¢
Operating incom: 12,18¢ 12,08¢ 8,80¢ 8,69¢
Income from continuing operations before incomet 14,30( 14,19t 9,47: 9,361
Provision for income taxe 5,372 5,332 3,48¢ 3,44¢
Income from continuing operatio 8,92¢ 8,86: 5,98¢ 5,92:
Net income (loss $ 8,852 $ 8,78 $(16,000() $(16,06%)
Earnings per share (basic and dilute
Continuing operation $ 0.1z $ 0.1: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Net income (loss $ 0.1: $ 0.13 $ (0.29 $ (0.29)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

Nine months ended
January 23, 2004

Nine months ended
January 24, 2003

As As
previously As previously As
reported restated reported restated

Depreciation and amortizatic $ 8,53¢ $ 8,85: $ 6,731 $ 7,04¢

Operating incomi 41,13: 40,81¢ 15,27 14,95¢

Income from continuing operations before incomess 46,03 45,71¢ 15,95¢ 15,63¢

Provision for income taxe 17,411 17,29 5,851 5,731

Income from continuing operatiol 28,62( 28,42t 10,10:¢ 9,90¢

Net income (loss $28,65: $28,45] $(15,07Y $(15,27()

Earnings per share (basic and dilute

Continuing operation $ 0.4z $ 041 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢
Net income (loss $ 0.4z $ 041 $ (0.2) $ (0.29
As of January 23, 200¢
As
previously As
reported restated
Consolidated Balance She
Intangible assets, n $ 12,73t $ 4,99
Other asset 4,89( 7,83¢
Total asset 439,16 434,36:
Retained earning 94,67 89,87:
Total stockholder equity 343,47 338,67(
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $439,16: $434,36:

3. Stockholders’ Equity

Pro Forma Fair Value Disclosures

The fair value of options granted to employeesciis amortized to expense over the option vegigripd in determining the pro forma

impact, is estimated on the date of the grant ugiadlack-Scholes option-pricing model.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

Had compensation expense for our stock options beEmrgnized based on the fair value on the gratet utader the methodology prescribed by
SFAS No. 123, our income from continuing operatiand basic and diluted earnings from continuingaji@ens per common share for the
three and nine months ended January 23, 2004 awérde24, 2003 would have been impacted as showheifollowing table:

Three months endec Nine months endec
January 23, January 24, January 23, January 24,
2004 2003 2004 2003
Reported income from continuing operati $ 8,86: $5,92: $28,42¢ $ 9,90¢

Add: Stoc-based employee compensation expense includ

reported income from continuing operations, natetdted tax

effects 62€ — 822 —
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresg

determined under fair value based method for afirds; net of

related tax effect (1,039 (772 (2,552 (2,916
Pro forma income from continuing operatic $ 8,45¢ $5,151 $26,69¢ $ 6,99:
[ | | | |

Reported basic and diluted earnings from continojpgration:
per common shat $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 041 $ 0.14
L] | I I

Pro forma basic and diluted earnings from contiguiperation:
per common shat $ 0.1Z $ 0.07 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.1C

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, the weighted ayefair value of stock options granted to employegas based on a theoretical statistical
model using assumptions. In actuality, becausestmak options are not traded on any exchange, gretocan receive no value or derive any
benefit from holding stock options under these phaithout an increase in market price of our comrstoiek relative to the respective dates of
the option grants.

Equity Transactions
Commencing in July 2003, we paid quarterly dividenfl$0.04 per share on all Class A and Class Broomshares totaling $8,218.

In June 2003, we purchased approximately 2.0 millilbares of our common stock from Viacom, Inc.dipproximately $19,246, which was a
slight discount to the then market value of our owm stock. This transaction did not affect othgreass of our business relationship with
Viacom. In October 2003, we retired all of our segy shares.

In June 2003, we granted 792,500 options at arcimeeprice of $9.60 and granted 178,000 restristedk units at an average price per sha
$9.60. Such issuances were granted to officereemqloyees under our 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plam ‘(Plan”). Total compensation costs
related to the grant of restricted stock unitseblasn the estimated value of the units on the gtatg, is $1,709 and will be amortized over the
vesting period, which is seven years, unless EBITdD&65,000 is met for any fiscal year during tlesting period. In that event, the unvested
restricted stock units immediately vest and acemigi the unamortized balance at that date wouldX¥pensed. EBITDA is a measure of our
operating performance, and is defined in the Ptaeaanings from continuing operations before irsietaxes, depreciation and amortization.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

During the third quarter of fiscal 2004, we comptean exchange offer that gave all active emplogedsndependent contractors who held
options with a grant price of $17 or higher thdigbio exchange options, at a 6 to 1 ratio, fastrieted stock units, or, for holders with fewer
than 25,000 options, for cash at 75% of the aveségrk price of $13.28 per share, during the giemiod. Overall, 4.2 million options were
eligible for the offer, of which 4.1 million werexehanged for either cash or restricted stock uhitexchange for the options tendered, we
granted an aggregate of 591,416 restricted stoit&k and made cash payments in the aggregate arabapproximately $900, which will resi

in a total compensation charge of approximately®®, of which the cash payment of $800 to employegesrecorded in our third fiscal
quarter ended January 23, 2004, and the portiatectto the grant of the restricted stock unitsnployees will be recorded over the 24 month
vesting period.

As a result, the compensation charge related sogifsint of restricted stock units will be recordedollows: approximately $100 was recorded
in the third quarter ended January 23, 2004, $1i®@r fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, approximgt$B,600 in fiscal 2005, and approximately
$1,100 in fiscal 2006. As of January 23, 2004 réfie exchange offer, there were approximatelyndllion options outstanding at an average
exercise price of $12.60 of which 1.5 million weested. In addition, 0.8 million restricted stociita were outstanding, of which none were
vested.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantiajarity of our Class B common stock, our contralistockholder, Mr. Vincent McMahon,
can effectively exercise control over our affaingl dis interests could conflict with the holdersoaf Class A common stock.

4. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and diluted egper share, we used the following weighted aec@ammon shares outstanding:

Three months ended Nine months ended
January 23, January 24, January 23, January 24,
2004 2003 2004 2003
Weighted average common shares outstant
Basic 68,394,34 70,407,08 68,602,81 70,633,79
Diluted 68,767,92 70,407,08 68,822,33 70,633,79
Dilutive effect of outstanding options and resgitistock
units 373,58t — 219,51 —
Anti-dilutive outstanding options, end of peri 417,70( 7,248,92! 417,70( 7,248,92!
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)
5. Segment Information

Our operations are conducted within two reportalelgments: live and televised entertainment anddechimerchandise. The live and televised
entertainment segment consists of live events aledision programming. Our branded merchandise sagincludes consumer products sold
through third party licensees and the marketingsaied of merchandise, magazines and home videesteBults of operations fdihe World

are not included in the segment reporting as thelkassified as discontinued operations in ousobdated financial statements. We do not
allocate corporate overhead to each of the segraedtsss a result, corporate overhead is a recngétem in the table below. Included in
corporate overhead for the nine months ended Ja23aR004 was a favorable settlement of litigatd$5,885. There are no intersegment
revenues. Revenues derived from sales outside dhManerica were approximately $11,516 and $43®88he three and nine months ended
January 23, 2004, respectively, and approximat&; 35 and $39,425 for the three and nine monttieddanuary 24, 2003, respectively.
Unallocated assets consist primarily of cash, itnmests and real property.

Three months endec Nine months endec
January 23, January 24, January 23, January 24,
2004 2003 2004 2003
Net Revenues
Live and televised entertainme $ 55,63 $ 71,01¢ $195,07: $209,48:
Branded merchandi 23,43¢ 21,55( 53,10: 58,85¢
Total net revenues(: $ 79,07( $ 92,56: $248,17t $268,33
| | | |
Depreciation and Amortization:
Live and televised entertainme $ 1,07 $ 962 $ 3,15¢ $ 2,63C
Branded merchandi 694 462 2,00z 1,21(
Corporate 1,281 1,32 3,69¢ 3,20¢
Total depreciation and amortizati $ 3,04% $ 2,74¢ $ 8,85: $ 7,04¢
.| | | |
Operating Income:
Live and televised entertainme $ 18,74 $ 21,96( $ 66,52 $ 57,85(
Branded merchandis 10,57: 7,80z 18,797 16,46¢
Corporate (17,229 (21,069 (44,500 (59,35))
Total operating incom $ 12,08« $ 8,69¢ $ 40,81¢ $ 14,95¢
| | | |
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

As of
January 23, April 30,
2004 2003
Assets:

Live and televised entertainme $ 61,89¢ $ 73,727
Branded merchandis 16,16( 17,39¢
Unallocated(2 356,30« 341,52¢
Total asset $434,36: $432,65:
| |

(1) Included in net revenues for the three and ninethoanded January 23, 2004 was $166 and $836, cdsply and for the three and ni
months ended January 24, 2003 was $317 and $95ecévely, related to the amortization of defemredenue resulting from the rece
of warrants. Warrants received from our licensepd aur television programming distributor are imilly recorded at their estimated fe
value on the date of grant using the Black-Schofg®n pricing model. A corresponding amount isoreled as deferred revenue and is
amortized into operating income over the life & thlated agreements using the stra-line method

(2) Includes assets of discontinued operations of $2Dahd $21,129 as of January 23, 2004 and AprilZB03, respectively
6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

As of

January 23, April 30,

2004 2003
Land, buildings and improvemer $ 50,29: $51,00¢
Equipment 61,12( 40,374
Vehicles 63¢ 63¢
Property under capital lea 1,05¢ 1,05¢
113,10; 93,07¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 38,21: 33,75:
Total $ 74,89¢ $59,32¢
| I

In January 2004, we paid $20,100 to an unrelakedi party lessor to pay off a lease on our cormyjet. The jet was acquired under an
operating lease in 2000. The transaction was at¢eduor as a capital acquisition in the currenigeerThe purchase price of the aircraft, net of
a $9,500 estimated residual value, will be deptedian a straight-line basis over a 10 year period.

Depreciation and amortization expense for propanty equipment was $2,550 and $7,508 for the thndmme months ended January 23,
2004, respectively, and $2,641 and $6,731 forhliheetand nine months ended January 24, 2003, tesggc
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

7. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consisted of the following:

As of
January 23, 2004

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film libraries $4,71( $(1,030) $3,68(
Trademarks and trade nar 2,50C (2,190 1,31¢(
$7,21( $(2,220) $4,99(
| ] |

As of April 30, 2003

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Film library $3,00( $ — $3,00(
Trademarks and trade narn 2,50( (875) 1,62¢
$5,50( $(875) $4,62¢
— — —

During the nine months ended January 23, 2004,0geiged film libraries and certain other assets#bf710, which will be amortized, using
the straight-line method, over three years.

Amortization expense was $497 and $1,345 for theethnd nine months ended January 23, 2004, résggcand was $105 and $315 for the
three and nine months ended January 24, 2003 atbsgleg.

Estimated amortization expense for each of thalffigears ending is as follows:

April 30, 2004 $1,841
April 30, 2005 1,98¢
April 30, 2006 1,98¢
April 30, 2007 522
$6,33¢

|

8. Investments

Short-term investments consisted of the followisgaJanuary 23, 2004 and April 30, 2003:

January 23, 2004

Unrealized
Amortized Holding
Cost Loss Fair Value
Fixec-income mutual funds and oth $157,10¢ $(412) $156,69¢
United States Treasury Not 45,85¢ — 45,85¢
Total $202,96:« $(412) $202,55:
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April 30, 2003
Unrealized
Holding
Cost Gain Fair Value
Government obligation $ 63,75t $— $ 63,75t
Corporate obligations and ott 38,71 — 38,71
Fixec-income mutual fund 40,027 14¢& 40,17¢
Total $142,49: $14¢€ $142,64:
| | |

In addition to the short-term investments above haee warrants from certain publicly traded companiith whom we have licensing
agreements. These warrants were initially recoredher assets at their fair market value of $&,68 the date received using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with offsetting deéetrevenues. This deferred revenue is amortizedojpérating income over the life of the
respective underlying licensing agreements usiegttaight line method. We have recorded approxém&@423 in mark to market adjustments
using the Black-Scholes model, taking into accabiatmost current market assumptions. This amoustim@uded in Other income, net for the
three and nine months ended January 23, 2004.

9. Commitments and Contingencies
Television programming agreements

Our contract with UPN was renewed in October 2088 modified terms. Under the provisions of thisweontract, we do not sell the
advertising inventory, but rather receive a fixigghts fee for the program and a share of all aésiag revenue sold by UPN in excess of a
certain contractual amount. Under our former agesgrnwith UPN, we sold almost the entire advertismgentory related to ousmackDown!
programming. UPN participated in this revenue ®eaktent of the greater of a contractual percemageminimum guaranteed amount. The
impact of this change on our consolidated finansiatlements is a reduction in advertising revemugsh was offset by an increase in
television rights fees and the elimination of tlaetjgipation costs to UPN.

Legal Proceedings
World Wide Fund for Nature

There has been no significant development in #gsll proceeding subsequent to the disclosure ia Wbtof Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K/ Atfa fiscal year ended April 30, 2003. We cannamifly the potential impact that an
unfavorable outcome of the Fund’s damage claimdcbalve on our financial condition, results of opierss or liquidity, if such a claim ever
were to be presented, but based solely on the Bundubstantiated informal assertions, it coulthbterial.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)
Shenker & Associates

Reference is made to the disclosure in Note 11aiédito Consolidated Financial Statements in ouruahReport on Form 10-K/ A for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2003. SubsequentlyMay 23, 2003, we filed a motion for sanctions assgrsignificant litigation misconduct by
the plaintiff, for which we sought, among othemig, dismissal of all claims against us and a digfiadgment granting our counterclaims. On
October 16, 2003, the Court issued a comprehelgiveon and order in which the Court dismissedélplaintiff's case against us with
prejudice and entered a default in favor of us enamunterclaims.

In the Court’s opinion, the sanctions awarded vpeoper because the plaintiff had admitted to a wagge of litigation misconduct committed
by its principal and owner, Stanley Shenker, intigdyiving perjured deposition testimony, providipgrjured interrogatory answers,
fabricating evidence after instituting this actifexilitating the destruction of evidence aftertinging this action, concealing evidence, and
conspiring with Mr. James Bell, our former Seniac&/President of Licensing and Merchandising, tgege in other litigation misconduct.
Finally, the Court indicated it would consider amaad of counsel fees for expenses directly incua®d result of the sanctionable conduct of
Stanley Shenker & Associates, Inc. upon the coimusf the damages hearing currently schedule&é&ptember 2004. On November 5, 2(
the plaintiff filed a motion to reconsider the CsiOrder dismissing all of its claims and grantangefault judgment in favor of us. This
motion to reconsider was denied on November 203208e plaintiff has sought permission to file aeeed motion for reconsideration, which
must be filed shortly. While we believe that theid®n against Stanley Shenker & Associates waecyrit has the right to appeal. Assuming
the decision stands, we will reverse the amourtsuad as commission expense over the life of tea@gagreement, to selling, general and
administrative expense. The amount accrued ashoidp 23, 2004 was approximately $7.8 million.

The Court also directed us to file a report with @ourt on the discovery we need to prove the dasagsociated with our counterclaims,
which we have done. On December 11, 2003, thegsagtitered into a stipulation regarding our appbtoaor prejudgment remedies permitt
WWE to attach assets up to $5.0 million againsnigtaShenker & Associates and up to $850,000 agaames Bell and Bell Licensing LLC.
On January 31, 2004, we began to attach assetamlie$ Shenker & Associates and, thereafter, as§dmmes Bell and Bell Licensing LLC as
well.

We are continuing our legal action against Mr. Béth respect to irregularities in the licensinggram during his tenure with us, which came
to light as a result of discovery in the Shenkiggdition. We have filed a motion for sanctions lokge Mr. Bell's discovery misconduct.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)
Marvel Enterprise:

Reference is made to the disclosure in Note 11aiédito Consolidated Financial Statements in ouruahReport on Form 10-K/ A for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2003. SubsequentlyOigter dated July 31, 2003, the Court granted ourandor summary judgment in its entire
and dismissed all claims asserted against us. ©let @lso granted in part and denied in part Ursiakennc.’s (formerly known as World
Championship Wrestling, Inc.) motion for summargtgment. Marvel has filed notices of appeal wittpees to the Court’s rulings in both
actions. Universal, Inc. has also cross-filed aceotf appeal with respect to the Court’s denigdant of its motion for summary judgment.
While we believe the court’s decision to dismiss theims against us was correct, we are unableetdigi the likelihood of success of Marvel's
appeal. We are defending Universal, Inc. in corineawith Marvel’s claims against it. In light oféelrsummary judgment rulings, we do not
believe that an unfavorable outcome of the remgiclaims against Universal, Inc. would have a maltedverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations; however no emstes can be given in this regard.

IPO Class Actior

Reference is made to the disclosure in Note 11aiésito Consolidated Financial Statements in ouruahReport on Form 10-K/ A for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2003. Subsequently cass plaintiffs and the issuer defendants, iriolyidur officers named in the suit and us t
reached an agreement in principle for the settlérokall claims. To that end, a memorandum of uatderding concerning the terms of the
settlement (the “MOU”"Wwas circulated for approval among all issuer dedesl While we strongly deny all allegations, weraped the MOL
subject to certain conditions, including, specificaapproval of the settlement as reflected inM@U by our primary insurer. It is our
understanding that the significant majority of msdefendants have approved the MOU as well. Wedaixpe settlement process will move
forward toward the execution of a definitive sattent agreement; however no assurances can beigiteis regard. If a settlement is
consummated on the terms set forth in the MOU, elbe it will not have a material adverse effectour financial condition or results of
operations.

We are not currently a party to any other matdeighl proceedings. However, we are involved in sgwv@ther suits and claims in the ordinary
course of business, and we may from time to tintobe a party to other legal proceedings. The uténoatcome of these other matters is not
expected to have a material adverse effect onioandial condition or results of operations.

10. Discontinued Operations

During fiscal 2003, as a result of continued lossesclosed the restaurant and retail operatiofhefWorld. As a result, we recorded a che

of approximately $12,100 ($8,900, after tax) redateThe World'sshutdown, the majority of which represented thespné value of our
obligations under the facilitg'lease, less estimated sublease rental incometmvérase term. As of April 30, 2003, we had aaiming accrue
balance of approximately $10,300 relating to thetdbwn. Included in the $10,300 was approximat@yp80 of accrued rent and other related
costs and approximately $400 for accrued severandether related costs. The accrual for rent @nergelated costs assumed no sub-rental
income for fiscal 2004 and assumed 75% sub-rem¢alnne for fiscal years 2005 through the end ofe¢hse term, which is October 31, 2017.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

The following table presents the activity in therals relating to the shutdown Biie Worldduring the nine months ended January 23, 2004:

Accrued Rent Accrued Severance

and Other and Other
Related Costs Related Costs Total
Balance as of April 30, 20C $9,90( $40C $10,30(
Amount paid during the nine months ended Januarp@34 2,00¢ 30C 2,30C
Balance as of January 23, 2( $7,90( $10C $ 8,00(
| | |

Although we are actively seeking to sub-let theperty, we have not found a tenant. Our assumptielasing to the sub-rental income and the
related rent accrual will continue to be monitosedi adjusted accordingly.

In early May 2001, we formalized our decision teadintinue operations of the XFL. The resultJloé Worldbusiness and the assets and
liabilities of The Worldand the XFL have been classified as discontinuedatipns in our consolidated financial statementsare
summarized as follows:

Three months endec Nine months endec

January 23, January 24, January 23, January 24,
2004 2003 2004 2003
Discontinued operation
Loss (income) fronThe Worldoperations, net of a tax bene
of $33 and tax expense of $17 for the three and mianths
ended January 23, 2004, respectively and net di¢aefits o
$13,476 and $15,432 for the three and nine monttied
January 24, 2003, respectivt $(76) $(21,98%) $ 32 $(25,17%)
| | | I
As of
January 23, April 30,
2004 2003
Assets:
Cash $ 9LC $ 1,18t
Accounts receivabl — 5
Income tax receivabl 5,347 5,34:
Prepaid expenst 90 94
Inventory 60 65
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowanc®19350 14,43 14,43
Total Asset: $20,84¢ $21,12¢
| I
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ — $ 19
Accrued expense 8,91t 11,56!
Due to World Wrestling Entertainment, Ir 24C 262
Minority interest (28¢) (28¢)
Total Liabilities $ 8,867 $11,55¢
| I

Included in income from discontinued operationstfe nine months ended January 23, 2004 was $68%9peise recoveries. Assets of the

discontinued operations are stated at their estidhagt realizable value.
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Prospectus

7,066,644 Shares

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.

Class A Common Stock

All of the shares of Class A common stoekatibed in this prospectus are being offered afditsy the selling stockholder identified in
this prospectus. We will not receive any of thegeexds from the sale of the shares of Class A constumk by the selling stockholder.

We have two classes of authorized commorkstolass A common stock and Class B common stol&.sElling stockholder holds shares
of Class B common stock, which, upon their salthig offering, will convert automatically into stegrof Class A common stock on a one-for-
one basis.

This prospectus describes the general manmwenich our Class A common stock may be offeredgishis prospectus. We will provide
specific information about any offerings of our &&A common stock in one or more supplements soptttispectus. We encourage you to read
this prospectus and any accompanying prospectysesupnt carefully before you make your investmetision.

Our Class A common stock is listed on The Nk Stock Exchange under the symbol “WWE.” On MBy2004, the last reported sale
price of our Class A common stock on the NYSE whH3 58.

Investing in our Class A Common Stock involves risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 3 of thisrBspectus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commiss@ any state securities commission has approveisapproved of these securities or
passed upon the adequacy of this prospectus. Amggsentation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is May 5, 2004
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registratiotesteent that we filed with the Securities and Exgga@ommission, or the “SEC,” using a “shelf”
registration process. Under this shelf processséleng stockholder may from time to time selltop total of 7,066,644 shares of our Class A
common stock described in this prospectus in omaae offerings. Each time the selling stockhokldls Class A common stock, we will
provide a prospectus supplement that will contpcdic information about the terms of that offgriand the manner in which the Class A
common stock will be offered. The prospectus suppl@ may also add, update, or change informatiotagued in this prospectus. If there is
any inconsistency between the information in thisspectus and a prospectus supplement, you shelyldm the information in that prospectus
supplement. We encourage you to read this prospectd any prospectus supplement together withiadditinformation described under the
heading “Where You Can Find More Information” aridcorporation by Reference.”

When acquiring any Class A common stock dised in this prospectus, you should rely only enitiformation provided in this prospectus
and any accompanying prospectus supplement, imgutie information incorporated by reference. Nohes, the selling stockholder, nor any
underwriters or agents have authorized anyoneaweighe you with different information. None of ubgtselling stockholder, nor any
underwriters or agents are offering the securitieany state where such an offer is prohibited. ¥bauld not assume that the information in
this prospectus, any prospectus supplement, odaoyment incorporated by reference is truthfulanplete at any date other than the date of
those documents.

Unless otherwise mentioned or unless thessmequires otherwise, all references in this peasus and any prospectus supplement to
“WWE,” “our company,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or similarreferences mean World Wrestling Entertainment, &mad its subsidiaries. In this
prospectus and any prospectus supplement, the‘temmon stock” includes both our Class A commortktand Class B common stock.

World Wrestling Entertainment and the Worldéatling Entertainment logo are two of our markisisTprospectus and any prospectus
supplement also contain other of our trademarkstiat names, as well as those of other compahiletsademarks and trade names appe:
in this prospectus and any prospectus supplemeriharproperty of their respective holders.

Our fiscal year ends on April 30 of each ndbr year. All references to fiscal years in thizgpectus and any prospectus supplement refer
to the fiscal years ended in the indicated calegdars. For example, “fiscal 2003” refers to theedil year ended April 30, 2003.

WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

We are an integrated media and entertainc@npany engaged in the development, productiomzarteting of television and pay-per-
view programming and live events and the licensingd sale of branded consumer products. We haveibeeled in the sports entertainment
business for approximately 25 years, and we haveldeed World Wrestling Entertainment into a widedgognized and enduring brand.

We develop unique and creative content cedtaround our talent and presented at our liveteledised events. At the heart of our success
are the athletic and entertainment skills and dppfeaur WWE Superstars and our consistently intieesand multi-faceted storylines across
our two brands. Anchored by our successful brawdsare able to leverage our content and talensaarotually all media outlets. Our
television programs, live events, pay-per-view ésemd branded merchandise provide significantseppsmotion and marketing opportunities
that reinforce our brands. This integrated modabéss us to more effectively reach our fans, inclgdhe highly-coveted 12-34 year-old male
demographic.

The address of our principal executive officeeP.O. Box 3857, 1241 East Main Street, Stamf@ohnecticut 06902, and our telephone
number is (203) 352-8600. Our corporate websitedated at corporate.wwe.com, and additional infitiam about our live events, televisions
programs, pay-per-view events and performers cdonlrel at wwe.com. None of the information on ahgpur websites is part of this
prospectus.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains or incorporateseifigrence “forward-looking statements” within theaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. We use words such as “will Kkeesult,” “are expected to,” “will continue,” “ianticipated,” “estimated,” “intends,”
“plans,” “projections” and other similar expresssaio identify some, but not all, forward-lookingtments. All of our forward-looking
statements involve estimates and uncertaintiecthdt cause actual results to differ materialpnirthose expressed in the forward-looking
statements, and you should not place undue reliant¢bose statements. Accordingly, any such staiesrage qualified in their entirety by
reference to the key factors described under thara“Risk Factors” in this prospectus and in aegompanying prospectus supplement.

Any forward-looking statement speaks onlpgthe date on which it is made, and except asiredjly law, we undertake no obligation to
update any forward-looking statement containechooriporated by reference in this prospectus tecefvents or circumstances after the date
on which it is made or to reflect the occurrencamticipated or unanticipated events or circumsanilew factors that could cause our
business to develop other than as we expect msg frdm time to time, and it is not possible fotapredict all of them. Furthermore, we
cannot assess the impact of each currently knowrewrfactor on our results of operations or themixto which any factor, or combination of
factors, may cause actual results to differ fronsthcontained in any forward-looking statements.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in shares of our Class A commitoick involves numerous risks. You should cargfatinsider the risks described below in
addition to the other information contained inmcarporated by reference into this prospectus agcaacompanying prospectus supplement
before buying shares of our Class A common stock.

Our failure to continue to develop creative and erdgrtaining programs and events would likely lead ta decline in the popularity of
our brand of entertainment.

The creation, marketing and distribution of tive and televised entertainment, including pay-per-view events, is at the core of our
business and is critical to our ability to generateenues across our media platforms and produleteuOur failure to continue to create
popular live events and televised programming wdikkly lead to a decline in our television ratireysd attendance at our live events, which
would likely adversely affect our operating results

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ofwr storylines and the popularity
of our brand of entertainment.

Our success depends, in large part, uporlaility to recruit, train and retain athletic perfeers who have the physical presence, acting
ability and charisma to portray characters in owe vents and televised programming. We cannaetras®u that we will be able to continue
identify, train and retain these performers infiitere. Additionally, we cannot assure you thatwikt be able to retain our current performers
during the terms of their contracts or when theintcacts expire. Our failure to attract and retagg performers, or a serious or untimely injury
to, or the death of, or unexpected or premature dosetirement for any reason of any of our kesfqyeners, could lead to a decline in the
appeal of our storylines and the popularity of brand of entertainment, which could adversely affer operating results.

The loss of the creative services of Vincent K. Mcihon could adversely affect our ability to create ppular characters and creative
storylines.

For the foreseeable future, we will depenaMilg on the vision and services of Vincent K. Mchda. In addition to serving as Chairman of
our board of directors, Mr. McMahon leads the duweateam that develops the storylines and the chersfor our televised programming and
live events. Mr. McMahon is also an important memifethe cast of performers. The loss of Mr. McMaltue to retirement, disability or
death or other unexpected termination for any nreasold have a material adverse effect on ourtgidi create popular characters and creative
storylines, which could adversely affect our opeatesults. We do not carry key man life insuraoneMr. McMahon sufficient to cover the
loss of his services.

Our failure to maintain or renew our key agreementscould adversely affect our ability to distribute ar television and pay-per-view
programming.

We have an agreement with Viacom throughe&eper 2005 under which five hours of our prograngrare shown weekly on cable
networks owned by Viacom. Our flagship cable pragr@8AW, as well as our one-hour live event shdglocity, our weekly magazine-style
program,The WWE ExperienceandSunday Night Headll currently air on Spike TV, a cable network owr®y Viacom. Our flagship
broadcast prograngmackDown! airs on UPN through September 2006. Becauseevenues are generated, directly and indirectlynftioe
distribution of our televised and pay-pgew programming, any failure to maintain or ren@wangements with the distributors of our progr
or the failure of the distributors to continue toyide services to us could adversely affect owarafing results.

A decline in general economic conditions could adveely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by general ecimoonditions, which generally may affect consurhdisposable income, the level of
advertising spending and the size and number ail @ttlets. The demand for entertainment and teisativities tends to be highly sensitive to
the level of consumers’ disposable income. A dedingeneral economic conditions could reduceekellof discretionary income that our
fans and potential fans have to spend on our lixktelevised entertainment and branded merchansiseh could adversely affect our
revenues. A decline in general economic conditmmdd also reduce levels of advertising spendingciwcould impair our ability to sell
advertising for our various media platforms at atable rates or at all.
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Furthermore, a decline in the size or number d@ireutlets for our branded merchandise and codattin in the retail industry as a result of
declining general economic conditions could harmdistribution and sales of this merchandise. Ahthe foregoing could adversely affect
our operating results.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate,
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumergasid entertainment trends, which are unpredictaidesubject to change and may be affected
by changes in the social and political climate. @ragramming is created to evoke a passionate nsgpioom our fans. A change in our fans’
tastes or a material change in the perceptionsiobosiness partners, including our advertisesgridutors and licensees, whether as a result of
the social and political climate or otherwise, abativersely affect our operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related prate-sector initiatives could adversely affect oubusiness.

While the production and distribution of tékton programming by independent producers isdiretctly regulated by the federal or state
governments in the United States, the marketplactefevision programming in the United Statesfisaed significantly by government
regulations applicable to, as well as social andipal influences on, television stations, telegis networks and cable and satellite television
systems and channels. We voluntarily designatsuitability of each of our television shows usingrglard industry ratings, such as PG (L,V)
or TV14. A number of governmental and private-settitiatives relating to the content of media pramming have been announced in
response to certain recent events unrelated tomupany. Changes in governmental policy and prigsator perceptions could further restrict
our program content and adversely affect our leskigewership and operating results.

The markets in which we operate are highly competite, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedand we may not be able to
compete effectively, especially against competitorgith greater financial resources or marketplace pesence.

We compete for advertising dollars with othexdia companies. For our live, television and pay~view audiences, we face competition
from professional and college sports, as well anfother forms of live and televised entertainmeerd other leisure activities in a rapidly
changing and increasingly fragmented marketplaoetite sale of our branded merchandise, we compttieentertainment companies,
professional and college sports leagues and othker of branded apparel and merchandise. Marhyeatdmpanies with whom we compete
have greater financial resources than we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could ritsni a significant loss of viewers, venues, distition channels or performers and fewer
entertainment and advertising dollars spent orfaum of sports entertainment, any of which couldexdely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internationaiharkets.

Our production of live events overseas subjas to the risks involved in foreign travel, Ibeegulations, including regulations requiring us
to obtain visas for our performers, and politicedtability inherent in varying degrees in those kets. In addition, the licensing of our
television and branded merchandise in internatiorakets exposes us to some degree of currencyTtigse risks could adversely affect our
operating results and impair our ability to pursue business strategy as it relates to interndtimaakets.

We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations.

In various states in the United States and som@doijurisdictions, athletic commissions and othgplicable regulatory agencies require
to obtain licenses for promoters, medical cleararg®l/or other permits or licenses for performed¥@ permits for events in order for us to
promote and conduct our live events. In the evestwe fail to comply with the regulations of atarlar jurisdiction, we may be prohibited
from promoting and conducting our live events iattjurisdiction. The inability to present our liegents over an extended period of time or in
a number of jurisdictions could lead to a declim¢hie various revenue streams generated fromwielrents, which could adversely affect our
operating results.
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Because we depend upon our intellectual property ghts, our inability to protect those rights or ourinfringement of others’
intellectual property rights could adversely affectour business.

Our inability to protect our large portfolod trademarks, service marks, copyrighted mataria characters, trade names and other
intellectual property rights from piracy, countétifeg or other unauthorized use could negativefgctfour business. Intellectual property is
material to all aspects of our operations, and xypeRd substantial cost and effort in an attempbaintain and protect our intellectual property
and to maintain compliance vis-a-vis other partisllectual property. We have a large portfolfo@gistered and unregistered trademarks anc
service marks worldwide and maintain a large catalocopyrighted works, including copyrights on eelevision programming, music,
photographs, books, magazines and apparel artingipal focus of our efforts is to protect the iigetual property relating to our originally
created characters portrayed by our performers;iwdincompasses images, likenesses, names anddethiEfiying indicia of these characters.
We also own a large number of Internet website domames and operate a network of developed, cbhesed sites, which facilitate and
contribute to the exploitation of our intellectymbperty worldwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intelleCuraperty rights by, among other things, searchirglinternet to ascertain unauthorized use of
our intellectual property, seizing at our live eteegoods that feature unauthorized use of ourl@aielal property and seeking restraining orders
and/or damages in court against individuals ortiestinfringing our intellectual property rightsu©failure to curtail piracy, infringement or
other unauthorized use of our intellectual propediits effectively, or our infringement of otheistellectual property rights, could adversely
affect our operating results.

We could incur substantial liabilities if pending material litigation is resolved unfavorably.

We are currently a party to civil litigation, whicifi concluded adversely to our interests, couldesisely affect our operating results or cc
require us to conduct certain aspects of our basidédferently. These material legal proceedingsmaore fully described in documents
incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

For example, in April 2000, the World WiderfeLfor Nature and its American affiliate, The Wowidldlife Fund (collectively, the “Fung;
instituted legal proceedings against us in the Bhdfligh Court seeking injunctive relief and unsfied damages for alleged breaches of a
1994 agreement between the Fund and us regardingsthof the initials “wwf.” In August 2001, théalfrjudge granted the Fund’s motion for
summary judgment, holding that we breached theemgeat by using the initials “wwf” in connection Witertain of our website addresses and
our former “scratch” logo. The English Court of Aggts subsequently upheld that ruling. Since NoverhBe2002, we have been subject to an
injunction barring us, either on our own or throwmlr officers, servants, agents, subsidiariesnfees or sub-licensees, our television or other
affiliates or otherwise, of most uses of the inétiavwf,” including in connection with the “wwf” wiesite addresses and the use of our former
“scratch” logo.

We have complied with the injunction and h&aleen a number of significant steps that go beytbaditeral requirements of the injunction.
However, the elimination of certain historical usé®ur former scratch logo during the period frd@98 through May 2002 and the scratch
logo embedded in programming code of WWE-licensddwgames created during the period from 199utir®®001 is, as a practical matter,
not possible. On an application for relief by oidengame licensee, THQ/ Jakks Pacific LLC, the BhgCourt of Appeals ruled that THQ/
Jakks’ marketing and sale of games with embeddedereces to the initials “wwf” would not violateettinjunction and would not constitute
contempt of court by either THQ/ Jakks or us.

As part of its original complaint, the Fumttluded a damages claim associated with our udeedhitials “wwf”, although the Fund has
never initiated any proceedings or presented aideaee before the court in this regard. We stromiggpute that the Fund has suffered any
such damages. We cannot quantify the potential étripat an unfavorable outcome of the Fenddmage claim, if such a claim ever were t
presented, could have on our financial conditiesuits of operations or liquidity; however, basekkly on the Fund’s unsubstantiated out-of-
court assertions, it could be material.

Our insurance may not be adequate to cover liabilies resulting from accidents or injuries that occurduring our physically
demanding events.

We anticipate that we will hold more than 3@ events each year. This schedule exposesartormers and our employees who are
involved in the production of those events to flsk of travel and performance-
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related accidents, the consequences of which milgenfully covered by insurance. The physical ratfrour events exposes our performel
the risk of serious injury or death. Although oerfermers, as independent contractors, are redgerfsir maintaining their own health,
disability and life insurance, we self-insure heabverage for our performers in the event that tive injured while performing. We also self-
insure a substantial portion of any other liabitityat we could incur relating to such injuries. kilay to us resulting from any death or serious
injury sustained by one of our performers whilefpening, to the extent not covered by our insuraccelld adversely affect our operating
results.

We will face a variety of risks if we expand into ew and complementary businesses.

We have entered into new or complementarjnesses in the past and may do so again in thesfutor example, we are exploring
opportunities related to filmed entertainment. Risk expansion may include: potential diversiomainagement’s attention and other
resources, including available cash, from our eégsbusiness; unanticipated liabilities or continges; reduced earnings due to increased
depreciation and other costs; competition from otoenpanies with experience in such businessesjlgesadditional regulatory requirements
and compliance costs; and dilution of our stockbdtipercentage ownership and/or an increase itegarage if we issue equity securities or
incur debt to finance any of these ventures.

Through his beneficial ownership of a substantial mjority of our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon ca exercise control over
our affairs, and his interests may conflict with tke holders of our Class A common stock.

We have two classes of common stock, inclgiditass A common stock and Class B common stock.hbiiders of Class A common stock
generally have rights identical to holders of CIBssommon stock, except that holders of Class Aroomstock are entitled to one vote per
share, and holders of Class B common stock art#ezhto ten votes per share. Holders of both cias§eommon stock generally will vote
together as a single class on all matters preseatstwckholders for their vote or approval, exapbdtherwise required by applicable Delaware
law.

A substantial majority of the issued and tartding shares of Class B common stock is ownedfiméally by Vincent K. McMahon, either
directly or indirectly as the trustee of The Vint& McMahon Irrevocable Trust, the selling stockler identified in this prospectus. Upon a
sale of shares by the selling stockholder pursteatitis prospectus, each share of Class B comnoak still convert automatically into one
share of Class A common stock. Assuming that thimgestockholder sells all of its shares offerawiar this prospectus and any prospectus
supplement, and after giving effect to the salthose shares, Mr. McMahon will control approximgat@b% of the voting power of the issued
and outstanding shares of our common stock. Thrbiggheneficial ownership of a substantial majootypur Class B common stock,

Mr. McMahon effectively can exercise control over affairs, and his interests could conflict wikte tholders of our Class A common stock
addition, the voting power of Mr. McMahon througis bwnership of our Class B common stock couldalisage others from initiating
potential mergers, takeovers or other change dfabimansactions. As a result, the market pricewfClass A common stock could decline.

A substantial number of shares will be eligible forfuture sale by Mr. McMahon, and the sale of thosehares could lower our stock
price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, that the saleClass A common stock contemplated by thisgeois and any prospectus supplern
or future sales of shares of outstanding ClassrBneon stock (which, upon distribution to anyone otihan Mr. McMahon, Mrs. McMahon,
any descendant of either of them, any entity thattiolly owned and is controlled by any combinatdisuch persons or any trust all of the
beneficiaries of which are any combination of spehsons, will automatically convert on a one-foedrasis into shares of Class A common
stock), or the availability of those shares foufetsale will have on the market price of our Clasommon stock. Sales of substantial amo
of our Class B common stock, or the perceptionshah sales could occur, may lower the prevailimgkeat price of our Class A common
stock. These factors could also make it more diffifor us to raise funds through future offerimgfour Class A common stock.

Our Class A common stock has a relatively small puikz “float.”

Historically, as a result of our relativelyall public float, our Class A common stock hasrbkess liquid than the common stock of
companies with broader public ownership, and thditig prices for our Class A
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common stock have been more volatile than genenzdly be the case for more widely-held common stAakong other things, trading of a
relatively small volume of our Class A common stocky have a greater impact on the trading pricguofClass A common stock than would
be the case if our public float were larger. Wergdrassure that such effects will not continuerdfie sale of any shares under this prospectus.

We may face risks related to our recent restatemerdf our financial statements.

We recently restated our financial statemémtevise the accounting related to the 2001 aiipm of certain assets of World
Championship Wrestling, Inc., WCW. There were narges to revenues or costs of revenues in anyeqfahiods affected. As a result of th
changes, which principally affect fiscal 2001 ai®®2, $6.6 million of costs, which were originalgcorded and capitalized as intangible as
are instead recorded as $1.7 million and $4.9 onilbf selling, general and administrative expemséscal 2001 and 2002, respectively. These
costs arose from the termination of certain WCWniges and related agreements assumed in thatdiiansd he remaining $2.5 million of
purchase price, which was originally assigned aefinite life for accounting purposes, is now arized over a six-year period and increases
annual amortization by $0.4 million in fiscal 2082ough 2007. In the past, some companies that festated their financial statements have
been subject to securities class action lawsuissa@areholder derivative actions.

USE OF PROCEEDS
We will not receive any proceeds from theeslthe shares of Class A common stock by thingedtockholder.
DIVIDEND POLICY

We have declared and paid quarterly cashieids of $.04 per share on both the Class A comstomk and Class B common stock in each
fiscal quarter since June 2003. The Class A comstmek and Class B common stock are entitled tolquprashare dividends. On April 27,
2004, our Board of Directors declared a dividen8.66 per share of Class A and Class B common staghble on July 8, 2004 to
shareholders of record on June 28, 2004.

Our quarterly dividend is based on a numtbéactors, including our liquidity and historicaha projected cash flows. The declaration and
payment of dividends, and the determination ofaim®unt of any dividend, is subject to the discretibour board of directors. Any
determination as to the payment of dividends, idiclg the amount of dividends, will depend on, amotiter things, general economic and
business conditions, our strategic plan, our fitelmesults and condition, contractual and legatrietions on the payment of dividends and
such other factors as our board of directors magicer to be relevant.

MARKET PRICE FOR OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK
Our Class A common stock is listed undersyrabol “WWE" on the New York Stock Exchange.

Since the initial public offering, our capitation has consisted of two classes of commookstGlass A common stock and Class B
common stock. Upon the sale of the Class B comrtak 4o any person other than Mr. McMahon, Mrs. Mdin, any descendant of eithe
them, any entity that is wholly owned and is coltébby any combination of such persons or anyttallof the beneficiaries of which are any
combination of such persons, the shares will carangtomatically into the same number of sharesla§€CA common stock.

The table below sets forth for the periodtidated the per share range of the high and loev@étes of our Class A common stock on the
New York Stock Exchange and dividends paid peresb&Class A common stoc
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We also have declared a dividend of $.06 per shfa@ass A and Class B common stock payable on8uttyshareholders of record on
June 28.

Class A
Common Stock Dividends Paid Per
Share of Class A
High Low Common Stock
Fiscal 200z
First Quartel $15.5( $12.0C
Second Quarte $13.2( $10.3:
Third Quartel $14.2¢ $10.67
Fourth Quarte $15.8: $12.81
Fiscal 200z
First Quarte! $15.3( $ 8.4¢
Second Quarte $10.4( $ 6.7¢
Third Quartel $ 9.0Z $ 7.5¢
Fourth Quarte $ 9.2C $ 7.4:
Fiscal 2004
First Quarte! $11.07 $ 8.8t $.04
Second Quarte $11.0C $ 9.1C $.04
Third Quartel $14.1¢ $10.5¢ $.04
Fourth Quarte $15.4¢ $12.3¢ $.04

On May 4, 2004, the last reported sale pofogur Class A common stock on the NYSE was $13X880f May 4, 2004, there were
approximately 11,032 stockholders of record of Glass A common stock and three holders of recomliofClass B common stock.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

Our authorized capital stock consists of 280,000 shares of Class A common stock, 60,0006s8a€es of Class B common stock, $.01 par
value per share, and 20,000,000 shares of prefstoel, $.01 par value. The following summary at&i@ provisions relating to the common
stock and preferred stock does not purport to Ineptete and is subject to, and qualified in its reyi by, provisions of applicable Delaware
and the provisions of our amended and restatedicate of incorporation and our restated by-laws.

The rights, preferences and privileges oflard of common stock are subject to, and may beradly affected by, the rights of the holders
of shares of any series of preferred stock, whiehmway designate and issue in the future. For ex@rifple issue a series of preferred stock
that grants a liquidation preference to the hol@désuch preferred stock, the rights of holdersahmon stock and nonvoting common stock
upon liquidation could be adversely affected. SeePreferred Stock.”

Common Stock

Voting RightsEach holder of shares of Class A common stocktifeshto one vote per share, and each holder afeshof Class B
common stock is entitled to ten votes per shargllomatters to be voted on by our stockholderddelis of both classes of common stock
generally will vote together as a single class lbmatters presented to our stockholders for thieie or approval, except as otherwise required
by applicable Delaware law. Holders of shares afamummon stock are not entitled to cumulate vatethé election of directors.

Directors may be removed with cause by the holdétse common stock. A vacancy on the board crelayettie removal or resignation ¢
director or by the expansion of the authorized neind$ directors may be filled by a vote of the diges then in office.

Dividend RightsThe holders of shares of Class A common stock dagds@® common stock are entitled to dividends ahdradistributions
if, as and when declared by our board of direcbortsof assets legally available therefor, subje¢he rights of any holder of shares of prefe
stock and any restrictions set forth in any of imdebtedness outstanding from time to time. Thelérsl of the Class A and Class B common
stock are entitled to equal per share dividendsdéstdbutions.
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Conversion Rightdf, at any time, any shares of Class B common stwelkowned beneficially by any person other thamc¥nt K.
McMahon, Linda E. McMahon, any descendent of eitifehem, any entity that is wholly-owned and cofied by any combination of such
persons or any trust all the beneficiaries of wtdod any combination of such persons, each of thlogees will convert automatically into
shares of Class A common stock. In addition, thes€B common stock is fully convertible into ClAssommon stock, on a one-for-one basis,
at any time at the option of the holder.

Other RightsUpon our liquidation, dissolution or winding upetholders of the shares of Class A common stockCiass B common
stock would be entitled to share pro rata in ttstritiution of all of our assets remaining afteisfattion of all our liabilities and the payment
the liguidation preference of any outstanding prefé stock. The holders of the Class A common stoakClass B common stock have no
preemptive or other subscription rights to purchasecapital stock. No share of our common stoskasl in or outstanding prior to this
offering is subject to any further call or assessinme

Preferred Stock

Our board of directors has the authority, withautHer action by the stockholders, to issue upot@@0,000 shares of preferred stock in
or more series and to fix the number of sharedgdason, voting rights, preferences and optiomal ather special rights and the restrictions or
qualifications thereof. The rights, preferencesjil@ges and powers of each series of preferreckstoay differ with respect to dividends,
amounts payable on liquidation, voting, conversiedemption, sinking funds and other matters. Fsaadnce of shares of preferred stock ¢
decrease the amount of earnings and assets aeditaldistribution to holders of shares of our coomnstock and could adversely affect the
rights and powers, including voting rights, of halsl of shares of our common stock. The existeneeithforized and undesignated shares of
preferred stock may also have an adverse effettt@market price of the Class A common stock. lditéeh, the issuance of any shares of
preferred stock could have the effect of delaydeferring or preventing a change of control ofNis.shares of preferred stock are outstanding,
and we have no current intention to issue any shafrpreferred stock.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law

We are a Delaware corporation that is sulifg&ection 203 of the DGCL. Section 203 providegeneral, that a stockholder acquiring
more than 15% of the outstanding voting stock ob@poration subject to Section 203, but less tHe#b 8f such stock, may not engage in a
business combination, as defined in Section 20, thie corporation for a period of three years ftbmdate on which that stockholder bec:
an interested stockholder, as defined in Sectid@) @fless (1) prior to such date, the corporatitward of directors approved either the
business combination or the transaction in whiehstiockholder became an interested stockhold&t)dhé business combination is approved
by the corporation’s board of directors and auttestiby the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the antiihg voting stock of the corporation not
owned by the interested stockholder. A “businesslination” includes a merger, asset sale or otlagisiction resulting in a financial benefit
to a stockholder. Section 203 could prohibit oragled merger or other takeover or change of cotraakaction with respect to us and,
accordingly, may discourage actions that couldlt@sa premium over the market price for the skdreld by the public stockholders.

Transfer and Dividend Paying Agent and Registrar
The transfer and dividend paying agent agister for our Class A common stock is AmericaocktTransfer & Trust Company.
SELLING STOCKHOLDER

The selling stockholder is The Vincent K. Mahbn Irrevocable Trust dated June 30, 1999, whizh @stablished as an estate planning
vehicle for the benefit of Vincent K. McMahon an@mbers of his family. Mr. McMahon, as the trusté¢he Trust, has sole voting and
investment power and authority with respect to#/#$6,644 shares of Class B common stock held dyrtist until termination of the trust on
June 30, 2004 or his earlier death. On terminatfdthe Trust, a portion of the assets, whetheh@form of Class B common stock, cash or
other property, then held by the Trust will passfio McMahon if he is living, and the rest will pato
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new, successor trusts for other members of hislyaiir. McMahon will not act as trustee of such sessor trusts and will have no voting or
investment power with respect to their assets.

The following table sets forth the numbesbéres of our Class B common stock beneficially exviny the selling stockholder. No estimate
can be given as to the amount of our Class B constarrk that will be beneficially owned by the sadlistockholder after the sale of any sh
under this prospectus because the selling stockhatady offer all, some or none of the shares o§€Bicommon stock beneficially owned by
it. The shares offered by this prospectus may fered from time to time by the selling stockholdEne nhumber of shares to be offered by the
selling stockholder will be disclosed in a suppleirte this prospectus. The number of shares st bmlow represents the number of shares of
Class A common stock as of May 4, 2004 into whigghares of Class B common stock held by thengedtiockholder may be converted and
their percentage of total outstanding shares ofrcomstock.

Number of Shares Percent of
Name of Selling Stockholder Beneficially Owned Outstanding Shares
The Vincent K. McMahon Irrevocable Tru 7,066,64 10.52%

Vincent K. McMahon and Linda E. McMahon, Ireir individual capacities, will not be offeringyanommon stock under this prospectus.
Excluding the 7,066,644 shares held by the se#itngkholder, Mr. McMahon owns directly 47,146,8®&res of Class B common stock, or
approximately 95% of our total voting power, andsMvicMahon owns directly 566,770 shares of Claggf®mon stock, or approximately 1
of our total voting power. Mr. McMahon is the Chraan of our board of directors and Mrs. McMahonus Ghief Executive Officer. For
information about the compensation of Mr. McMahoi #rs. McMahon, please refer to the informatiocoirporated by reference in this
prospectus.

In August 2001, the Trust sold to InvemedaBat Fund, L.P. an aggregate of 1,886,793 shdresmomon stock in a transaction exempt
from registration under the Securities Act. In cection with the sale of these shares by the TMiIstMcMahon agreed to vote his shares of
our common stock and the shares of our common stioektly held by the selling stockholder to elbtithael B. Solomon (or his successor
designated by an affiliate of Invemed) as a dineofwur company. In addition, we entered into gistation rights agreement under which we
registered all shares of our common stock helchbgried and agreed to maintain the effectivenesadf registration statement until no
longer needed, pay certain expenses incident teetiistration, excluding underwriter commissiong] &ndemnify Invemed against certain
associated civil liabilities, including liabilitiesnder the Securities Act. We also agreed to peowiatice to Invemed of any registration under
the Securities Act of our common stock and to ptedinvemed with the opportunity to include its €sof our common stock in any such
offering. Invemed has advised us that it will nattgipate in the registration or sale of any shaxeour common stock under this prospectus.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
The Class A common stock may be sold fronetimtime in one or more transactions:
« to or through underwriters or deale
« through agents
« directly to purchasers; or
« through a combination of these methc
The securities may be distributed at:
« a fixed price or prices, which may be chanc
* market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
« prices related to the prevailing market prices
* negotiated prices.

10




Table of Contents
General

Underwriters, dealers, agents and remarkditings that participate in the distribution of tbffered securities may be “underwriters” as
defined in the Securities Act. Any discounts or caissions they receive from the selling stockhoklgst any profits they receive on the resale
of the offered securities may be treated as undiémgdiscounts and commissions under the Secarfiet. We will identify any underwriters,
agents or dealers and describe their commissieas,dr discounts in the applicable prospectus soppit.

Underwriters

If underwriters are used in a sale, they adljuire the offered securities for their own actolihe underwriters may resell the securities in
one or more transactions, including negotiatedstrations. These sales will be made at a fixed pullering price or at varying prices
determined at the time of the sale. The sellingldtolder may offer the securities to the publiotigh an underwriting syndicate or through a
single underwriter.

Unless the applicable prospectus supplenmatessotherwise, the obligations of any underwsiterpurchase the offered securities will be
subject to certain conditions contained in an uwdiéng agreement that we and the selling stockéoldill enter into with any underwriters at
the time of the sale to them. Any underwriters W@l obligated to purchase all of the securitiethefseries offered if any of the securities are
purchased, unless the applicable prospectus supptesays otherwise. Any public offering price angl discounts or concessions allowed,
reallowed or paid to dealers may be changed frome tb time.

Agents

The selling stockholder may designate agensell the securities. The agents will agree ®thgir best efforts to solicit purchases for the
period of their appointment. The selling stockholaay also sell securities to one or more remanigefirms, acting as principals for their own
accounts or as agents for the selling stockholder.

Dealers

The selling stockholder may sell the offesedurities to dealers as principals. These dealaysthen resell such securities to the public
either at varying prices to be determined by thedets or at a fixed offering price agreed to with selling stockholder at the time of resale.

Direct Sales
The selling stockholder may choose to se@ldffered securities directly. In this case, noamditers or agents would be involved.
Institutional Purchasers

The selling stockholder may authorize agents, dealeunderwriters to solicit certain institutiomavestors to purchase offered securitie
a delayed delivery basis pursuant to delayed dgligentracts providing for payment and deliveryaospecified future date. The applicable
prospectus supplement will provide the detailsmyf such arrangement, including the offering prind aommissions payable on the
solicitations. The selling stockholder will entata such delayed contracts only with institutiopafchasers that it approves. These institutions
may include commercial and savings banks, insuranoganies, pension funds, investment companiegdnchtional and charitable
institutions.

Indemnification; Other Relationships

The selling stockholder may have agreemeittsagents, underwriters, dealers and remarketingsfto indemnify them against certain
civil liabilities, including liabilities under th&ecurities Act. Agents, underwriters, dealers @amdarketing firms, and their affiliates, may
engage in transactions with, or perform servicesus in the ordinary course of business. Thisudes commercial banking and investment
banking transactions.

Market Making, Stabilization and Other Transactions

Any underwriter may engage in stabilizingisactions, syndicate covering transactions andliyenids in accordance with Rule 104 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Stabilizirgngactions involve bids to
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purchase the underlying security in the open mdtkahe purpose of pegging, fixing or maintainithg price of the securities. Syndicate
covering transactions involve purchases of theré#siin the open market after the distributiors baen completed in order to cover syndicate
short positions.

Penalty bids permit underwriters to reclaigediing concession from a syndicate member wherséturities originally sold by the
syndicate member are purchased in a syndicateiogveansaction to cover syndicate short positi&tabilizing transactions, syndicate
covering transactions and penalty bids may causeriice of the securities to be higher than it wideg in the absence of the transactions. Any
underwriters may, if they commence these transagtidiscontinue them at any time.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the Securities and Exclea@gmmission a registration statement on Form Se@uthe Securities Act of 1933 with
respect to the Class A common stock offered her€big. prospectus does not contain all of the infation set forth in the registration
statement, certain portions of which are omittegersnitted by the rules and regulations of the 8ges and Exchange Commission. For
further information pertaining to us and the ClAssommon stock to be sold under this prospectdsreace is made to the registration
statement, including the exhibits thereto and iharfcial statements, notes and schedules filedoastahereof. Statements contained in this
prospectus regarding the contents of any contrastier document referred to herein or thereimatenecessarily complete, and in each
instance reference is made to the copy of suchractndr other document filed as an exhibit to #ngistration statement or such other docun
each such statement being qualified in all respgectuch reference.

We file annual, quarterly and special repgutexy statements and other information with teeBities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendezh Bports, proxy statements and other informagignyell as the registration statement
the exhibits and schedules thereto, may be inspesféhout charge, at the public reference facititgintained by the Securities and Exchange
Commission at Room 1024, Judiciary Plaza, 450 Bfteet, NW, Washington, D.C. 20549. Copies of suelterial may also be obtained from
the Public Reference Section of the SecuritiesEar@mhange Commission at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Wagtoim, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates.
You may obtain information on the operation of 8exurities and Exchange Commission public referémaéties by calling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC-0330. Such materials can be inspected on th&i8eand Exchange Commission’s Web site at wwavg®y. Our corporate website is
located at www.corporate.wwe.com, and additiontdrimation about our live events, televisions progsapay-per-views and performers can
be found at wwe.com. None of the information on ahgur websites is part of this prospectus.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The Securities and Exchange Commission allesv® “incorporate” into this prospectus the imfiation we periodically file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. This meansuwhanay disclose important information to you bfergng you to those documents. The
information incorporated by reference is considecelde part of this prospectus and information ikeevith the Securities and Exchange
Commission after the date of this prospectus witbenatically update and supersede this informatida.incorporate by reference the
documents listed below and all future documenégifivith the Securities and Exchange CommissionuBdetions 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of
the prospectus until all shares that may be offesethis prospectus are sold:

« Our Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003, as adezhby our Forn
10-K/A filed April 23, 2004;

* Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A for 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders dated July2803;

« Our Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended January 23, 2864mended by our Form-Q/A filed April 23,
2004;

 Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartpdyiod ended October 24, 2003, as amended byarar EO-Q/A filed April 23,
2004;
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« Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartpdyiod ended July 25, 2003, as amended by our BEOrQ/A filed April 23, 2004;

 Our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed June 13, 2008just 27, 2003, November 17, 2003, Februan20®@4, April 23, 2004 and
April 27, 2004 (except for any information furnishender either Item 9 or Item 12 of any such répartd

 The description of our capital stock containedtin eegistration statement on Forr-A filed on October 14, 199!

Upon request, we will provide a copy of tleedments we incorporate by reference to each peirstdnding any beneficial owner of our
common stock, to whom a copy of this prospectuielsered. To request a copy of any or all of théseuments, you should write or teleph
us at the following address and telephone number:

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Attention: Investor Relations
1241 East Main Street
Stamford, Connecticut 06902
Telephone: (203) 352-8600

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of our Class A coom stock offered in this prospectus will be pasgeah for us and the selling stockholder by
Kirkpatrick & Lockhart LLP, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvani

EXPERTS

The financial statements and the relatechfiied statement schedule incorporated in this prolgs by reference from the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year endediApd, 2003 have been audited by Deloitte & Touth®, independent auditors, as stated
in their report, which is incorporated herein bference, and have been so incorporated in reliapoa the report of such firm given upon tt
authority as experts in accounting and auditing.
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